AGENDA

SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
THURSDAY — AUGUST 6, 2020 - 11:00 A.M.
Join Zoom Meeting at https://zoom.us/j/92124731372
Meeting ID: 921 2473 1372

Or by Phone:
One tap mobile
+16699006833,,92124731372# US (San Jose)

Dial by your location
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
Meeting ID: 921 2473 1372
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/abAAVejtKK

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) ADVISORY NOTICE
In response to Governor Newsom’s Executive Order N-29-20, the San Rafael Sanitation District
will no longer offer an in-person meeting location for the public to attend. This meeting will be
available by virtual and teleconference.

If you experience an issue providing comments in the meeting or have any questions regarding
the meeting, please contact the District Clerk (email cindy.hernandez@cityofsanrafael.org or
phone 415-485-3132).

Members of the public may speak on Agenda items.

1. OPEN PERIOD

Opportunity for the public to address the Board on items not on the agenda.
(Presentations are generally limited to 2 minutes.)

2. MINUTES OF THE MEETING

Request approval as submitted — July 17, 2020
3. PAYMENTS

Request approval as submitted.
4. OLD BUSINESS

a. Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to
execute a Professional Services Agreement for design related services for the
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project.



. NEW BUSINESS

a. Adopt resolution rescinding Resolution No. 14-1084 and  authorizing
approved signatories on District checks.

b. Discussion on electronic signatures.

. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS _‘

. DIRECTOR REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
. CLOSED SESSION — (REMOVED)

a. Public Employee Performance Evaluation
California Government Code Section 54957
Title: District Manager

. ADJOURNMENT

The next scheduled meeting is September 3, 2020.




SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Minutes of the Meeting
July 17, 2020

Special Meeting ' . Via Teleconferencing

The meeting was called to order at 9:03 A.M. by Chair Phillips.

Attendance Gary O. Phillips, Chair
Board: Maribeth Bushey, Secretary/Director

Katie Rice, Director and Acting Secretary/Director
Attendance Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer
Staff: David Nicholson, Senior Civil Engineer

Cynthia Hernandez, District Secretary

Attendance Kerry Laiw Gerchow, Deputy County Counsel
Others: Dean DiGiovanni, CMSA Commissioner for SRSD

1. OPEN PERIOD - No persons were present to address the Board.
2. MINUTES OF JUNE §, 2020.

MOTION by Director Rice, seconded by Director Bushey, to approve the minutes of the
June 5, 2020, meeting as presented.

AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Phillips
NOES: None
ABSENT:  None Motion Carried

3. PAYMENTS

MOTION by Director Bushey, seconded by Director Rice, to approve the payments for May
2020 in the amount of $1,633,947.41 and for June 2020 in the amount of $1,214,518.80 for
maintenance and operation of the District and for capital improvements.

AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Phillips
NOES: None :
ABSENT:  None Motion Carried



. OLD BUSINESS

None.

. NEW BUSINESS

a. Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to execute a
Professional Services Agreement with Nute Engineering for design related services
for the Bayside Acres Beach Sewer Relocation Project.

District Manager Toy reported that this project had previously been discussed at the last
couple of meetings and reviewed the following information: The sewer main is located
on the beach and serves approximately 20 homes. The sewer was installed in 1972, and
high tides and sea level rise were not an issue at that time. The sewer infrastructure is
now in a tidal zone, and District staff has been unable to maintain it because the manhole
~ lids are corroded shut. The alternative improvements presented at the May meeting were
to replace the sewer main in the same alignment or further up the beach or to relocate it to
the road above the homes. If the main is relocated to the road, the sewage would need to
be pumped uphill either by private individual pump systems (privately owned and
maintained) or by shared District pump systems (owned and maintained by the District),
which would serve 2 to 4 homes. At the previous meetings, the Board favored the shared
District pump systems, which would most likely be favored by the regulatory agencies as
well. At the June meeting, the Board authorized staff to obtain a proposal for design
services for this option from Nute Engineering. Manager Toy then reviewed Nute’s
proposed services with the Board, which would include property access permissions, site
investigations, design and regulatory compliance, regulatory permitting, easement
description development, and bidding services and reported that the design work is
expected to be completed by the end of March 2021. She also reported that Nute’s work
would be done on a time-and-materials basis for an amount not to exceed $380,000.

MOTION by Director Rice, seconded by Director Bushey, to adopt the resolution
authorizing the District Managet/District Engineer to execute a Professional Services
Agreement with Nute Engineering for design related services for the Bayside Acres
Beach Sewer Relocation Project for an amount not to exceed $380,000.00. '

AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Phillips
NOES: None
ABSENT:  None Motion Carried

b. Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to execute a
~ Professional Services Agreement with Schaaf & Wheeler for design related services
for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project.

District Manager Toy reported that as part of the District’s 80-Year Gravity Main
Lifecycle Replacement Program, the District’s goal has been to replace 1.6 miles of
sewer line per year. She also reported that the District has almost completed its 10-year
list of capital improvement projects; and in order to develop future projects, the District
had televised approximately 8 miles of sewer last year. She then reported that as part of




the video inspection, the pipes are rated for their condition. Next, Manager Toy reported
that the District had sent out a Request for Proposal (RFP) to four civil engineering firms.
She also reported that the work in the RFP included an analysis of the televised sewers, a
list of sewers recommended for replacement, design and preparation of construction
contract documents, and design support during construction of the new sewers. She then
reported that proposals were received from Schaaf & Wheeler and BKF; and after a
thoughtful and considerate review, staff had decided to recommended Schaaf & Wheeler
for this project. Manager Toy also reported that Schaaf & Wheeler has had previous
experience with multiple similar projects for other cities in the Bay Area. She then
reported that Schaal & Wheeler had proposed to perform this work on a time-and-
materials basis for an amount not to exceed $308,000. The Board then inquired about the
deciding factors for choosing a consultant when reviewing proposals for professional
services, Manager Toy then reported that staff had put together a rating sheet for the
proposals. She also reported that the design engineer on Schaaf & Wheeler’s team is
NASSCO PACP (National Association of Sewer Service Companies, Pipeline
Assessment Certification Program) certified. After much discussion, the Board requested
the District Manager to bring back additional information to the next meeting, mcludmg
the proposal from BKF and the rating sheet for the proposals.

MOTION by Director Bushey, seconded by Director Rice, to continue this item to the
next meeting to allow the District Manager/District Engineer to assemble the additional
information requested by the Board.

AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Phillips
NOES: None
ABSENT: None Motion Carried

. Adopt resolution establishing the FY 2020-21 Sewer Connection Fees.

District Manager Toy reported that District Ordinance No. 56 states that the sewer
connection fees shall be adjusted annually beginning July 1* based on the Engineering
News Record Construction Cost Index (ENR Index) for San Francisco. She reported that
this year, the increase in the ENR Index would result in a 3.94% increase in the District’s
sewer connection fees. She also reported that the Board may decide not to adopt this
increase, but this might cause any future increases to be larger. Manager Toy then
recommended that the Board adopt smaller incremental increases annually and
recommended that the Board adopt the resolution establishing the FY 2020-21 Sewer
Connection Fees, which includes a 3.94% fee increase. Afier a brief discussion, the
Board decided that smaller incremental annual increases would be preferable to larger
future increases.

MOTION by Director Bushey, seconded by Director Rice, to adopt the resolution
establishing the FY 2020-21 Sewer Connection Fees.

AYES:; Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Phillips
NOES: None
ABSENT: None : _ Motion Carried



d. Adopt resolution establishing the FY 2020-21 Appropriations Limit on tax proceeds
(Proposition 4).

District Manager Toy reported that California’s appropriations limit was initially
established by Proposition 4 in 1979, which places an annual upper limit on the amount
of money that the District can spend each year from State tax proceeds. She reported that
this amount is updated annually and is based on changes in the population and per-capita
personal income, both within the City limits and the unincorporated areas of San Rafael.
She also reported that if the District’s appropriations limit is less than the amount of tax
revenue it receives from the State, the District can still keep the difference as long as the
proceeds are used for capital projects; otherwise, the District would need to refund the
difference to the ratepayers. Manager Toy then reported that the District’s FY 2020-21
Appropriations Limit has been calculated to be $1,298,617, and its anticipated tax
revenue is expected to be approximately $1.77 million. She also reported that the District
will be able to keep the overage of approximately $470,000 because it will be spent on
capital projects.

MOTION by Director Bushey, seconded by Director Rice, to adopt the resolution
establishing the FY 2020-21 Appropriations Limit on tax proceeds (Proposition 4),

AYES: Director Bushey, Director Rice, Chair Phillips
NOES: None
ABSENT: None ' Motion Carried

e. Discussion on Board meeting schedule,

District Manager Toy reported that the monthly Board meeting is currently scheduled for
the first Friday of the month at 9:30 A.M. She also reported that because the Chair has
other obligations on Friday mornings, he has requested the Board to consider changing
the meeting to a different day of the week. After a brief discussion, the Board decided to
set the monthly Board meeting schedule for the first Thursday of the month at 11:00
A.M. beginning Thursday, August 6, 2020.

6. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS
a. Introduction to the new Senior Civil Engineer.

District Manager Toy reported that she wanted to infroduce the new Senior Civil
Engineer, David Nicholson. She reported that for the past three years he had worked for
the City of San Rafael Public Works Department; and before that, he had worked for the
County of Marin for approximately 17 years. She then reported that District staft is very
excited to have him on board and that yesterday she had given him a long list of projects
to do. The Board then welcomed him, and he reported that he was looking forward to
working with the District Manager on the projects she had given him and was excited to
get started.




7. DIRECTOR REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
a. Rotation of CMSA Chair.

Director Bushey reported that at the last Central Marin Sanitation Agency (CMSA) Board
meeting, an issue had arisen with the CMSA Board Chair. She also reported that after an
extensive discussion, a subcommittee was appointed to come up with a recommendation
for the expectation of the rotation of the CMSA Chair. She then reported that she would
be working with Michael Boorstein from Ross Valley Sanitary District (RVSD) to come
up with a comprehensive proposal for a joint expectation of the rotation of the CMSA
Chair.

8. CLOSED SESSION

Closed Session — Opened at 9:47 A.M.

a. Conference with Legal Counsel-Existing Litigation
California Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1).
Name of Case: Buettner, et al. v. SRSD, et al.; Marin County Superior
Court, Case No. CIV-2000520 '

b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation
California Government Code Section 54957
Title: District Manager

Closed Session — Ended at 10:57 A.M.
Chair Phillips reported that no action was taken,
9. ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting of July 17, 2020, was

adjourned at 10:58 AM. The next meeting of the San Rafael Sanitation District was
scheduled for Thursday, August 6, 2020, at 11:00 A.M. via teleconferencing.

Respecttully submitted,

Maribeth Bushey, Recording Secretary

ATTEST THIS 6th DAY OF AUGUST 2020

Gary O. Phillips, Chair




POEEL'FEE (01) uonens dwng oosioueld 'S gyly  00€ ¢# WawAed ssauboud - 19safold siuswanoidw] uolels duing ovsueld Yinos "ONI ‘NOLLONMMLSNOD S
198 swajshAs uonos||oo - W80 0982 002 J1appod puey ayj Jiedas o} s|oo} - WajsAs uonos|jo) FHVYMAEYH S.NOSMIVI
Z62 swesAs uoio3|od - W20 0962 00T JappoJ puey sy} Jiedas 0} sped - WalsAS uolR3||oD FHYMOYVH S.NOSMIVI
08’6 sulew 921047 sejs dwnd -JUIBN  BSEZ 002 Sd 19a11S pliyL 8y} 1o} xoq Jajue|d U} 1o} SMaL0s - suoljels duind ONI ¥IFWNT ILV.LS NITTOD
Ise suleww aolo) g s;pis dwind -Juley  6SEZ 002 Sd 192115 PAIUL 3} Joj Xog Jajueld 2y} Joj Jaquin] - suoels dwngd ONI ¥FFIWNT ILV.LS NITTOD
60°FL sulew soJoj g sBjs dwind -JuleiN  BSEZ 002 Sd 19211S Pyl 8y} Joj xoq Jajueld au3 Joj Jaquin] - suolels duing INI ¥3FWNT ILVYLS NITTOD
98°€0Z sulew soJoj @ s;Eis dwnd -JuelNy  BSEZ 00T Sd 193418 pAIUL 8y Joy xoq Jajueld e pling o} ssijddns pue Jaquin| - suoliels dwind ONI ¥3gWNTILV.LS NIATOD
00009 swajsAs uopoal|oo - W0 09€Z 002 0Z0Z AN pue aunr Joj Juswialeqe pasm - WasAS uonoajlod ONI ¥F9FOHN ® HILSHOS
00700204 V puoQ urey ®2io4 LGl 00€ 02/0S/9-02/1L0/S 1o} seolalas Buussuibus - Z aseyd ‘Juswdoanad weibold JUaLSsassy UoIIpuod We 2204 ONI ONIYIINIONT SHIMT
5L'Z69°0L s|eolwayo [ojucd JopO  90LZ 002 0Z/21/L uo suones dwnd o} pasal|ap [EJILLIBYD [04U0D JOPO - [04U0D JOPO 277 'STIDOTONHITL ¥ILYM VNDOAT
58°90¥ swaishs uooslioo - WO 0962 002 sope|q Jappol Jamod - WajsAS uolo3||0D INIYNLIVLINNYIN FTTVIVINd
00°00% sesy sJoypand Zezz 00k 0Z/LLIL Uo 391y 3ie) - 934 sJopalg NIRAIVIN 40 ALNNOD
18286 sajolyan siiedal pue sped €80 002 0Z/61/9-0Z/11/9 PUE 0Z/LZ/Z UO 8618 DUB '6618 ‘0518 ‘P68 # SdIYon 0} siledas pUE SOUBUSIUIBW = SSIOIUSA TIVLAVH NV'S H0 ALID
¥9°€E9°T sajolyen suedsl pue sued €802 002 0Z/0£/9-0Z/10/% 1o} sabieyo [any Japenb ypnoy - seplyan TIVHVY NYS 40 ALID
89°90¢'6¥EL wawiesy sbemas ZLLy  0OF 02/0£/6-02/L0/L Joj sabBieys aoiuas sapenb isiyy - sabreyd soineg AINIOV NOILVLINYS NRIVIN TVHLINID
ZEVZL'0ZS L soIuss Jgap -jusuneas abemas £LLy 00V 0Z/L.0/6 Jo} JuswAed aojAsas 1q8p [enUUe-Was - 30IM3S 1920 ADNTOV NOLLVLINYS NIV TYHINID
£2252°9 eswo sjqefed sag) uoPsUUO) 0LZZ 002 peoY OYISIUON €5 -S89 UCIIBUUSD YSIND AINIOV NOLLVLINYS NRIVIN TYHINTO
65045 sulew 300} g seis dwnd Ui 6SEZ 002 S/\|V Ulew 30104 - suolielg duing ONI 02 WV3ILS-TVD
0449 swayshs uonps||od - N0~ 0962 002 3504 JOPEA MaU Joj sped - WalsAS UoRd3||0D ONI 02 WYILS-TVD
006E8'FL SouUBINSUI [BJRUDD BS0Z  00L L2/10/2-02/L0/L Jo} [emaual aoueinsul Ausdoud - soueInsy| [eJeusD HLY LINOW ¥SI¥ NOLLVLINYS VINYOIITYD:
£6°5£9°9 sulew saloj @ s;ejs dwnd -JUlBN 6GE€Z 002 Iojesauab UBUQ UO JusWaoe|dal Jojelpel Sd PooMUs|9 - suojels duwingd "ONI ¥3MOd ® T3S31d VINHOSITYO
86°LOY'S surew 2040} ¢ sjs dwnd quiely 6567 00Z Sd peoJlieY JS9MN Joj O/ Wswaoe|ds: - suolels duind "ONI ‘SW3LSAS NOOTVD
Z6'606'F sulew 20loy g s;eis dwnd Ul 65€2 002 si 1oEjU00 uone)s dwind - suolels duind "ONI ‘SWILSAS NOOTVD
1Z°1e6 ss[olysn siledal pue sued €802 002 661.8# S[0IYaA Joppol Jamod Joj Sl MaU oM - SAPIYIA L NOGNVYE
0£°926°L sapoiyen siiedal pue sued €802 002 81-6F18# S0IY2A Hony duind o} sali} Mau XIS - SSPIYaA JIL NOGNVIE
05°60% sajolyaA slledal pue sUed €802 002 8L-6FL8# a[o1yan yonu dwnd Joj juswubije - sapIyap Fd1L NOANVYE
99°CLE (0g)Aempa-1se] "pAig oosioueld 988y Q0E soads pue sue|d - paloid uoneyiqeysy Jamas 1se3d "pAjg 0IsiouBld SSIHIXdE
167292 (08)Aempain-iseT "pAlg oosioueld 9EE¥ 00T soads pauuojuod - pafold UoHENIIGEYDY Jamas 1583 "PAIg 0osIouel SSIHAXdT
00'FLS sulew aoJoy 2 seys dwnd -JuR 652 002 1 2/1.0/6-02/L0/6 10} 83} [EMaUSI JuLad [enuUe Lojels dwng BiaiAl - suolels dwng SIg INFWIDVYNYIN ALITVNO MY vIHV AvE
00Zer sulew 300y g seis dwnd uieN 6562 002 12/10/6-02/1.0/6 Jo} 33} [emaual uusd [enuue uojels duind poomus|s - suoels dwind SIa INFWIDVYNYW ALITYND HIV VIEV AvS
¥9°529 soimes suoydalaL ¥ESZ  00L 0Z/£0/.-02/70/9 Woy aiIes suoyd [130 - 391M8S auoydala L ALITISOW 131V
8c'gLE soues suoydajaL ¥£5Z 001 02/1,0/2-02/20/9 Wouy Siajelp pue suoness dwnd Joj ssul| pue| - saiAI8S suoydaia) 79£8. 191V
LL26L sopuss suoydajel ¥€5Z 001 0Z/61/2-0Z/0Z/9 Wiol} YSIND ©} siajelp uoe)s duwnd - aoinag suoydsial 299%. 121V
6L26L solnes suoydalpl ¥ESZ 00) 02Z/61/9-0Z/0Z/S Woll YSIND o} sJajelp uoness dwnd - soinag suoydsia L 299F. 121V
ZL'ost suuojun  LZoZ 002 02/2z/. Buipus ao1AIBs Apjaam - suojiun STDINHTS WHOSINN HIVIWVHY
L678¥L suuogun 1LZoZ 002 0z/51/2 Buipus soinas Apjaem - suuojiun SIINHTS WHOLINA HHVWYEY
1678¥L suuopun LZ0Z 002 0z/80/. Buipua 3o1nas Apjeam -suLoyun SIINHTS WHOINN HHVYIWYEY
ZL'oSE suuogun LZ0Z 002 0Z/10/2 Buipua sopuas Apj@am - suuoyun STIIAYTS WHOLINN HHVINVHY
L6°8¥L suuojun Lzoz 002 0Z/vz/9 Bupua soruss Apjaam - suuojun SIDIAHTS WHOLINN MHVINYHY
wnowny QBN JUN0IDY #3100y SsB[D ows asAed/IopuUsA

0Z0Z ‘1€ finr - 0202 ‘L AInr

AIVIWHINS INTFWAVL

1O41SId NOILVLINYS TIVIVY NVS



er 8z suleWw 3040} p S;21s dwnd UB BSET D02 Jwewfed 1o Yy PUOIDS - 5% L& SPILSA 10} SHEd %04 joNUCo AUBID - SUCHRIS Gind MNYE SN
BZ 9L saljddns deys g 30C €612 Q0L satoydoIlL Ui sweagam om) - seliddng sau0 MNVE S1t
0LFL sayddns doys g 8210 €812 001 Jepuajen suguiodde - sa)ddng S0 MNVE 517
0562 sasuadxa snoauR|leesIN 6887 Q0L LORBULOJU PIED HPBIs Mau ai2pdn 0} JusuwiAed Yellse4 - $9suadxg snoaue||aosiy MNYSE S
00646 (pgMempalN-ise ‘pAlg cosioueld Seey O0E waad JLaLIUIE0IOUS ~ 103[0.d UCIEH|IGEUSY JoMIS 1583 "PAIg eosioued MNVE SN
EL6PIT suiBw 3010} 2 SB)s dund -UIBly B5EZ D02 Sd Wed Aeg UUB JB S192IUGD [EDLIDSES JOLIBIS JOJOW pUE Sd pedy Buloow i Js)e)s tojow aogqdal - suonels dusng DNI SINTHNELSNI MviSTaL
2655 sajddns dous g 3250 €E€1Z 00t suyasUl Xey Jof 3BDLUED XU Bay; - salddng SO INI SFVLS
¥T Lz sa||ddns doys g 3030 €L 0DL shuaatd SUNU0 Jo) slaxeads Jaindwon-- sayddns 8010 INI ST VLS
6708 Sl 20403 2 S EIS dwnd BN 658T goe X0 Luwcmﬁ Sd 188415 PAY L SUL JO} HOS PURB X001 « SUoyBlS aEn& MIOHNVYHS
Fig T eeanno diang LZET 00L 0Z0T Bunr 0} GZ0Z yole wed) ubledw=d Busipeape §(- QIAQD - USBRNG 2iand AHVLINYS AFTIVA S50
00°00L seg)slopand zezz ook 0Z/L1}, uo sdifud "Q AIED - 5994 sJoRalg AMYD ‘SHITHHS
LLPETYL SIS0 AN 0BT G852 00T 0Z/80/Z ©1 0Z/0 /g suoness duind 1o} 0IAI8S OLISS|8 - MO $-Z029ZE0RFZ o0 RO
O0°E96°T {01} uonelg dwng odspuelj ‘g eyly 00T 0Z/0S/9-0Z/10/9 Wink; $301A8S - 10a0ld sjuswaacudul| uoielS dumd 0osioueld YInes ONRIFINIONT LN
00'5L6°E oglebplig WS puoword daxi Jamss  [EEy  00E 0Z/06/9-0Z/ 179 Woss seous Buusauibua - malold uiel ulois pue Jamss Aean sBuis Je 1se3 "pag oosIotel4 ONRIFINIDNT SL0N
05°LZE6 (pa)lempajy-1se3 "pAjg 0OSIOUBIY 0SS 00T 0Z/0E/9-0Z/ LO/G WOl Se01Aas - Paltly uoneyjiqeysy Jamas 1583 pAg oosious.d ONIYIINIONT 3LON
00°808 saoles Bulnsuo) GZee  OCL OZ/OSA-0T/L0/9 WOl [BloH BoLUely pauueld Joy svaines Bugesubus - saopuag Buninsuo) ONIMIINIONT FLAN
00°'000°0F S9jquONpsp pue swief) 102 #5318 necy aHeH 194 £6 Jo} |95 auebieyy pue SSWEr AQ WIZD 1o} SIGRINPSP - SAIQIRNPaQ B SWIRD ONI ‘SHILSNFAY MHOMLIN
08'PIL (01) uopeys dung ovsURi] 'S YLy 00 D2/40/9-0Z/50/ 104 SB3IAIES 1B0IUY0R1006 - 1walold siualanadiuf uolelg dwng oospuR.S YInog dNOHD SNIMIINIONT JIFIDVd YT THIN
£0°650° S80IBS AQpURls £98Z 002 BM0D QIpag UBS LOG Je 201UBS - AGPURIS NI IDIAETS HIMIS HTLOOH-OLOH NIMYW
Go'059 seoluRs AQpuRlS €967 00Z SORUSL PISMY LT 1e aoles - AgpuRlg INI 'FOINHES HIMIS HILOOY-0.LOM NIXYIN
60059 saoues AQpUEIS £9€Z 00 19005 LEH £ 1e 30138 - AGPURIS NI 'FDIAETS HTIMIS AT OOHOLONM NIMYIN
oa's¥ sUlBll 30104 2 SBis dwnd GuRW 6362 002 Sof PEOJJIEY ISSAA BU) WO SSUSN Jof 33} dwnp - suoiels dung INI AMIAOITH FIUNOSIE NIEYIN
0ZLL sisoo Apn Jslep, 9852 00T 0Z/04/9-02/01/ WO, "BNY PUBIPOOA - IS1EAA SIT HFLYM TVLIDINAN NISYIN
ZLL siso2 AlnnJslep 885 00T GZ/0L/3-0Z/Q L WOl J9aliS SWWIS - ISIEAN S0 HILVM TVSIDINGIN NISYN
oz s;S00 AYEN JajeAn 9EGE 00T OZ/FLI9-0T/ Ly Wolf dng JAMBS 8211 9MJT BIaiNY - BIBM SIQ HTLYM TVHIINNN NIEYIN
8Z7i8 51502 AUIN JSIEM.  SEST #1474 0Z/S419-02/S L WO peOY Q1pad UES "L - J21BpA ST U LYM TVSIDINMIIN NIRRTV
6278 $3800 AYIN JSIEAR 9EST 00T OZ/ILISQZ/ALIp WOL BAUC HI0IBIG - IBIBAN SIT MFLYM TVIIDINAW NIHYIN
8Z74L8 $3502 AYIIN ISIBM,  9EST 41074 02/91/9-02/9Li¥ Wol) PEDY Rupad UBg UHON ~ JAleAA SI0 SFLYM TWIIDINNMIN NIYYiN
Leeat $1500 ANnN 1S1BAN  9EST ooZ 0Z/51/5-0Z/S 1P Wz P CRIDIUCH ~ J2IRAN ST ST LM TYIIDIINMIA NISYIN
£0°LSY $i500 AN ISiBAN SEST 002 QZ/S1L/5Q2/S Ly WO "PAIG 00SIDURL] "] - 1S1EAA SIQ HTIVM TYSIDINDN NISVYI
087107 §1500 ANUN J9IBA 9E52 002 Q2/2119-0817 %17 WO "PAY 00StaURl] T - J31BAN SIT HILYM TYdIDINMIN NIbYIW
oriak $1500 AN BlBAR 98T 002 Q2R L/S-0ZiF L WOy "PAIE BUIEIET - JBIEAA SIQ MILYM IVSIDINAN NIMYIY
gLeee spseo AN elem 9852 002 02/Z1/9-02/ Lt WY "any OS2 - JBlBpf SIG HILYM IWIIDINAW NIHYN
oz iL S50 Aunn seleM 98T 007 0Z/ALI502/QLiF WO SALQ Uasiapuy - JATBAA SIG HILYM TUSIDINGN NIY YN
oTLL sis00 Aylon Jelean 9ESE 002 0Z/5)/9-02/S 1P W1 "DAIE JBWRY SOLE - 13BN SIG HILYM TYAIDINNN NIYYIN
0z°LL si$00 Aygn Jojepn  9gs? Q02 0Z/0L/9-02/0 L UI0Y DAL USSIBpUY L [Z] - I9JBAA SI10 HFLVM TYSIDINITN NIV N
18959 51500 A3EN JBlBAA  DESE 00T Noru} JOen 10} Jelem - OZ/QE/S-0Z/0E 7 WO "PAIE BISIA [RWE ] (2T - ISIBAA S1Q HILVM TWLIHINAIN NIHYIN
ALvre S1S00 AHN JBleM BEGT ooeg YO} JORIBA JO) JalBM - 0Z/0EI9-0Z/0Cy WM "pAlg BISIA jelLB ] OZZ - 81BN, SIQ HFLYM TYIIDINDIN NIYYIN
0ZLL S)500 AJiRN JalEAN 9657 Q0T DZ/9L/9-0Z/3 it woy peoy uoobeT vy - serem SIT UFLYM TVIIDINIIIN NIV A
og'oot s39) slCag  Zeze 0oL 0ZrLL/2 w0 Aaysng waquely - $3ad sJopalg ASHSNG HLZgviN
00°009° saowuas Bugunoooy  JL/Z 0O 0202 AInf - satiAes BuiBUNoISY ADNVINNQOOV HIHYIW
00°0LLFL {08} (o 01 soAeH) IS pAML OFEF  QOE SeqIAISS Pajela) UoRINISUDD pue uBisep - j88as Al o) 338]d SUBloeT albid "qeyay James 138415 PaYL “ONI'SELVIDOSSY ONV NXOH-AT TN
FaEVL0T {o1) uoyEls dilng o3siIdUeid 'S evly QOE JUNO29E MGII$3 10} UoNUSIa) of luslwiked ssaiboud - pafold sjuswsacidw] Logeis dwnd oospue:] Yinosg DN NOLLOMELSNOD Siir




£8°e6L'9er’s §

cb”mhm sulew 840} 3 $215 dwnd Juel  6S8Z 0OZ LZ/L €7/ UBNOJU) BIemilos UCHESNGY Lele malnde | Jo emaual - suckels dund ONI'NOLLYINO LY LHYNSHEOM
mm.v SWIBJEAS UoNSa|cD - WO 0982 002 1appos puey; el Jledal o} sjo0 - WalsAS UonIs|ed . ATddNS 0Ny HLD ONYTTOOM
Fras ] solnas auoudalp). E5Z 00} 0Zi02/9-02/ 1 Z/5 Sdoidet 103 30lAIRS $SO[S.lM - 30IAIBS suoydala L SSITIHIM NOZRIFA
OBEFL suondussgns pue sdiysiequuisiy  1€1Z Qal sBuaaw auljuo o) WaoZ 0} uopduasans eak auo - SuolsHoSgnS MNWE ST
o002t suonduosgns pue sdiysiequaly  Letz Q0L - SYIIM g I0) |EMDUDE |leusnel wspuadapul UUBp - mmo_ﬁ._._umn:w MNYE S
567121 SUIELL 99105 % SBiS dwnd Uil 6SET 00T Jsped uoiels duind 15 payL Joy spuetd - suolels duing MNVE SN

9989 sulel 9510} 9 6,218 dwnd Juel 6582 002 Aafrou] wesg- - suoielg diing MNVE Sh




SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Agenda Item No. 4.a

DATE: August 6, 2020

TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District

FROM: Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer W

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution Authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to

Execute a Professional Services Agreement for Design Related Services for
the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt resolution authorizing the District Manager/District Engineer to execute a Professional
Services Agreement with Schaaf & Wheeler for design related services for the 2020 Sewer Pipe
Repair and Replacement Project.

BACKGROUND:

As part of the 80-Year Gravity Main Lifecyle Replacement Program, it is the District’s goal to
replace 1.6 miles of pipe per year. The District has nearly completed its 10-year list of Capital
Improvement Projects. In order for the District to develop future projects, the District began to
televise approximately 8 miles of sanitary sewers throughout central and southern San Rafael
during the winter of 2019. The sewer sizes vary between 6 inches and 21 inches; however, the
majority are less than 15 inches. The sewers primarily consist of vitrified clay pipe (VCP).

ANALYSIS:

The District sent a Request for Proposal (RFP) to four civil engineering firms. The work
described in the RFP includes the analysis of the existing sewers previously televised by the
District in 2019, compilation of a list of sewers recommended for replacement, the design and
preparation of construction contract documents, and design support during construction of the
new sewers identified in the analysis.

Proposals were received from Schaaf & Wheeler and BKF. Both consultants had incorporated
all the required items and had addressed and adequately analyzed the issues raised in the Request
for Proposals. After a thoughtful and considerate review of the submitted information, staff
recommends that Schaaf & Wheeler be selected as the firm to provide the engineering services.
Attached are staff’s evaluation summary sheets, which are based on the criteria listed in the
Requested for Proposal.

Schaaf & Wheeler is currently designing the District’s Woodland Avenue Sewer Improvement
Project. They have had previous experience with multiple similar projects for cities in the Bay
Area, i.e. the City of Belmont from 2014-2019 and the City of San Mateo from 2017-2020; and
the design engineer on their team is NASSCO PACP (National Association of Sewer Service
Companies, Pipeline Assessment Certification Program) certified, which is the accepted industry
pipe condition rating system.



a

Schaaf & Wheeler proposes to perform the design related services for the District on a time-and-
materials basis for an amount not to exceed $303,000 for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and
Replacement Project.

At the July 17, 2020, Board Meeting, this agenda item was presented to the Board; however, the
Board decided to continue this item to the next meeting so that staff could include additional
information for the Board’s review, i.e. BKF’s proposal and staff’s evaluation summary sheets.
Also, the Board was seeking a formal explanation of why staff did not recommend award based
on the lowest bid, as staff does for contractors on construction projects.

With some exceptions, public works contracts may be awarded only afier having engaged in the
competitive bidding process. Statutory exceptions to competitive bidding requirements are
generally available only if the dollar value of the work involved is relatively small or where the
nature of the work is not suited to competitive bidding, such as professional services contracts.
The Public Contract Code also permits award of contracts without competitive bidding in
circumstances involving work of: (i) an emergency nature or (ii) of a limited scope.

Professional services are exempt under Government Code §§4525 et seq. — specifically
architectural, landscape architectural, engineering, environmental, land surveying, and
construction project management services, which may be procured by a public agency without
engaging in the bidding process. The standard for award of such contracts must be based upon
the demonstrated competence and qualifications of the individual or firm for the services to be
provided, and the price of the services must be fair and reasonable to the public agency.

The main reason bids work best with tangible items, i.e. construction projects, is the focus on
price. If one is constructing a new pump station, the pump station has to be built according to its
design. That will not change, so the goal is to find the best bid/price for the pump station. When
seeking a professional service, when quality and value matter, it is often wiser to use a
qualification-based selection system to select who is contracted, because the system focuses on
finding a professional that has the best experience and skill for the job sought.

The agency may negotiate the contract with the top selected firm; if it is unsuccessful, the agency
goes to the next selected firm and so on.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Schaaf & Wheeler’s design related services for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement
Project will be funded by the 80-Year Life Cycle Sewer Replacement Program for Fiscal Year
2020-21.

ACTION REQUIRED:

Staff recommends that the Board adopt the resolution authorizing the District Manager/District
Engineer to execute a Professional Services Agreement with Schaaf & Wheeler for design
related services for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project.

Attachments: Resolution
Professional Services Agreement
Proposal from Consultant, Exhibit “A”
Proposal from BKF
Request for Proposal
Evaluation Summary Sheets




SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 20-1210

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
AUTHORIZING THE DISTRICT MANAGER/DISTRICT ENGINEER
TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
SCHAAF & WHEELER FOR DESIGN RELATED SERVICES
FOR THE 2020 SEWER PIPE REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT PROJECT
FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $303,000.00

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT,
COUNTY OF MARIN, hereby resolves as follows: |

The District Manager/District Engineer is hereby authorized to execute, on behalf
of the San Rafael Sanitation District, a Professional Services Agreement with Schaaf &
Wheeler for design related services for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement
Project, a copy of which is hereby attached and by this reference made a part hereof.

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the San Rafael Sanitation
District Board of Directors held on the 6th day of August 2020 by the following vote, to

wit:

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT/ABSTAIN:
SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Gary O. Phillips, Chair

ATTEST:

Maribeth Bushey, Secretary




PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
FOR DESIGN RELATED SERVICES FOR THE
2020 SEWER PIPE REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT PROJECT

This Agreement is made and entered into this 6th day of August 2020 by and between
the SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT [hereinafier "DISTRICT"], and SCHAAF & WHEELER
(hereinafter "CONSULTANT”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the DISTRICT has selected SCHAAF & WHEELER to perform the
required design related services for the “2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project”
(hereinafter “PROJECT”); and '

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT has offered to render cert.ain specialized professional

services in connection with this Project.
AGREEMENT
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereby agree as follows:
1. DEFINITIONS.

DISTRICT and CONSULTANT have outlined the scope of services to be provided, and related expenses

as described in Exhibit “A” attached and incorporated herein.
2. PROJECT COORDINATION

A. DISTRICT. The District Manager/District Engineer shall be the representative of the
DISTRICT for all purposes under this Agreement. The Senior Civil Engineer is hereby designated the
PROJECT MANAGER for the DISTRICT, and said PROJECT MANAGER shall supervise all aspects of

the progress and execution of this Agreement.

B. CONSULTANT. CONSULTANT shall assign a single PROJECT DIRECTOR to
have overall responsibility for the progress and execution of this Agreement for CONSULTANT.
Benjamin Shick is hereby designated as the PROJECT DIRECTOR for CONSULTANT. Should
circumstances or conditions subsequent to the execution of this Agreement require a substitute
PROJECT DIRECTOR for any reason, the CONSULTANT shall notify the DISTRICT within ten (10)

business days of the substitution.




3. DUTIES OF CONSULTANT

CONSULTANT shall perform the duties and/or provide services as follows: the
CONSULTANT agrees to provide professional services as an Engineering Consultant to prepare work
outlined in the Proposal from CONSULTANT dated June 19, 2020, marked Exhibit “A” attached hereto,
and incorporated herein by this reference. CONSULTANT agrees to be available and perform the work

specified in this Agreement in the time frame as specified and as shown in Exhibit "A".
4. DUTIES OF THE DISTRICT
DISTRICT shall perform the duties as described and incorporated herein.
5. COMPENSATION

For the full performance of the services described herein by CONSULTANT,
DISTRICT shall pay CONSULTANT on a time-and-materials basis for services rendered in accordance
with the rates shown on the current fee schedule as described in Exhibit "A" attached and incorporated
herein. The total payment will not exceed $303,000.00 as shown on the Proposal Budget, set out in
Exhibit "A",

Payment will be made monthly upon receipt by PROJECT MANAGER of
itemized invoices submitted by CONSULTANT. )

6, TERM OF AGREEMENT

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of execution until the Project

is complete.
7. TERMINATION

A. Discretionary. Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause

upon thirty (30) days written notice mailed or personally delivered to the other party.

B. Cause. FEither party may terminate this Agreement for cause upon ten
(10) days written notice mailed or personally delivered to the other party, and the notiﬂed'p'arty’s failure
to cure or correct the cause of the termination notice, to the reasonable satisfaction of the party giving

such notice, within thirty (30) days of the receipt of said notice.

C. Effect of Termination. Upon receipt of notice of termination, neither
party shall incur additional obligations under any provision of this Agreement without the prior written

consent of the other.

D. Return of Documents. Upon terminatioﬁ, any and ail DISTRfCT
documents or materials provided to CONSULTANT and any and all of CONSULTANT's documents and
materials prepared for or relating to the performance of its duties under this Agreement, shall be
delivered to DISTRICT as soon as possible, but not later than thirty (30) days after termination,

Agreement » 2




8. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS AND DATA

The written documents and materials prepared by the CONSULTANT in connection
with the performance of its duties under this Agreement, shall become the property of DISTRICT, once
the CONSULTANT has been compensated under the terms of this Agreement. Any re-use of
professional instruments of service furnished by CONSULTANT without CONSULTANT’S written
authorization shall be at DISTRICT’S sole risk.

9. INSPECTION AND AUDIT

Upon reasonable notice, CONSULTANT shall make available to DISTRICT, or its
agent, for inspection and audit, all documents and materials maintained by CONSULTANT in
connection with its performance of its duties under this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall fully

cooperate with DISTRICT or its agent in any such audit or inspection.
10, ASSIGNABILITY

The parties agree that they shall not assign or transfer any interest in this Agreement nor
the performance of any of their respective obligations hereunder, without the prior written consent of the
other party, and any attempt to so assign this Agreement or any rights, duties or obligations arising

hereunder shall be void and of no effect,
11. INSURANCE

A. During the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall maintain, at no expense to
DISTRICT, the following insurance policies:

1. A commercial general liability insurance policy in the minimum amount of
one million ($1,000,000) dollars per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate for death, bodily injury,
personal injury, or property damage;

2. An automobile liability (owned, non-owned, and hired vehicles) insurance

policy in the minimum amount of one million ($1,000,000) dollars per occurrence;

3. If any licensed professional performs any of the services required to be
performed under this Agreement, a professional liability insurance policy in the minimum amount of one
million ($1,000,000) dollars to cover any claims arising out of the CONSULTANT’s performance of

services under this Agreement.

B. The insurance coverage required of the CONSULTANT by Section 1. A, shall also

meet the following requirements:

Agreement * 3




1. The insurance shall be primary with respect to any insurance or coverage
maintained by DISTRICT and shall not call upon DISTRICT's insurance or coverage for any

contribution;

2. Except for professional liability insurance, the insurance policies shall be

endorsed for contractual liability and personal injury;

3. Except for professional liability insurance, the insurance policies shall be
specifically endorsed to include the DISTRICT, its officers, agents, and employees as additionally named

insureds under the policies;

4, CONSULTANT shall provide to PROJECT MANAGER, (a) Certificates of
Insurance evidencing the insurance coverage required herein, and (b) specific endorsements naming

DISTRICT, its officers, agents and employees, as additional insureds under the policies;

5. The insurance policies shall provide that the insurance carrier shall not
cancel, terminate or otherwise modify the terms and conditions of said insurance policies except upon
thirty (30) days written notice to DISTRICT’s PROJECT MANAGER;

6. If the insurance is written on a Claims Made Form, then, following
termination of this Agreement, said insurance coverage shall survive for a period of not less than five
years;

7. The insurance policies shall provide for a retroactive date of placement

coinciding with the effective date of this Agreement;

8. The insurance shall be approved as to form and sufficiency by PROJECT
MANAGER and the County Counsel.

C. If it employs any person, CONSULTANT shall maintain Worker's Compensation and
Employer's Liability Insurance, as required by the State Labor Code and other applicable laws and
regulations, and as necessary to protect both CONSULTANT and DISTRICT against all liability for
injuries to CONSULTANT's officers and employees.

D. Any deductibles or self-insured retentions exceeding $20,000 in CONSULTANT's
insurance policies must be declared to and approved by the PROJECT MANAGER and the County
Counsel. At DISTRICT's option, the deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to DISTRICT
shall be reduced or eliminated to DISTRICT's satisfaction, or CONSULTANT shall procure a bond
guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claims administration, attorney's fees and

defense expenses.

Agreement « 4




12 INDEMNIFICATION
CONSULTANT shall indemnify, release, and hold harmless DISTRICT, its

officers, and employees against any claim, demand, suit, judgment, loss, liability, or expense of any kind,
including attorney's fees, arising out of or resulting in any way from any negligent acts or omissions or
negligence of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANTs officers, agents, and employees in the 'performance

of their duties and obligations under this Agreement.
13, NONDISCRIMINATION

CONSULTANT shall not discriminate, in any way, against any person on the
basis of age, sex, race, color, religion, ancestry, national origin or disability in connection with or related

to the performance of its duties and obligations under this Agreement.
14, COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LAWS

CONSULTANT shall use due professional care to observe and comply with all
applicable Federal, State and local laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations in the perforrhance of its
duties and obligations under this Agreement. CONSULTANT shall perform all services under this

Agreement in accordance with these laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations.
15, NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES

DISTRICT and CONSULTANT do not intend, by any provision of this
Agreement, to create in any third party, any benefit or right owed by one party, under the terms and

conditions of this Agreement, to the other party.
16. NOTICES

All notices and other communications required or permitted to be given under
this Agreement, including any notice of change of address, shall be in writing and given by personal
delivery, or deposited with the United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, addressed to the parties
intended to be notified. Notice shall be deemed given as of the date of personal delivery, or if mailed,

upon the date of deposit with the United States Postal Service, Notice shall be given as follows:

TO DISTRICT: Mr, David Nicholson, P.E. (Project Manager)
San Rafael Sanitation District
111 Morphew Street
San Rafael, CA 94901

TO CONSULTANT: Mr. Benjamin Shick, P.E. (Project Director)
Schaaf & Wheeler
2200 Range Ave., Ste. 201
Santa Rosa, CA 95403

Agreement« 5



17. INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT

For the purposes, and for the duration, of this Agreement, CONSULTANT, its
officers, agents and employees shall act in the capacity of an Independent Consultant, and not as
employees of the DISTRICT. CONSULTANT and DISTRICT expressly intend and agree that the status
of CONSULTANT, its officers, agents and employees be that of an Independent Consultant and not that
of an employee of DISTRICT.

18. ENTIRE AGREEMENT -- AMENDMENTS

A. The terms and conditions of this Agreement, all exhibits attached, and all
documents expressly incorporated by reference, represent the entire Agreement of the parties with
1‘espe¢t to the subject matter of this Agreement, |

B. This written Agreement shall supersede any and all prior agreements, oral or
written, regarding the subject matter between the CONSULTANT and the DISTRICT. |

C. No other agreement, promise or statement, written or oral, relating to the
subject matter of this Agreement, shall be valid or binding, except by way of a written amendment to this
Agreement.

D. The terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not be altered or modified
except by a written amendment to this Agreement signed by the CONSULTANT and the DISTRICT.

E. If any conflicts arise between the terms and conditions of this Agreement,
and the terms and conditions of the attached exhibits or the documents expressly incorporated by

reference, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall control.

19. SET-OFF AGAINST DEBTS

, CONSULTANT agrees that DISTRICT may deduct from any payment due to
CONSULTANT under this Agreement, any monies which CONSULTANT owes DISTRICT under any
ordinance, agreement, contract or resolution for any unpaid taxes, fees, licenses, assessments, unpaid

checks or other amounts.
20. WAIVERS

The waiver by either party of any breach or violation of any term, covenant or
candition of this Agreement, or of any ordinance, law or regulation, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of
any other term, covenant, condition, ordinance, law or regulation, or of any subsequent breach or
violation of the same or other term, covenant, condition, ordinance, law or regulation. The subsequent
acceptance by either party of any fee, performance, or other consideration which may become due or
owing under this Agreement, shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any preceding breach or violation by
the other party of any term, condition, covenant of this Agreement or any applicable law, ordinance or

regulation.

Agreement + 6




21. CITY BUSINESS LICENSE/OTHER TAXES

CONSULTANT shali obtain and maintain during the duration of this Agreement, a
CITY business license as required by the San Rafael M'unicipal Code. CONSULTANT shall pay any and
all State and Federal taxes and any other applicable taxes. CONSULTANT’s taxpayer identification
number is 77-0061375, and CONSULTANT certifies under penaity of perjury that said taxpayer
identification number is correct.
22. APPLICABLE LAW

The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day,

month and year first above written,

SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT CONSULTANT

SCHAAF & WHEELER

Doris Toy, P.E.

District Manager/District Engineer

APPROVED AS TO FORM: By:
Title:

Kerry Laiw Gerchow
Deputy County Counsel

Agreement * 7




EXHIBIT "A"
Proposal for

San Rafael Sanitation District

Engineering Design Services for
2020 SEWER PIPE REPAIR AND  {
REPLACEMENT PROJECT

e Liyyf!

o 6 L e s F
bl

= 3 4 11T
| ¥y S S T ] 10
o

u

J !

37, f
5 'lo 017 ¥
= 1)Gs 0 L,\ g
LY P B
|l‘ 2

IS
Schaaf & Wheeler il

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS t




Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

Table of Contents

1. Cover Letter

2. Project Understandifnng ..........ciciiiiiissisisissessssssssssssssssssssssmsnssssssssmsmsasssssssnsnsstossssssassosssssssssssssssnsons 1
3. Project Approach, Work Plan and Level of EffOrt..........ccocounnnimrsssssmssssssseesssscssssssssssssssssssssnnns 3
4. Project SCHEAUIE............ceceeeiirissssissiinsssssmsssssssssss s st s s e s s sns s s s st st st s b as b a s R s R s s s s s R s R nan e 12
5. Statement Of QUANIFICALIONS ..........occcccoiciisssssisissssssnssesssssissssonssnisnnsasianisnissssossnsisisssssssessisstsssossarissars 13
APPENAIX: ROSUITIES ......ccoiovsssiserossssssisnosissssnsmssissssssssssssssssssssssassrasssssssamsssasst ssssssssssssssssssonssssssssssssssssss 30
June 19, 2020 () Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS

2200 Range Avenue, Ste. 201
Santa Rosa, CA 95403
707-528-4848

Fax 707-528-0248

1. Cover Letter
June 19, 2020

Doris Toy

District Manager

San Rafael Sanitation District
111 Morphew Street

San Rafael, CA 94901

Subject: Proposal for Engineering Design Services for 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement
Project

Dear Doris Toy:

Schaaf & Wheeler is pleased to propose design, bid and construction support engineering services for the
2020 Sewer Repair and Replacement project to the San Rafael Sanitation District. We have extensive
experience with similar sewer assessment and repair/replacement projects and are currently working on the
Woodland Avenue Sewer Improvement Project for the District. We are excited about the opportunity of
continue working with the District to improve the sewer infrastructure. Our team is positioned to provide the
District with a comprehensive design meeting the goal of repairing and replacing 1.5 miles of sewer main in
Year 2021,

Our knowledge of the District's sewer system, standards, and goals, combined with a robust approach led by
professional engineers proficient in sewer assessment and design, are key to successfully completing the
project efficiently, within schedule and budget. Our proposed team has been providing annual sewer
replacement and rehabilitation design services to multiple agencies throughout the Bay Area in recent years.

The District will benefit from our team’s extensive knowledge and experience with similar projects within
residential and commercial neighborhoods. Schaaf & Wheeler is well versed in selecting construction methods
and identifying construction constraints and restrictions to both achieve the goal of improving the sewer system
and minimizing impacts during construction.

Benjamin L. Shick, PE, will serve as the project manager for this project. Ben has 17 years of experience
improving and replacing sewer infrastructure, and has recent experience working with the District. Curran
Price, PE will be the project design engineer. He has been working alongside Ben to complete several similar
sewer replacement projects over the past 5+ years. | will provide QA/QC services for the project and bring
more than 30 years of experience in sewer planning, design and construction support. We also have specialty
subconsultants for geotechnical investigation and evaluation, surveying, and potholing. Our geotechnical
engineering subconsultant has completed several projects for the District.

The enclosed proposal further discusses our project approach, work plan and team qualifications. We welcome
the opportunity to meet with the District to discuss our proposal and qualifications. Should you need any further
information or have any questions, please contact Ben Shick at (707) 528-4848 or BShick@swsv.com.

Sincerely,
Schaaf & Wheeler

Chake. . dud

Charles D. Anderson, PE
President

Santa Clara « San Francisco  Santa Rosa e« Salinas



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

2. Project Understandlng

The San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe
Repair and Replacement includes reviewing
approximately 8.5 miles of sewer inspection videos,
developing a prioritizing of locations to be rehabilitated

as part of capital improvement projects, developing

project documents for two separate construction project
for approximately $2 to $2.5 million each, and provide
construction support. The CCTV inspection identified
several issues within the existing sanitary sewer pipes
including cracks, fractures, breaks, collapsed pipe, joint
offsets and separations, sags, and infiltration. The goal
of the project is to:

1. Reduce infiltration and potential overflows,

2. Improve pipe conditions to reduce maintenance
needs. g

The project includes condition assessment, topographic
surveying, utility  investigations, geotechnical
investigation, developing bid documents, and assisting
the District throughout the bid and construction phases
of the project.

Schaaf & Wheeler has identified the following key
elements for a successful project:

= Coordination: Schaaf & Wheeler will maintain
close coordination with District staff throughout
the course of the project. Monthly progress
updates will be provided in addition to general
correspondence throughout the course of work.

»  Schedule: The District's goal is to repair and
replace 1.5 miles of pipe in 2021 as part of this
project. To meet this goal, it is important to
expedite the review and assessment of CCTV
data and to provide the District with a prioritized
list of capital improvements. Once the
improvements have been identified the field
investigations and design phase of the project
can commence.

m  Accurate Identification of Utilities: Existing
utilities will need to be accurately identified to
minimize the potential for utility conflicts and
issues during construction. Schaaf & Wheeler
will perform detailed utility investigations and
potholing during the design phase of the
project.

Currently working on the design of sewer
replacements for SRSD at:

' B Street between 1st Street and Taylor

Street;

Woodland Avenue between B & Taylor
Streets and Warner Court;

Woodland Place; and
Octavia Street.

Tasks Included:

topographic surveying,
utility investigations,
geotechnical investigation,
condition assessment,
alternative evaluation,
developing bid documents,

Key Elements for Completing the 2020
Repairs and Replacements Successfully

Detailed review and assessment of CCTV data
Appropriate repair method selection
Prioritization of improvements
Stakeholder engagement

Utility investigations

Supplementary field investigations
Topographic surveys

Minimizing traffic impacts

Efficient and timely public outreach
Close coordination with the specialty
subconsultants

June 19, 2020 1

Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

= Public Outreach: The project is within residential and commercial neighborhoods. Public outreach -
will be necessary to coordinate and notify residents and businesses of the impacts and
expectations during construction.

= Traffic Impact Mitigation: The
project is located within busy
downtown streets. Traffic control
plans, restrictions, and requirements
will be developed during design to
minimize impacts during
construction. It may be necessary to
restrict work hours in certain
locations to minimize impacts.
Impacts to traffic will be taken into
account when  identifying
repair/replacement methods. Schaaf
& Wheeler has extensive experience
with pipe repair/replacement projects

Busy Downtown Streets will Require
Traffic Impact Mitigation
Schaaf & Wheeler brings extensive

in heavily congested areas and in experience with sewer improvement projects
locations where traffic detours are not in busy urban corridors
possible.

June 19, 2020 | 2 Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

3. Project Approach, Work Plan and Level of Effort
Project Approach

Schaaf & Wheeler's objective is to performed a detailed review and assessment of the CCTV data and field
conditions, identify prioritized capital improvements meeting the District’s goals and budget, and provide
the District with cost-effective and constructible solutions that will mitigate existing condition related issues
and reduce maintenance requirements. The proposed Schaaf & Wheeler team has successfully completed
numerous sewer assessment and replacement projects throughout the Bay Area and is familiar with the
District's standards and procedures.

Schaaf & Wheeler will facilitate a project kickoff meeting with the District and necessary stakeholders. The
project goals, scope, budget, and schedule will be discussed to make sure everyone is on the same page.
A data request list will be submitted to the District which will include all information that would be useful
during the assessment and design.

Schaaf & Wheeler firmly believes that engaging all stakeholders including management, public relations,
engineering, and operations & maintenance, early in the process is a great way to ensure all parties are on
informed and everyone is working towards the same goal.

Schaaf & Wheeler’s proposed approach for the design process is identified below and is further described
within the scope of services in the following section.

1. Kickoff Meeting — Is used to get all stakeholders in the same room and work through key
project elements including:

a. Project Goals — Capacity, Engineering Requirements, O&M Requirements, District
standards

b. Project Constraints — Budget, schedule, physical site constraints, utility constraints and
conflicts, traffic coordination

c. Project Expectations — Construction contract type, construction methods, deliverables,
project management/staffing, schedule

2. Capital Improvement Project Identification —
A list of capital improvements will be developed
based on the CCTV inspection data and
District's input. The capital improvements will
identify the existing issues, priority of
improvement, potential rehabilitation methods,
and preliminary construction costs. The data
review, assessment methods, and capital
improvements will be summarized in a report
which will be submitted to the District for review
and approval prior to proceeding with design.

B, B2

MH1G1 = |
6 Vitrifi

Repair method will be selected based on
defect type, severity, and location

10:10:49 AM 22622018

June 19, 2020 3 Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



‘ Engineering Design Services for

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

A flow diagram that identifies a typical evaluation of pipeline repair methods is illustrated in the
figure below. The flow diagram is intended as a general representation of the repair method
selection process and does not include all considerations.

Multiple significant
defects in pipeline?

Is pipe in proper alighment?
High impact area?
Small number of connections?
Trenchless preferred?

Spot Repair /
Local Open
Trench
Replacement

Open Trench
Replacement

Pipe Bursting

General Pipeline Repair Method Selection Flow Diagram

3. Design (35%, 65%, 95%, and Final Bid

Documents) — Each design submittal will be " Deliverabla ]
prepared and submitted as detailed in the L Completion
scope of services below. Stakeholder input is i
critical at each submittal level to ensure that the i} :
project meets the District's expectations and ~ :

goals. Schaaf & Wheeler will schedule and [00”"""9"‘3 Quality

attend design review meetings with the District Resolved Review

after each progress submittal.

4. QA/QC Process — Schaaf & Wheeler will
perform an internal QA/AC review of each

(N9

progress submittal prior to being submitted to Address -
the District. QA/QC staff will review all design Review
documents, visit the site, and work with the - Comments
project design team to identify and correct Yes
potential issues and conflicts. -

5. Bid and Construction Support — Schaaf & [ TEEC{‘.II‘I!eerrIt ]
Wheeler will stay actively involved with the

project throughout the bid and construction ;
phases as detailed in the scope of services ~ Schaaf & Wheeler ‘s Typical QAQC Process
below. to Ensure Quality Deliverables

June 19, 2020 4 Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

N

Schaaf & Wheeler's approach is further described in the Scope of Work below.

Scope of Work

Schaaf & Wheeler's proposed scope of work is
included herein. This scope of services
assumes that two separate sets of bid
documents will be prepared with an estimated

Data Collection and Review
+ Base Maps

> + Field Review

+ CCTVData

combined repair and replacement length of 1.5
miles and construction costs of $2 million to 4;

$2'5 million each. Prelimlnagz Engineering

» Preliminary Design
Memorandum

1§
Design Documents

35% Design
65% Design

Reviews/
Based on Schaaf & Wheeler's experience with Meetings
similar sewer repair projects and initial review
of the PACP reports, the following quantities of
pipe repair and replacement methods are
estimated for the design phase:

1. Geotechnical
Investigations

SMonthly ‘Updates: = .0 o

» 4,000+/- linear feet of open trench 2. Potholing L Beiian
sanitary sewer replacement g o « Final Bid Documents
® 40004/~ linear feet of trenchless =l ]
pipe replacement (bursting, Nz
reaming, HDD) B}dﬁa{::Con&::ructinnSuggoﬂ
= Various spot repairs . Notlc:lt,z':'roceed i
= Manhole rehabilitations - Cangiin ooniet

Work Plan Schematic

Task 1: Project Management and Coordination
1. Schaaf & Wheeler shall be responsible for providing all contract management and quality
control services throughout the duration of the project.

2. Kickoff Meeting: Schaaf & Wheeler will facilitate a project kickoff meeting with the District and
necessary stakeholders. The project goals, scope, budget, and schedule will be discussed to
make sure everyone is on the same page.

3. Schaaf & Wheeler will facilitate design review meetings with the District for each draft submittal
(4 meetings).

Deliverables:
= Project Schedule and updates
» Meeting agendas and minutes for all design and coordination meetings

Task 2: Analysis of District’s CCTV files for existing sewers
1. Review, assessment, and prioritization of approximately 8.5 miles of CCTV sewer inspection
video files and PACP reports. Review of pipe segment locations to determine preliminary pipe
repair methodologies and associated construction costs.

2. Review and assessment of existing pipe sized based on available flow data to determine which
CCTV inspected sewers need to be upsized.

Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER

June 19, 2020 5



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project
N .

3. Develop a report summarizing the data, review process, assessment methodology, and
recommended capital improvements. A preliminary estimate of probable construction cost will
be prepared and included in the report. -

4. Schaaf & Wheeler will facilitate a meeting with the District to review the preliminary report and
capital improvements.

Deliverables:

» Report of recommended capital improvements based on results CCTV inspection. Report
will include prioritized improvements, recommended construction methods, and estimated
construction costs. The capital improvements will be separated into two separate capital
improvement projects with the goal of grouping the improvements based on construction
methods and project locations.

= A draft report will be submitted to the District for review and comment prior to finalizing.
The final report will serve as a basis of design for the capital improvements to be included
in the following design tasks.

Task 3: Design
1. Utility Investigation, Topographic Surveying & Basemapping:

Schaaf & Wheeler's subconsultant, Kier & Wright will perform utility research, topographic
surveying and base mapping for the project. Utility research will consist of contacting all
franchise utility providers for their utility plans within the area of work where digging is required.
Design-level topographic surveying will be performed in locations where detailed topographic
information is needed, such as full pipe replacement with open trench methods. Some repair
methods and locations may not require topographic surveying, or might only require surveying
key elements. Typical topographic surveys will include spot elevations of the ground, curbs,
sidewalks, fences, trees, and utilities that are within the street Right of Way.

The surveying scope and limits of work will be defined following Task 1. This scope assumes
the following:

= Perform utility research for all areas requiring excavation.

= Topographic surveying for approximately 4,000 linear feet of pipe repair/replacement.

= Two days of supplemental field surveys in locations where additional survey data is
needed.

»  Basemap preparation of all locations where topographic surveying is performed.

We anticipate that this scope will be sufficient to prepare detailed design documents for the
improvements; however, if additional topographic surveying is deemed necessary it can be
provided for an additional scope. If desired, additional surveying can be added as an optional
task.

Deliverables:
= Utility maps from service providers
= Topographic surveying basemaps

2. Geotechnical Investigations, Evaluation, and Report:
This scope of services was developed to evaluate the subsurface conditions and provide
recommendations for utility trenching, support, ‘and backfiling. Schaaf & Wheeler's
subconsultant, Miller Pacific will perform the following tasks to assist the design process:

= File review — Miller Pacific will review select information available online and information
available pertinent to the site conditions in the vicinity of the project. In addition, should

wmete20 s Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

prior site information be available, including geotechnical reports, subsurface information,
grading information, test data, etc. will also be reviewed.

= Health and Safety Plan — Miller Pacific will prepare project-specific Health and Safety Plans
(HSP) for the sites pertaining to the specific geotechnical on-site field activities. The HSPs
will provide information including the proper personal safety equipment to be worn on-site,
directions to the nearest public emergency room, and information for the key contact
personnel involved in the project.

» Exploratory Borings — Miller Pacific will spend two days to drill, log and sample exploratory
borings at various sites using conventional truck-mounted hollow-stem auger drilling
equipment. Twelve to twenty conventional borings are anticipated at a typical depth of 10
to 15 feet.

» Traffic Control - Traffic control will be necessary to perform the proposed subsurface
exploration. Signage and a flagman will be provided to caution on-coming cars. Traffic
control plans will be prepared and submitted to the District and/or City for review. This
proposal includes two days of traffic control.

= Utility Clearance - Underground Service Alert (USA) will be notified, and a private utility
locator will be utilized to locate existing utilities prior to drilling.

= Permits, Site Access and Disposal of Drill Spoils — The borings will be backfilled with
cement grout in accordance with the County of Marin’s Environmental Health Services
guidelines. Encroachment permits will be obtained from the City of San Rafael for the
proposed subsurface explorations. Itis assumed that there will be no fee for these permits.
Spoils generated during drilling will be placed in 55-gallon drums, moved to a secure
location near each site or to a location designated by the District, and analytically tested
for off-site disposal. A subcontractor will transport the drums to an appropriate disposal
facility. This proposal assumes up to four drums for disposal at a non-hazardous disposal
facility.

" Laboratory Testing - In-situ Moisture/Density tests, Grain Size Distribution tests, Atterberg
Limit tests, One-Dimensional Consolidation, and Soil Corrosion tests will be performed on
the soil samples.

= “Screening-level” environmental testing and evaluation of spoils in order to identify disposal
options and restrictions, including CAM17 metals, TPH, VOC, SVOC, PCB, pesticides, and
corrosivity. A total of two “composite” samples will be for screening-level testing.

= Engineering Analysis and Report — Site excavation, backfill, shoring, dewatering, and
pavement restoration, and other geological recommendations will be provided. The data
obtained from the field investigation and the laboratory testing program will be utilized in
the engineering analysis. Following the completion of the engineering analysis, a report
will be prepared with conclusions and recommendations. The consultant shall conduct all
field, topographic and control surveys, prepare all preliminary geotechnical studies and
reports, and complete all preliminary design calculations as necessary.

Deliverables:
» Draft and final geotechnical report.

3. Utility Locating:
Schaaf & Wheeler's subconsultant, Best Testlab, Inc. will perform utility locating where potential

utility conflicts exist. Bess Testlab, Inc. will USA all locations to be potholed. This scope
includes potholing 12 to 16 utilities over the course of two days. Additional potholing can be
performed for an additional fee if deemed necessary; however, we do not anticipate the need
for a significant amount of potholing since most of the pipes will likely be replaced at a similar
line and grade to the existing pipes.

June 19, 2020 o Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



‘ : Engineering Design Services for

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project
./

Deliverables:
=  Potholing report

4. 35% Design Submittal:
Schaaf & Wheeler will visit each site identified for improvements to document existing
conditions, take field measurements, inspect manholes (per MACP), and confirm
basemapping.

Preliminary plan and profiles will be developed for the proposed improvements along with
preliminary details for the 35% design submittal.

Schaaf & Wheeler will meet with the District to present and review the 35% design submittal.

Deliverables:
»  35% plans and estimate for two separate sets of bid documents.
n  Letter report summarizing previous review comments and resolution of the review
comments.

5. B65% Design Submittal:
Schaaf & Wheeler will initiate the detailed design effort which will include project layouts of
sewer lines, plan & profiles, construction details, technical specifications, construction cost
estimate, and a construction schedule. Potential utility conflicts will be identified and if deemed
necessary utility potholing will be performed as identified in Task 2.3 above.

Schaaf & Wheeler will facilitate a design review meeting with the District to present and review
the 65% design documents.

Deliverables:
®  B85% plans, specifications, and estimate for two separate sets of bid documents.
»  Letter report summarizing previous review comments and resolution of the review
comments.

6. 95% Design Submittal:
After receiving and reviewing comments from the District, Schaaf & Wheeler will prepare the
95% construction documents. Construction documents will include detailed plans, technical
specifications, and engineer’'s estimates. Schaaf & Wheeler will also review and edit the
District's front end documents.

Schaaf & Wheeler will facilitate a design review meeting with the District to present and review
the 95% design documents.

Deliverables: _
®  95% plans, specifications, and estimate for two separate sets of bid documents.
m Letter report summarizing previous review comments and resolution of the review
comments.

7. Final Bid Documents:
After receiving and reviewing comments from the District, Schaaf & Wheeler will prepare the
final construction documents. Construction documents will include bid-ready plans, technical
specifications, front end documents, and engineer’s estimates. Final plans shall be printed on
22"x34" paper and shall be complete with final signatures ready for reproduction.

»  The plans shall be drawn using AutoCAD

» The schedule of items shall address all items of work as specifically as possible and shall
indicate as precisely as possible the quantities.

June 19, 2020 8 Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

“"
= Schaaf & Wheeler will provide a cost estimate with each design submittal in the format
of the schedule of bid items.
Deliverables:

»  Final PS&E submittal in both paper and electronic (AutoCAD, Word, Excel, and pdf) format
for two contract bid documents.
n A letter report summarizing review comments and the resolution of the review comments

- Task 4: Final Bid Phase and Bid Phase Support (for two contract bid documents)
1. Schaaf & Wheeler will facilitate the pre-bid meeting, set the agenda and respond to questions
concerning the plans, specifications, and estimates prior to bid opening and prepare contract
addenda, if required.

2. Assist the District in coordinating and posting the bid packages and addenda in an online
advertising service.

3. Schaaf & Wheeler will review construction bids received, check references and make a
recommendations to the District for award of construction contracts.

Deliverables:
" Prepare contract addenda, if required, including answers to bidder's questions, for
distribution by an online service for two contract bid documents.
» Prepare bid summary sheet and letter of recommendation to the District for the award of
the construction contract for two contract bid documents.

Task 5: Design Support during Construction (for two contract bid documents)
1. Schaaf & Wheeler will attend the pre-construction conference to respond to questions
concerning the plans, specifications and estimates

2. Schaaf & Wheeler will be available to be called to the site in response to questions arising from
the progress of the work. This scope of services includes up to three (3) site visits per
construction contract (6 site visits total).

3. Schaaf & Wheeler will respond to Requests for Information (RFls) from the contractor when
called for by the District and prepare modifications or revisions that are related to the project’s
original scope and character. The District shall not be billed for nor shall they pay for any
revisions to the plans and specifications that are required due to errors or omissions in the
original contract documents

4. Schaaf & Wheeler will assist District staff in reviewing submittals from the contractor
Schaaf & Wheeler will assist the District in preparation of contract change orders, if necessary

Schaaf & Wheeler will attend weekly construction meetings and record the minutes. This scope
of services includes attendance at up to 20 construction meetings per construction contract (40
meetings total). Additional meeting attendance can be provided for an additional fee if deemed
necessary.

7. The consultant shall participate in the final walk though of the constructed project and assist in
the preparation of “punch list” items in need of work

8. The consultant shall prepare record drawings following construction from mark ups by the
contractor and the resident engineer. Submittal of record drawings shall be on 11"x17" and
22"x34" bond paper and electronic format.

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER

i
June 19, 2020 9 Schaaf & Wheeler



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

Deliverables:
= Response to RFls and Submittals from the contractor
= Modification or revisions that are related to the project original scope and character
= Contract change orders if necessary

Assumptions:

This scope of work and the associated fee estimate is prepared with the following assumptions.

= CCTV data for all of the existing sewer lines within the project limits will be provided by the
District. :
»  The design and coordination of extensive utility relocations will not be required.

Schaaf & Wheeler

June 19, 2020 10
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project
bbbl st il st il AT

] =] o o
Schaaf & Wheeler g S s 5
San Rafael Sanitation District g g| & e 2
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and qolcE Rl Wg e .
Replacement Project E|9| 8| £8 5 8 6
Level of Effort (hours) DA £ = 2 2
June 19, 2020 £ 2 ég g g g
Task 1 | Project Management & Coordination 50 20 0 0 0 0 70
1.1 Project Management & QA/QC Reviews 40 40
1.2 Kickoff Meeling 2 4 6
1.3 Design Review Meetings (4 Meelings) 8 16 24
Task 2 | Analysis of CCTV files for existing sewers 16 30 116 0 0 0 162
21 Review Inspection Videos 4 10 | 80 94
2.2 Develop Capilal Improvement Project List 4 8 16 28
2.3 | Draft and Final Report 8 12 | 20 40
Task 3 | Design 89 182 | 460 123 256 48 1,158
3.1 Utility Investigation, Topographic Surveying &
Basemapping 4 16 40 256 316
3.2 Geotechnical Investigations, Evaluations, and Report 2 6 115 123
3.3 Utility Localing 4 8 48 60
3.4 | 35% Design Submittal 15 | 40 | 120 175
35 | 65% Design Submittal 32 | e0 | 180 8 260
3.6 95% Design Submittal 24 | 40 | 100 164
3.7 | Final Bid Documents ' 8 | 20 [ 32 60
Final Bid Phase and Bid Phase Support
Task 4.1 | (1st Construction Contract) 8 6 6 0 0 0 20
4.1.1 | Bid Phase Support 4 2 6
4.1.2 | post Bid Package 2 6
41.3 | Review Bids 2 4
Final Bid Phase and Bid Phase Support
Task 4.2 | (2nd Construction Contract) 8 6 6 0 0 0 20
4.21 [ Bid Phase Support 4 2 6
4.2.2 | post Bid Package 2 6 8
423 | Review Bids 2 4 6
TOTAL DESIGN AND BID PHASE 171 244 | 588 123 256 48 1,430
Design Support during Construction
Task 5.1 | (1st Construction Contract) 38 86 36 0 0 0 160
51.1 | Preconstruction conference 2 4 6
5.1.2 | site Visits During Construction (3) 6 12
5.1.3 | Respond to RFls 4 12
5.14 | Submittal Review 6 16 | 24 46
51.5 | Assist with Contract Change Orders 2 6
51.6 [ weekly Meeling Altendance (20) 8 40 48
5.1.7 | Final Walk Through and Punch List 6 8 14
5.1.8 Record Drawings 4 12 16
Design Support during Construction
Task 5.2 | (2nd Construction Contract) 38 86 36 0 0 0 160
5.2.1 Preconstruction conference 2 4 6
5.2.2 | sijle Visils During Construction (3) 6 6 12
523 | Respond to'RFls 4 8 12
5.24 | submittal Review 6 16 | 24 46
5.2.5 | Assist with Contract Change Orders 2 4 6
5.28 Weekly Meeting Attendance (20) 8 40 48
5.2.7 | Final Walk Through and Punch List 6 8 14
5.2.8 | Record Drawings 4 12 16
TOTAL DESIGN, BID AND CONSTRUCTION TASKS 247 | 416 660 123 256 48 1,750
i 2000 1" Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



HAANIONY TIAID DNILTASNOD

IS[IYM 9 JERYIS e 0202 ‘61 2unr

J VZ/6Z/0L U4 LZZZ/ISuoly  sAep g9l uojansuos Buung poddng ubiseq pue pig| 92
J€5 syewmog udisaq [eul Hugng shep 0 ~ sjuawnooq ubisaq [euld pugns ST

6T /el s Lz/ehE ud
617/ H8 udisaq jeud lzeligUd  1zeze N shep oz sjustinoo ubisag |euld (L | 6T
61/2 _luswzud  lzelWzud  shepo o Bugasiy MalAay ublsad %56 | €T
: bZ/6WT U4 LIz WON  sAep oL [BRILIANS %56 Monsy PusIa | T
/-8 udisaq %56 LGz ud  lpL N sAep 6 . [Epwgns ublsea %g69€ | IT
. LMLUd lMbud sAep 0 Bupasiy maney Ublsad %G9 | 0
bZ/M L ud 0z/bz/zk WN shep o1 - BRGNS %59 Malnay J1SIa 61
QWL Ud  OTE/LLUON  SAepOE - [epugng ubisaq %S 81
oZ/YLLUd omg/Lbud sAepQ o _ Bunssiy mensy ubisad %se | LT
0Z/9/LL U4 0Z/9Z/0L oW sRepol S [BRIWANS %G5S MAlAsy PUsid | 9T
OZETOL U4 0Z/LE/g UON  SAep Op| [epiwigng ubiseg %GE v | ST
0Z/pCL Ud| 0Z/6/LL WO SKep 02 Bugeso] Amnige | ¥T
0zZ/oZ/LL U4 0Z/bE/g UOW  sAep 09 wnpuelowsaly ubiseq pue suonebisany| [eAUYIReaD ize | ET

0Z/6/0L U3 0Z/LE/8 UON sAep og Buddewsseg pue ‘Bukeaing olydelbodo | ‘uonebnsanul AumN 1}'e [4]

; LZ/6HE U4 0Z/LE/B WO SAeP Gl ubjseq :gysel| 1T

v/6 .2 0Z/v/6 144 0Z/v/6 144 shepg poday [euld Jwagng ot

0Z/v/61d 0Z/TE/BUON shepg t.o%w_ [euld aledaid 6

82/8 0z/gz/8 U4 0z/gT/g ud shep o Bunesiy meney PuIsIa 8

0Z/8Z/8 U4, OT/LWBUON  sAep ol Hoday Yeig meinay Jouisia L

oZ/vlg U4 0Zre/8 WO sfep 0L poday [eul4 pue yeiqd :€Z 9

0Z/V/L U4 O0Z/OT/ZUWOWN  SAEp 0L 1517 1obld Juswanoidw| [elided dojensd 2T g

| oWIMIMA OzEmI UWOW  shep gl SO8pIA Uooadsu] MalAsy 11T ¥

! 4 _ 0Z/7/6 U4 0Z/6Z/9 UOIN  SAep 0g se|ld ALDD Jo sisffeuy :z ysel| ¢

LZ/6Z/0L U4 0/6T/S WON  SABp 05E ~ uopeUIpIcO3 pue juewebeueyy joefold *LMseL| T

o e 0Z/6T/9 WO 0Z/6T/9 UON shep o bupaagy goyaryivefold| 1T
[Tv IO [70¢ € B0 J0¢ "¢ 2D [20¢ 'L 0 PZ0¢ v A0 L0t € H0 PLoC ¢ ysiuig ueys|  uopeing swenysel|  ql

a|npayas joafoid v

hum.wogn_H:mEmumB_mm_unmthmmmn..hn:.m\smm.owcw
10j sadirses ubiseq Buussuibug




Firm Name

Year of Establishment

Engineering Design Services for

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

5. Statement of Qualifications
About Schaaf & Wheeler

Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEERS

Project Manager/Main Contact Benjamin L. Shick, PE
Phone: (707) 528-4848; Email: bshick@swsv.com

and Years in Business

Type of Organization

Number of Permanent Employees 35

Company Certifications

Certification No. 40527

1985 — 35 Years in Civil Engineering Design

Corporation, Incorporated in California

State of California Certified Small Business Enterprise (SBE)

Schaaf & Wheeler is a civil engineering firm focused in water resources. With over thirty years of
commitment to solving flood control, stormwater, wastewater, potable water, and recycled water problems;
Schaaf & Wheeler is recognized by public and private sector clients for its
value-adding engineering. Certified as a small business enterprise by the
State of California, Schaaf & Wheeler engineers operate from four locations:
Santa Clara, San Francisco, Santa Rosa, and Salinas.

Our Areas of Focus: Schaaf & Wheeler has ten areas of focus:

Waste water system master planning, engineering, and design of
conveyance systems, including lift stations and pump stations;
Stormwater management and drainage services, including master
planning, engineering, and design of urban storm drain systems and
pump stations;

Potable water system master planning, modeling, engineering; and
design of supply, storage, distribution systems, including tanks and
booster stations;

Recycled water systems planning, engineering, and design; including
reclamation feasibility studies and customer retrofits;

Hydrology and hydraulics analyses, including site evaluations and
modeling;

Flood control analyses, including floodplain studies and channel design,
filing of letters of map revision, and FEMA coordination;

Watershed assessments, erosion and sediment control, and
bicengineered channel stabilization;

Water quality, including design or review of best management practices
(BMPs) for storm water treatment and hydromodification flow control
facilities;

Construction management, construction site observation, construction
inspection services, value engineering, construction cost analysis, and
constructability reviews;

Program management, including management of subconsultants,
containment of schedule and cost, and communications with client and
stakeholders.

i
|

. %
@ Santa Rosa |

A

“1San Francisco

; : 'BlSa_nta Clara

v’ Recently completed Sewer
Design Projects for:

Town of Corte Madera

City of Milly Valley

City of Belmont

City of San Mateo

v’ Proficient in CIP Design Bid
and Construction Support

June 19, 2020 . 13 Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



A

N

Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

A. Experience

Schaaf & Wheeler’s Experience in Wastewater Infrastructure Planning, Design and
Construction Support

Wastewater — Sewer Design - The following table and map present Schaaf & Wheeler’s experience in
sanitary sewer replacement/rehabilitation, trunk alignment study and design.

The represented
projects include:

inspection,
trenchless
technology,
CIPP,

pipe reaming,
pipe bursting,
horizontal
directional drilling
(HDD)

siphon design
condition
assessment,
surveying and
mapping,
constructability
review, and
construction
support

) T
v
o |

bl
N
B RIS
] : F Force Maln Appurtanance Design |
Ay 4 "‘ SZiSRidane UGS oo b
" e Harbor Drive Sewer Rehabilitation
i o | Desgnandcs

L R —

Ok.”Corta Madera

Sewer Designh Experience
Length of Pipes Completed

<10,000 ft
< 20,000 ft

'r' _Mill Valle
*’J:\». . y vid

"
\' Sanitary Sewer i

Assessment and
Rapalr Deslgn and CS

J B'érkeley

; SAN |
| FRANLI&.( u

g e AT
TEA Belmont Sewer

éouth Tal; k Sanitary Eéx;mr Aésessmant

Mountain View

M

I Force Maln Reverse FIOW "

'{ Sanitary Sewer | | and Repair Design and CS \

'\ Relief Design \ o

G AN / Shoreway Sewer i . i

o Replacement / A
i M'rateo \_\ A DesignandCS | .Ja“\‘-l_.M-.i E-D..l\ ; &)
y 1', ! > : 4 Shoreline Sewage PS |
IRy %7 X~ Assessment & Trunk %,
EI Camino Real Sanllary 2 elen y :| il‘fwerff?nment Study t;,%
Sewer Rehabilitation / A Vi
Deslign and CS ‘Belmont v -

4

“/ g Le;oné Drive
W Sanitary Sewer
-'/, > Design and CS

< 30,000 ft
< 40,000 ft
< 50,000 ft

O Project Extent

® ® ® © O

. | Rehabilitation |, ./ :
) L |DesignandCs | n. @ ¢
Kingridge Sanilary | = e o i
Sewer Line Improvements ) {5a0) X : Q | : 1
Design and CS g ,pp Ve X 130
S 0 _‘{ El Camlno Real i Santa Clara
Sanitary Sewer
Improvement and the
Calabazas Creek
CabnlloAve
SaysielPon D“S"!“__ Sewer Replacement
A Design and cs| &l SANTA
I A T O] =R GUARA
A Morgan Hill
: [233] Trunk Sewer
™ Z_ R #2 Design \
i) ‘ x N
N\ gl 3 Morgan Hill
%‘i | . E| ‘\Q ;
G % o
\ L SANTA ] V!
i L “CRUZ ! | )
)

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

Schaaf & Wheeler Experience in Design of Wastewater Infrastructure

Services Provided

b [ = = [ =
Project Client 5 S a OF PSS 10
‘ £ @ @ © E® 9o ©
o o N 3 Ve o St
28 25 8266 o G 88 3 B8
© O © = = S e
52 38 2 §% & 5§56 28 ©» 58
o< 00O oo FO O Oo wuw m OO
g?r:}g?:{y Sewer Improvement City of Morgan Hil . * - - . ° - ° -
Sanitary Sewer Assessment and : ;
Repair Design and CS Gity-of Mill¥aley ¢ ° ¢ ¢ - - . . .
Wopdland Sewer Improvement S?n Bafael Sanitation & = & . - ” "
Project District
Harbor Drive Sewer . -
Rehabilitation Design and CS, gf‘]\']q';fg 8?&:{?‘ No.2 o & o e el
CIP Project #18-201 y
El Camino Real Sanitary Sewer ;
Rehabilitation Design and ¢S |1ty of San Mateo AE I BFEE YL B,
Leong Drive Sanitary Sewer . -
Design and CS City of Mountain View L] ® ] L] L] L] ® L]
Pump Station Q Force Main East Bay Municipal . . ° = - N
Reverse Flow Project Utility District
Force Main Appurtenance Ross Valley Sanitary ° ° s - . s a
Projects District
Sewer and Water Replacement  City of Belmont and
Design and CS Mid-Peninsula Water ° o ° L] o @ ) ®
District
Shoreway Sewer Replacement . :
Design and CS City of Belmont ° L] ] o L ° @
2018 Sanitary Sewer
Rehabilitation Project — Various  City of San Mateo e L] L] ® L] e ° L] L]
Locations
Force Main Appurtenance Ross Valley Sanitary A é < . - "
Design District
Shoreline Sewage PS
Assessment & Trunk Sewer City of Mountain View L L L] ®
Alignment Study
El Camino Real Sanitary Sewer
Improvement, and the BRE Properties & City
Calabazas Creek Sewer Siphon  of Santa Clara ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ ° ° ¢
Design
Cabrillo Ave. Sewer :
Replacement Design and C§ | C 1Y Of Santa Clara = =L w w0
Belmont Sewer Rehabilitation .
Design and CS City of Belmont o ° ° ° @ ° ° © L]
Kingridge Sanitary Sewer Line ;
Improvements Design and CS CityorSan Maiae o = - = = . 3 e .
Soqth Trur_1k Sanitary Sewer City of San Mateo & P o & pe - - o
Relief Design
Ss;vg:;gﬁstructure Evaluation City of Morgan Hill i e ® & e - ” - .
!\Slsgig;nn Hill Trunk Sewer #2 City of Morgan Hil - > . " " ° ° -
June 19, 2020 15 Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



A

N

Engineérr‘ng Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

B. Relevant Project Experience

Woodland Sewer Improvement Project, San Rafael Sanitation District (2019 — 2020)

£ LT TG - NIV

Client and Contact: Contract Value: Team Members:
Karen Chew $237,213 Benjamin L. Shick, PE

Senior Civil Engineer
San Rafael Sanitation District

Curran L. Price, PE

Construction Cost: $1,424,00 Charles D. Anderson, PE

111 Morphew Street (estimate) Jonathan Ondracek
San Rafael, CA 94915 The design was completed in -
Ph: 415.458.5369 time and budget. SHbag L omEY

Karen.Chew@cityofsanrafael.org

HEEALTT

Kier & Wright
Bess Testlab

Key Elements:

v Sanitary sewer replacement

Hydraulic Analysis

Geotechnical investigations and evaluation

Utility investigation, potholing, utility
S e relocation, efc.

Lateral Re-routing

NN N

N

<

Public Outreach
v' Bid and construction support services

The Woodland Avenue Sewer Improvement Project includes pipe replacement, rehabilitation, adjusting
pipe slope, and re-routing laterals. The project is located along B Street, Woodland Avenue, Warner Court,
Woodland Place, and Octavia Street. The existing sewer infrastructure is in poor condition, has flat slopes,
and requires significant maintenance. The goal of the project is to:

Redirect flows from Warner Court towards B Street,

Eliminate backyard sewer mains along Woodland Place,
Improve the pipe slopes to meet minimum velocity requirements,
Improve the condition of the sewer infrastructure,

Schaaf & Wheeler coordinated topographic surveying, utility investigations and geotechnical investigation.
Our engineers conducted condition assessment and developed alternatives. Currently, our engineers are
preparing design documents for the project.

June 19, 2020 16

Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

Shoreway Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation, City of Belmont, 2017 - 2019

Client and Contact: Contract Value: Team Members:
Bozhena Palatnik $129,000 Benjamin L. Shick, PE
Associate Civil Engineer Construction Cost (2018): Curran L. Price, PE
Department of Public Works $1,857,000 Jonathan F. Ondracek
City of Belmont .

1 Twin Bities Lane The design was completed in Subconsultants:
Belmont, CA 94002 time and budget. Kier & Wright

Ph: 650.595.7463 Bess Testlab
bpalatnik@belmont.gov

Key Elements:

v" Sanitary sewer rehabilitation and replacement, 8" to 18"

v CCTV data review, evaluation, and prioritization to
identify project

v' Hydraulic Analysis and Modeling of sewer system

v' Utility investigation, potholing, utility relocation, etc.

v Easement evaluation and relinquishment

v

Deep linear excavations within poor soils (Bay Mud) and
high ground water

v" Construction support services

Schaaf & Wheeler assisted the City of Belmont with the
assessment of the feasibility of eliminating the existing
sanitary sewer pump station along Shoreway Drive by
installing a new deeper gravity sewer main. The feasibility
analysis included detailed topographic  surveying,
geotechnical investigations, detailed utility investigations,
sewer system modeling, and alternative evaluation.

The alternative of constructing a new 13 foot deep 18" PVC
sewer main, demolishing and removing the existing sewer pump station, and re-routing all sewer laterals
was selected as the most feasible and economical solution. Subsequently Schaaf & Wheeler developed
detailed construction documents for the design and provided bid and construction support services.

Shoreway Drive is located in an area of shallow Bay Mud, high ground water, congested utilities, heavy
traffic, and it parallels U.S. 101. Schaaf & Wheeler developed detailed construction documents identifying
the existing conditions and requirements for excavation, trenching, shoring, dewatering, and backfilling.

The Shoreway sewer project was successfully designed and constructed within budget and schedule.
The project resulted in significant long-term savings by eliminating an existing sewer pump station and
reducing the operation and maintenance of the previously undersized flat sloped sewer mains (two sewer
mains were replaced with one larger and deeper sewer main).

City of Belmont Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Projects, 2014, 2015, 2016 and 2017. Contract Value:
2014 - $98,840; 2015 - $567,000; 2016 - $456,961; 2017 - $194,000; Construction Cost: $1,530,000 (2015
Project). Construction Dates: 2015 - Current.

The City of Belmont selected Schaaf & Wheeler to evaluate, prioritize, and design the rehabilitation and
replacement of their high priority gravity sewer lines throughout the City. Construction methods include pipe

June 19, 2020 17 Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

| Linear Feet of Sewer _ Year ‘
2.5 miles of City sewer gravity lines and | 2014 |

| associated manholes _ ‘ !

' 2 miles of gravity sewer lines and associated = 2015 1

‘ manholes ‘ ‘

| 5 miles of gravity sewer lines and associated | 2016

| manholes _

' 2.5 miles of sewer rehabilitation | 2017

These sewer lines (some of them, gravity sewer lines) are
located throughout the City in back yard easements and in City
streets. Schaaf & Wheeler also applied for and obtained two
separate Caltrans Encroachment Permits for sewer main and
manhole work within El Camino Real.

As part of the Belmont sewer rehabilitation projects, Schaaf & Wheeler worked with Bess Testlabs for
potholing and CCTV inspection.

El Camino Real Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation, City of San Mateo (2017 — 2020)

Client and Contact: Contract Value: Team Members:
Jimmy Vo $500,000 Benjamin L. Shick, PE
City of San Mateo Construction Cost (2020): Glen M. Anderson, PE
330 W. 20th Avenue $3,100,000 Curran L. Price, PE
San Mateo, CA 94403 . g Larry D. Johnson, PE
Ph: 650.522.7300 The design was completed in  Jonathan F. Ondracek
jvo@cityofsanmateo.org time and budget.

Subconsultants:
Kier & Wright
Bess Testlab

Key Elements:

v 9,500+ LF of sanitary sewer rehabilitation,
6" to 18"

v CCTV data review and evaluation for all sewer
infrastructure within and connected to EI Camino
Real.

v' Manhole inspections and rehabilitation design
v Evaluation of condition related deficiencies

v' Rehabilitation with cured-in-place pipe (CIPP),
- S vk pipe bursting, open-trench, and spot repairs
Eracture Longitud pol] v

19505, FT 2 : 4 Utility investigation

B,

The project includes addressing all of the City’s condition related deficiencies along the El Camino Real
corridor. Schaaf & Wheeler reviewed and evaluated the condition of all the City’s sanitary sewer pipes and
manholes within and adjacent to EI Camino Real and developed a recommended improvement project to
address all significant condition related issues. Subsequently Schaaf & Wheeler designed the rehabilitation
and replacement of 9,050 LF of pipe and the rehabilitation and replacement of 110+ manholes.

umets220 . 1w Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

Rehabilitation methods were primarily cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) and spot repairs; however, pipe bursting
and open trench replacement methods were also used.

Tasks included:

®  Review and evaluation of CCTV data
Manhole inspections and rehabilitation
Develop and design recommended improvements
Replacement of sewer lines in easements with tight access
Sewer line rehabilitation with cured-in-place pipe (CIPP)
Sewer main replacement

The work included geotechnical investigations, easement research, Utility investigations, and Caltrans
Encroachment Permit.

The project required close coordination with the City and the City's consultants working on additional sewer
improvement projects in the area to ensure there weren't conflicts and overlap between projects. The
project also required a detailed Caltrans Encroachment Permit application which was successfully handled
and obtained by Schaaf & Wheeler. ‘

Sanitary Sewer Repair Project, City of Mill Valley (2019 — 2020)

Client and Contact: Contract Value: $129,495 Key Personnel:
Ahmed Aly : : Benjamin L. Shick, PE
Public Works ConstveliSn Cost O A ATE Curran L. Price, PE
City of Mill Valley Jonathan F. Ondracek
26 Corte Madera Avenue -

Mill Valley, CA 94941
Ph: 415-384-4755
AAly@ci.alameda.ca.us

USMH: VD6 Key Elements:

DSMH: vnz,;,'_r - ; v' 6,700+ LF of sanitary sewer rehabilitation within
- o ‘ busy downtown streets and backyard easements

Sanitary sewer infrastructure evaluations
Utility Investigation and CCTV

Sanitary sewer design and CS

Open trench replacement

Pipe bursting

RN RN

The City identified multiple “Hot Spot” locations where there are considerable maintenance and condition
related issues throughout the City. Most of the "Hot Spot” sewer lines are located on steep hillsides and
backyard easements where access is limited and difficult. Schaaf & Wheeler assessed each location to
determine the cause of the issues, assessed the condition of the pipe and connecting manholes, and
provided capital improvement recommendations along with estimates of probable construction costs.

Subsequently, Schaaf & Wheeler conducted additional surveys, investigations, and inspections at each
project location to develop detailed bid documents for the recommended improvements.

June 19. 2020 19 Schaaf & Wheeler
' CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

The proposed construction methods include open trench replacement, spot repairs, pipe bursting, and
cured-in-place pipe rehabilitation. The bid documents included detailed plan and profiles of pipes to be
rehabilitated and replaced, construction details, photographs and descriptions of existing site
improvements, details and descriptions for construction site access issues and restrictions, and technical
specifications. The project is currently under construction.

Harbor Drive Sewer Rehabilitation, Town of Corte Madera, Sanitary District No. 2
of Marin County (2019 — 2020)

Client and Contact: Contract Value: $234,060 Key Personnel:
Fernanda Stefakick . Benjamin L. Shick, PE
Project Manager °°’!5"“°“‘.";‘ Cost: $3'°°°'°°f°2 Curran L. Price, PE
Town of Corte Madera (estimate, bidding in summer of 2020) Jonathan F. Ondracek
300 Tamalpais Drive

Corte Madera, CA 94925

Ph: 415.927.5057

fstefanick@tcmmail.org

Key Elements:

7,100+ LF of sanitary sewer replacement
Sanitary sewer infrastructure evaluations
Utility Investigation and CCTV

Condition assessment

Sanitary sewer design and CS

CIPP

Open trench replacement

Pipe bursting

T e T T T T

Schaaf & Wheeler recently completed the design of the District's CIP Project #18-201 — Harbor Drive Sewer
Rehabilitation project to replace existing sewer mains within the Harbor Drive, Seawolf Passage, and
Madera Del Presidio areas. The project included:

CCTV inspection, evaluation, and prioritization of existing sewer mains,

Development of project alternatives to address condition and slope related issues

Bid documents for sewer main, laterals, and manhole replacement.

Following the construction of the sewer project Schaaf & Wheeler will be developing bid
documents for storm drain improvements and pavement replacement along the same streets.

The project includes a total of 7,100+ LF of existing 6” and 8" VCP pipes that were installed between 1962
and 1976. The project area is located within a fill zone with poor soils and sagging pipes.

June 19, 2020 20 Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

C. Team Organization

We have put together a dedicated team for the San Rafael Sanitation District (SRSD). The team will be led
by Ben Shick, PE, who has successfully completed multiple sewer assessment and repair projects for
municipalities throughout the Bay Area. Ben is currently working with SRSD on the Woodland Avenue
Sewer Improvement Project.

Detailed resumes of the entire team are attached as Appendix.

Organization Chart

San Rafael
Sanitation District

!

Benjamin L. Shick, PE
Project Manager

|
5 } Charles D. Anderson, PE 1
.% Principal-in-Charge |

Schaaf & Wheeler , | Schaaf & Wheeler ;
Schaaf & Wheeler Staff, Subconsultants e
Engineering Staff Miller Pacific Engineering Group
Curran L. Price, PE: Associate Engineer Geotechnical Engineering
Project Design Engineer Kier & Wright
Fidel T. Salamanca, PE: Senior Engineer - Survey and Mapping

Project Engineer

Jonathan F. Ondracek: Assistant Engineer
Engineering Support

Best TestLabs.
Potholing/Utility Locating

June 19 2020 21 Schaaf & Wheeler
' CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



A

Engineering Design Services for

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

N
D. Our Team

Schaaf & Wheeler engineers bring extensive experience in design and construction support of wastewater
infrastructure. Our team is familiar with the District’s procedures, standards, and regulations. Our approach,
qualifications, and experience with the District will result in an efficient and constructible project that meet

the your budget and goals.

Benjamin L. Shick, PE - Project Manager

Our results-oriented team for the San Rafael
Sanitation District is under the strong leadership of
Benjamin L. Shick, P.E. Ben has more than 17
years of experience in infrastructure planning and
design of waste water and stormwater conveyance
systems, pump stations and water supply and
distribution systems. These projects have involved
construction methods including pipe bursting,
horizontal directional drilling, open trench excavation,
and CIPP lining.

Is an accomplished Project Manager — Benjamin L.
Shick, PE is a vice president and an owner at Schaaf
& Wheeler. He will be the Project Manager and
provide his expertise in alternative analyses, design
and construction support for the sanitary and storm
sewer rehabilitation projects. Ben has served as
project manager and project engineer of gravity
sewers, storm drains, forcemains, sewage lift stations,
stormwater pumping stations, floodplain investigation,
shoreline protection studies, drainage studies,
channel design and modeling, water rights permitting,
wetland analysis and design, small bridge design for
public agencies throughout the Bay Area. His
management skills in every phase of the project - from
feasibility study to construction documentation and
construction support — help complete the project within
schedule and budget.

Ben's sewer rehabilitation/replacement = projects
generally include siphon rehabilitation and
replacement, manhole rehabilitation and replacement,
pipe replacement, pipe rehabilitation, pipe placed on
structural supports, efc.

Education

BSCE, Montana
State University-
Bozeman

MSCE, Montana
State University-
Bozeman

Licenses/
Registrations
Registered Civil
Engineer
California C68813

Affiliations

| American Society

of Civil Engineers

Floodplain
Management
Association
Years with Firm:
16+

He has extensive experience obtaining Encroachment Permits from
Caltrans. Ben is proficient in water resources modeling tools: AutoCAD,
WaterCAD, HEC-RAS, HEC-HMS, GeoRAS, MOUSE, and ArcGIS 9.0.

Some of his recent relevant projects are:

= Woodland Avenue Sewer Improvement Project, San Rafael

Sanitation District

Harbor Drive Sewer Rehabilitation Project, Town of Corte Madera
= Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation and Replacement Projects — City of

Belmont

= Sanitary Sewer Repair Project, City of Mill Valley

= E| Camino Real Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation - City of San Mateo

Award-Winning Projects |
I v Water/ Sewer Main '

" Qualification Highlights:
- ™ Knowledge and

Experience in Open Cut
and Trenchless
Technologies

| = Currently working on the

Woodland Avenue Sewer
Project for SRSD.

Replacement Project
Completed for Mid-
Peninsula Water District/
City of Belmont, APWA
Honor Award for 2019

v’ Shoreway Sewer
Replacement Project
Completed for City of
Belmont, Project of the
Year Award for 2019

June 19, 2020 22

Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

»

¢

North Road Pump Station Rehabilitation Project — City of Belmont

Belmont Sewer and Water Main Replacement — City of Belmont and Mid-Peninsula Water District
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Projects 2015 - Ongoing — City of San Mateo

Force Main Appurtenance Projects — Ross Valley Sanitary District

El Camino Real Sanitary Sewer/Water Improvement Project — BRE Properties/City of Santa Clara
Storm Drain Improvement, Phase 1 and 2 — Town of Woodside

Ageno-Brisa Storm Drain Design — City of Livermore

Cabrillo Avenue Sewer Main Abandonment and Replacement — City of Santa Clara

Kingridge Sanitary Sewer and Storm Drain Improvement Project — City of San Mateo

Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Evaluation and Design — Town of Hillsborough

Rehabilitation and Replacement Design of 32 Sanitary Sewer Pump Station — City of Alameda

Project Role: Ben has in-depth experience in cost control and optimizing resources to complete projects
within schedule and budget. He will be responsible for day-to-day project management and design oversight
for the entire length of the project. Ben will hold regular team meetings to make sure issues are resolved
effectively and to allocate resources to critical tasks. He will work closely with the District staff to make sure
contractual and procedural issues are identified and resolved.

Other Key Team Members

Charles D. Anderson, P.E. — Principal-in-Charge and Quality Control

and Quality Assurance - Chuck is the president and an owner of Schaaf | Experience Highlights:

& Wheeler, He will provide expert peer review and QA/QC for the project. | « Completed Design and CS
He brings 30 years of experience encompassing the areas of wastewater | for CIP Projects sirice 1998
conveyance and pumping, stormwater collection and pumping, water | ‘
supply and distribution, flood mapping and protection design, tide gate
structures, FEMA requirements, sea level rise assessment, and |
groundwater and surface water hydrology. Chuck has led numerous |
multidisciplinary project teams to deliver responsively and responsibly
from concept verification to design and construction. He has managed = " Completed Award Winning

»  Proficient at Providing
QA/QC for Infrastructure
Projects, especially Storm
and Sewer Design

two large award winning levee projects for the City of Foster City and San Projects

Mateo. He has interacted often with FEMA, having completed numerous | ® Completed Design of more
flood insurance studies (FIS) and letters of map revision (LOMRs) on than 40 Stornwater and
behalf of public and private clients. His management skills in every phase Wastewater Pump Stations.

of the project - from feasibility studies to construction document | Years of Experience: 30
preparation and construction support - help complete projects within |
schedule and budget. :

Project Role: Chuck will ensure quality control and quality assurance for all deliverables of the project. He
will perform quality control several times throughout the project to minimize the need to fix problems further
along in the project. Chuck will work with the Project Manager at Schaaf & Wheeler to provide critical
reviews of alternatives and design methods. He will also scrutinize improvements for constructability and
cost.
. . . ; . Qualification Highlights:
Curran L. Price, PE - Project Design Engineer. Our proposed project |~ . ;- \vie600 PACP,
design engineer — Curran Price brings forth 12 years of in-depth | i
. i ; : ; o | MACP and LACP certified,
experience in infrastructure design including sewer rehabilitation, | Certi
s : o . | Certificate #U-815-07000537.
wastewater facilities, flood protection, water pipelines, shoring systems, | Pigi IR f
bridges, buildings, transportation, and slope stabilization projects. | !’%¢c! E"g,’”e;’ _f‘?’ A"""f
Curran has been involved with all phases from project conception to | Rehabilitation Projects for:
document preparation and construction support. He has completed the = *  Woodland Averuie Sewer

design of over 50 constructed projects. Curran is adept at preparing =~ Improvement Project, SRSD |
plans and specifications, performing calculations, cost estimates, and | Harbor Drive Sewer ?
site inspections. Rehabilitation Project,

June 19, 2020 23 Schaaf ((.'49_)_, Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

He has been the Design Manager for the City of Belmont Annual Sewer
Rehabilitation Projects, and was Project Engineer for the 2018 sewer

rehabilitation projects for City of San Mateo. Currently, Curran Price is |

working on the design of sewer main rehabilitation for the City of Mill
Valley and Town of Corte Madera and sanitary sewer pump station
upgrades for_the City Alameda.

Project Role: Curran will be the lead design engineer for the project,
taking the lead on performing field work and detailed design documents.

Fidel T. Salamanca, P.E. - Project Engineer — Fidel Salamanca is a
senior engineer at Schaaf & Wheeler with more than 7 years of
experience in designing water mains, pump stations for sanitary sewer

Town of Corte Madera

Sewer Rehabilitations - City
of Mill Valley

Sewer Rehabilitations - City
of Belmont

Sewer Rehabilitations - City |
of San Mateo f

' Years of Experience: 12

and stormwater systems, open channels, culverts, and stormwater |
networks. He is currently managing the design and construction support |
for five (5) water mains for Contra Costa Water District. He has completed |
the campus-wide Water System Pipe Replacement preliminary design for

seven (7) water mains for Sandia National Laboratories. He has valuable
experience in storm drain master planning, modeling, analyzing and

planning urban stormwater systems. He has completed Storm Drain |

Master Plans for the Cities of Alameda, El Cerrito, East Palo Alto, Palo
Alto, Orinda, Mountain View, North San Jose, the Town of Moraga and

County of Santa Cruz, Zone 5 & 6. Fidel has been involved in water |

quality related projects and has assisted trash capture feasibility studies |

for Bay Area cities. He assisted with the design of the trash capture |

devices for the City of Mountain View and San Jose. Fidel is also
proficient in modeling software including ArcGIS, AutoCAD, EPA SWMM5, HY8, MIKE URBAN, MIKE 21,
BAHM, HAMMER, Microstation, HEC-RAS, geo-RAS, HEC-HMS, geo-HMS, and HEC-1.

Project Role: F:del will be the project engineer and assist with the alternatives, design and construction

support.

Jonathan Ondracek — Project Engineer - Jonathan is an assistant
engineer at Schaaf & Wheeler. He has experience in modeling and design
for wastewater and stormwater infrastructure projects. He is proficient in
running hydraulic models to solve drainage issues and conduct level
surveys for small design projects. Jonathan is currently working with Ben
and Curran on the Belmont sewer and storm drain rehabilitation projects
and San Mateo sewer rehabilitation projects. He is experienced at

developing wastewater and stormwater projects from conception to |

completion. His previous projects have included design of bioretention
systems and design of new storm sewer to alleviate drainage concerns.
He has experience managing consultants for large-scale multidisciplinary
projects during the design and construction phases. His modeling and
design software skills include AutoCAD Civil3d, AutoCAD LT, EPASWMM
5, Mike Urban, and ArcGIS.

Qualifications Highlights:

Currently working on
design-build water pipe
design for Contra Costa
Water District

Water Mains Design for
Sandia National
Laboratories

Assessed and designed
wastewater and stormwater
pump stations

NPDES Compliance

Years of Experience: 7+

Experience Highlights:

Modeling and Design for
CIP Projects

Woodland Avenue Sewer .
Improvement Project, SRSD |
Town of Corte Madera l
Sewer Rehabilitations - Cily
of Mill Valley

Working on City-Wide .
Strom and Sewer
Rehabilitation Projects for
Belmont . w

Project Role: Jonathan will be the engineering assistant and assist with the field investigations, design and

construction support.

June 19, 2020

Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

Subconsultant Key Personnel

Scott Stephens, PE, GE - Geotechnical Engineering — Scott Stephens of Miller Pacific
Engineering Group (MPEG) is the Senior Project Manager and Reviewer for Geotechnical and
Geo-Civil projects at MPEG. He has prepared numerous geotechnical investigations,
geotechnical planning reports, geo-civil designs, environmental impact studies, and serves as
a Peer Reviewer for several local governmental agencies. Scott has worked on hundreds of
sanitary district and water district projects throughout Marin County. These geologic and
geotechmca[ projects have been performed for: San Rafael Sanitary District, Central Marin Sanitary District,
North Marin Water District, Novato Sanitary District, Marin Municipal Water District, Sewer Agency of
Southern Marin, Sanitary Districts No. 2 & 5, and Sausalito Marin City Sanitary District. The services have
included geologic and geotechnical investigations for new underground utilities, treatment plant
improvements and retaining structure in a varied of geologic conditions varying from soft compressible
marsh deposits (bay mud) to hard Franciscan bedrock.

L Joseph Bohorquez — Potholing/Utility Locating - Joseph of Bess TestLabs, Inc. has

managed numerous utility locating projects over the past 14 years for various DOT's,
municipalities, public and private sector clients. He is generally responsible for the
management and coordination of utility services such as Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) utility locating,
Radio Frequency (RF) utility locating, CCTV pipe inspections, Survey and Mapping, and Vacuum
Excavation (potholing) services. He maintains multiple department services schedules throughout the
duration of the several projects. Joseph prepares staff hours and fee estimates for the combined project
teams. He reviews progress of services to ensure that the standards, time goals and budget requirements
are met. His experience combined with his education brings an in-depth understanding of utility locating
services and the needs/expectations of utility locating projects.

Bess Testlab Inc.

Ryan Amaya, PLS — Survey and Mapping - Ryan Amaya of Kier & Wright has over 20 years of

land surveying experience, including construction surveying, boundary surveying, mapping, and

subdivision work related to land development. Specific survey experience includes construction

staking, topographic surveys, benchmark-level circuits, elevation monitoring surveys, tentative
maps, parcel maps, final maps, condominium plans, plats and legal descriptions, lot line adjustments, lot
combinations, reversion to acreage maps and ALTA/NSPS Land Title Surveys. Mr. Amaya has been at
Kier & Wright since February of 1999. As a working principal, he currently manages and oversees all land
surveying services provided out of Kier & Wright's Santa Clara office. His relevant projects are:

Woodland Ave Sewer Improvement Project, San Rafael Sanitation District
North Road Pump Station Rehabilitation Project, City of Belmont

2015-18 Sewer Rehabilitation Project, City of San Mateo

City of San Mateo South Trunk Sanitary Sewer Relief Line

City of San Mateo 42nd Avenue Sanitary Sewer Pump Station

City of Half Moon Bay Bell Moon Sanitary Sewer Pump Station

June 19, 2020 25 Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project
N

The table below presents our entire team's role, experience and qualifications.

Schaaf & Wheeler Team Experience, Qualifications and Role

Name Role 0\;82:: Licenses, Certifications and Education
'Benjamin L. Shick, PE _ Project 17 Registered Civil Engineer California C68813
Manager ; MSCE, Montana State University-Bozeman ;
| BSCE, Montana State University-Bozeman
Charles D. Anderson, PE | Principal-in- 30 | Registered Civil Engineer California C43776
| Charge Hawaii 15647; Nevada 11518; Washington 39715
: MSCE (Water Resources Engineering), Stanford
: | University, California
BCE, Georgia Institute of Technology
iCurran L. Price, PE Project 12 Registered Civil Engineer California C74913
5 Engineer ; NASSCO PACP, MACP and LACP Certified #
‘ | 7000537
' CSI Construction Documents Technologist (CDT)
Bachelor of Science in Civil Engineering,
 California State Polytechnic University, Pomona
;Fidel T. Salamanca, PE ' Project 7 Registered Civil Engineer, California C84851
f Engineer f BSCE, Civil Engineering, California Polytechnic
| | State University, San Luis Obispo
| |
Jonathan F. Ondracek | Project | 6 | Registered EIT
Assistant BS, Civil Engineering, Purdue University, Indiana
Subconsultants '
|Scott Stephens, PE, GE Geotechnical 20 Geotechnical Engineer No. 2398, CA, 1998
!Milier Pacific Engineering Investigations Civil Engineer No. 50482, CA, 1993
(Group MSCE, Geotechnical Engineering, U.C. Berkeley
‘ | BSCE, Civil Engineering, U.C. Berkeley
'Ryan Amaya, PLS Survey & 20 Professional Land Surveyor State of California |
Kier & Wright Mapping L8134
Joseph Bohorquez | Potholing/ . 14 Licensed Contractor California No. 817532 |
BESS Testlab Inc. | Utility Locating | ' BA Business Administration 2010, MBA Saint
' i ' Mary's College of California 2016
June 19, 2020 26 Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

E. Our Subsconsultants

Firm Qualifications and Experience
TIT Miller Pacific Engineering Group — Geotechnical
engineering. Miller Pacific Engineering Group (MPEG)
i is a California corporation that has been providing
: professional geologic, geotechnical, and geo-civil
m engineering, geotechnical construction inspection, and
geotechnical material testing services in the North Bay
Counties and greater San Francisco Bay Area since 1988. With a total
staff of 20, including 8 professional licensees and 4 staff engineers

and geologists, Miller Pacific serves a wide variety of clients, both
public and private, from offices in Novato, Petaluma, and Napa.

MPEG is familiar with local conditions, having completed dozens of
public works projects within the City of San Rafael, including dozens
of sewer rehabilitation projects for the San Rafael Sanitation District,
roadway and slope stabilization projects, and other capital
infrastructure improvements. They have also worked on dozens of
private projects throughout the City, and our familiarity with widely-
variable local geologic conditions within the City allows for efficient
planning and performance of geologic and geotechnical
investigations.

MPEG has several registered geologists, civil and geotechnical
engineers that are experienced with evaluation and rehabilitation of
distressed pavements, including design of new pavements in
accordance with Caltrans’ Flexible Pavement Design Manual,
Caltrans’ Maintenance Technical Advisory Guide for Flexible
Pavement Preservation, NAVFAC, AASHTO, and other common
standards.

Their engineers have extensive experience in planning and executing
subsurface exploration in challenging urban environments and are
able to utilize a wide array of exploration subcontractors and
equipment to collect the required data and keep project schedules on
track in consideration of site-specific constraints, such as where utility
conflicts, concrete or other unusual pavements, difficult traffic control
situations, and other conditions exist.

Miller Pacific Engineering Group has completed Caltrans' Training
and Certifying of Independent Assurance Samplers and Testers, and
our in-house soils laboratory participates in and is currently
accredited by the AASHTO Accreditation Program, maintains current
Caltrans materials testing licensure, and is certified by the Division of
the State Architect (DSA) as a Laboratory Evaluation and Acceptance
(LEA laboratory) facility.

Previous project experience includes geologic and geotechnical
evaluations and investigations, construction observation and testing,
geo-civil design, expert witness services, and other tasks. Many
projects have been completed under on-call or project specific
contracts with the City and/or SRSD, while many others have been
performed under subcontract to a Prime contractor or design team
member.

Miller Pacific has performed
hundreds of projects similar to
those described in the RFP,
including several dozen on behalf
of the City of San Rafael and the
San Rafael Sanitation District:

v SRSD 2018 Sewer
Rehabilitation Project (2018)

v" SRSD 2017 Sewer
Rehabilitation Project (2017)

v" SRSD Albert Park Pavement
Rehabilitation (2017)

v SRSD 2016 Pipebursting
(2016)

v' Whistlestop Mixed-Use
Development (2015)

v" Biomarin Lincoln Parking
Garage (2014)

v" Biomarin Lab Building (2014)

v SRSD H Street Sewer
Improvements (2014)

v SRSD Shaver Street Sewer
Improvements (2014)

v" SRSD Andersen Drive
Easement Sewer
Improvements (2012)

v" SRSD Irwin Street (2012)

v" SRSD Lincoln Avenue Sewer
Improvements (2012)

v" SRSD G Street Sewer
Improvements (2012)

v" SRSD Sun Valley Sewer
Improvements (2012, 2015,
2016, 2017)

v' SRSD 5th Street Sewer
Improvements (2010)

v" SRSD Magnolia & Acacia
Sewer Rehabilitation (2010)

v" SRSD Point San Pedro Sewer
Rehabilitation (2010)

v" SRSD Canal and E. Francisco
Sewer Rehabilitation (2009)

June 19, 2020 27

Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

N,
Kier & Wright — Survey and Mapping. Kier & Wright Civil s i3 1
Engineers% Surveyors, Inc. (K&W) has been p?oviding Krefk& W]{%hfs,’;:m be;nW] Jisi
both public and private sector clients with land surveying Wdraig with Schaaf i
and civil engineering services since 1972. Kier & Wright | €gineers for more than 15
maintains a large-scale field survey, survey scheduling, and survey | Years to provide storm water,
drafting operation and is resourced to efficiently produce a high wastewater and potable water
volume of topographic surveys concurrently. Related services services for Bay Area
include: municipalities. K&W provided
"  Topographic & Utility Surveys survey and mapping services
»  Right-of-Way Surveying Jor the:
= Field Cross-Section Surveys v o o
»  Horizontal & Vertical Control Surveys San Rafael Sanitation District,
= ADA Surveys Woodland Ave Sewer
= Topographic Boundary Surveys : v City of Belmont, North Road
»  GPS Surveys Pump Station and Force Main
=  As-Built Surveys Project
= Surveying for Due Diligence v' City of Belmont Sewer and
= 3-D Laser Scanning Water Main Replacement
Project

Kier & Wright's field survey operation is one of the largest in the

Northern California. Their surveyors successfully prepare and

process parcel maps, records of survey, lot line adjustments, and other survey documents involved in
establishing and recording the precise locations of property lines.

Kier & Wright's ALTA surveys conform to the Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/NSPS Land
Title Surveys and include additional details, such as land use zoning classifications and FEMA flood zone
designations. Kier & Wright has prepared ALTA surveys for large real estate portfolios comprised of as
many as 104 separate properties. With over 70,000 field survey hours logged in 2015, Kier & Wright's field
survey operation is the largest in the Northern California.

- Bess TestLabs provided potholing
Bess Testlab, Inc. — Potholing/Utility Location. Bess Testlab, Inc. | and utility locating services to
(BTL), is a CPUC certified MBE/DBE | Schaaf & Wheeler for:
company that provides solutions to mitigate
the underground utility related risks v Belmont North Road Pump

Bess Testlab Inc. associated with the design and construction Station and Force Main

of civil infrastructure projects. These solutions include: Ground Project

Penetrating Radar (GPR)/concrete scanning, underground utility | v* Belmont Sewer and Water
location, and vacuum excavation. Their utility locating services are Main Replacement Project
performed by certified professional technicians, utilizing state-of-the- | v EFast San Mateo Lift Station
art cable and pipe locators, pipeline current mappers, Ground Project

Penetrating Radar (GPR) systems as well as 3-D mobile scanning r s :
(LIDAR) to designate and map underground utilities. In addition, a Mountain View Leong Drfve_
fleet of vacuum excavation (potholing) trucks are also used to locate Sewer and Water Main Project
and determine the actual depth of underground utilities visually. They v Ross Valley Sanitary District,
have been providing a complete range of services in California, Force Main Appurtenance
Arizona and Nevada. Their clientele includes Utility Companies, Project.

Cities, Counties, Municipalities and Military Installations, Contractors,

Consulting and Engineering firms.

BTL's typical services include: Utility Locating — electromagnetic pipe locators designate and mark out
utilities; Ground Penetrating Radar — Latest techmques utilized in location of subsurface metallic and non-
metallic objects; and Potholing — Non-destructive air-vacuum excavation exposing utilities being surveyed
to determine their exact depth and location.

June 19, 2020 - Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

What does the Schaaf & Wheeler Team Bring?

Schaaf & Wheeler team brings a number of assets that benefit the San Rafael Sanitation District:

» Schaaf & Wheeler is a small, local firm, responsive towards clients, specializing in wastewater and
stormwater systems design and engineering. The work will be conducted from our Santa Rosa Office
and San Francisco Office.

» Our engineers provide cost-effective, implementable solutions and designs that expedite the project
completion with minimal change orders during the construction phase.

» OQur proposed team is proficient at assessing existing condition and recommending pipe repairs for
optimal performance.

= Our engineers specialize in various technologies including open-cut, trenchless technologies, CIPPs,
pipe reaming, pipe bursting, elc.

= Schaaf & Wheeler has extensive experience with designing and permitting sewer and storm water
infrastructure within multiple jurisdictions.

= Qur engineers have extensive experience
developing traffic  control plans and
requirements in busy downtown corridors to
minimize impacts during construction.

v We are familiar with the issues and conditions
specific to the District and have identified a
number of specific issues and solutions for
this project in our proposal.

= Schaaf & Wheeler is currently working on the
design of the District’s Woodland Avenue

WELE ““ 1"|‘h.-| , :': l‘"k

Sewer Improvement project. Our engineers 0ld County Road Water Main Replacement Project
Completed for Mid-Peninsula Water District
in City of Belmont Required Caltrans Permit at
El Camino Real

are familiar with the District's standards,
procedures and regulations.

= We bring a strong team under the
leadership of a  detailed-oriented,
experienced, and skillful Project Manager —
Benjamin Shick, PE, who has successfully
completed several similar project through
construction.

» Curran Price, PE is the Project Design
Engineer, he is the design engineer along with
Ben for sewer rehabilitation and replacement
projects for SRSD, Mill Valley, Corte Madera,
Belmont, Morgan Hill and San Mateo.

= Qur subconsultants — Pacific Miler has
completed several projects for SRSD. Kier &
Wright and Bess TestlLabs, Inc. have been
working with Schaaf & Wheeler to complete
similar projects.

= \We have more than 30 years of experience
providing engineering services for large
infrastructure projects in busy urban corridors
and rural settings and understand the
challenges involved with these settings and
the methods to resolve them.

June 19. 2020 20 Schaaf &’ Wheeler
' CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



‘ Engineering Design Services for

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project
N

Appendix: Resumes
Benjamin L. Shick, P.E. — Project Manager — Schaaf & Wheeler

Education Years of Experience: 17+

BSCE, Montana State Completed Design & Construction of 50,000 LF of Sewer
University-Bozeman Project Management Experience: 13+ years

MSCE, Montana State Knowledge and Experience in Sewer Rehabilitation Trenchless
University-Bozeman Technologies: CIPP, Pipe Bursting, Pipe Reaming, efc.

Licenses: Registered Benjamin L. Shick, P.E., has more than 1 7 years of experience in water
Civil Engir;eer resources infrastructure planning and design of wastewater conveyance
California 068813 systems, water supply and distribution sygtems, stormwater systems, an_d
MIRIRBHEL AFEHEa pump stations. Ben has completed the design of 50,000+ LF of sewer main
; rehabilitation and replacement projects in the recent past. Ben has

Eg;ﬁge?;cw” conducted floodplain investigation, shoreline protection studies, drainage
Floo dplain] stgdies, ch.anne.el design and modeling, watgr rights pern}iﬁing, wetland analysis and des:ign, sm_a!l
Management bridge design, infrastructure design, surveying, construction management, and cpnstruchon qualllty
o control testing. He has been involved with all project phases from project initiation to construction

document preparation and construction support. Ben is proficient in water resources modeling tools:
AutoCAD, WaterCAD, HEC-RAS, HEC-HMS, GeoRAS, MOUSE, and ArcGlS.

Relevant Projects

Woodland Sewer Improvement Project, San Rafael Sanitation District, 2019 - 2020, Contract Value: $237,213. This project includes pipe
replacement, rehabilitation, adjusting pipe slope, and re-routing laterals along B Street, Woodland Avenue, Warner Court, Woodland Placs, and
Octavia Street. As Project Manager, Ben Shick coordinated topographic surveying, utility investigations and geotechnical investigation. Tasks
included condition assessment and development of alternatives. Subsequently detailed design and bid documents are being prepared.

Harbor Drive Sewer Rehabilitation, Town of Corte Madera Sanitary District No. 2, 2019 - 2020, Contract Value: $234,060. This project
includes rehabilitation/replacement of 7,100+ LF of existing 6" and 8" VCP pipes - existing sewer mains within the Harbor Drive area. As Project
Manager, Ben Shick coordinated CCTV inspection, conducted assessments and identified rehabilitation and replacement alternatives and
methods. Subsequently the improvements were designed; currently our team is providing support services during construction.

Shoreway Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Design, City of Belmont, 2017 - 2019, Contract Value: $129,000. As Project Manager, Ben Shick
led the assessment of the feasibility of eliminating the existing pump station along Shoreway Drive by installing a new deeper gravity sewer main.
The feasibility analysis included detailed topographic surveying, geotechnical investigations, detailed utility investigations, sewer system modeling,
and alternative evaluation. Subsequently Schaaf & Wheeler developed detailed construction documents and provided bid and construction support
services. The Shoreway sewer project was successfully designed and constructed within budget and schedule.

Mill Valley Sewer Repair Project, City of Mill Valley, 2019 - 2020, Contract Value: $131,000. As Project Manager, Ben Shick provided
evaluation, assessment, and design services for the City of Mill Valley's sanitary sewer system. This project prioritizes and develops a strategic
plan to address the most critical infrastructure needs for future repairs to be constructed under the 2020 budget. Project tasks include surveys,
investigations, and inspections for each project location to identify proposed improvements. 75% and 100% design documents along with
construction support were provided for this project.

Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Projects, City of Belmont 2015, 2016 and 2017, Contract Value: 2015 - $567,000; 2016 - $456,961; 2017 -
$194,000. As Project Manager, Ben Shick led the evaluation, prioritization, and design of the rehabilitation and replacement of their high priority
gravity sewer lines throughout the City. The 2015 Sewer Rehabilitation project consisted of the replacement and rehabilitation of approximately 2
miles of gravity sewer lines and associated manholes. Under Ben's supervision, Schaaf & Wheeler team provided detailed utility investigations,
potholing, and sewer modeling services. The 2016 sewer rehabilitation project consisted of evaluating and preparing design documents for
approximately 5 miles of gravity sewer lines located throughout the City in back yard easements and in City streets. Construction methods include
pipe bursting, open trench excavation, and CIPP lining. A large portion of the sewer mains included within the City of Belmont sewer rehabilitation
projects are located within backyard and side yard easements with difficult access and easement issues.

El Camino Real Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation, City of San Mateo, 2017 - 2018, Contract Value: $500,000. As Project Manager, Ben Shick
reviewed and evaluated the condition of all of the City's sanitary sewer pipes within and adjacent to El Camino Real and developed a recommended
improvement project to address all significant condition related issues. Subsequently the rehabilitation and replacement design of 10,060 LF of
pipe and the rehabilitation and replacement design of 110 manholes were also prepared. Rehabilitation methods were primarily cured-in-place
pipe (CIPP), pipe bursting and open trench replacement methods were also used.

Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Projects for City of Morgan Hill, 2019 - Present, Contract Value: $162,285. Project Manager for 47 pipe
segments. Evaluated and assessed the existing sewer infrastructure. Reviewed the existing sewer model to evaluate the pipe sizes and
recommend the rehabilitation/replacement method. Visited each site to collect additional field data to properly assess the pipes and make
recommendations. Prepared a TM summarizing the assessments, capital improvement recommendations and construction cost estimates.
Subsequently designed the recommended improvements that include project basemapping, detailed ufility investigations, evaluations to re-route

June 19, 2020 30 Schaaf & Wheeler
' CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



‘ Engineering Design Services for

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project
N/

Benjamin L. Shick, P.E. — Project Manager — Schaaf & Wheeler

sewer mains and laterals from backyard easements, plan and profiles of sewer lines, construction details, technical specifications, and cost
estimates. The proposed construction methods were tailored to minimize impacts and costs at each location. Construction methods include pipe
bursting, open trench, spot repairs, and CIPP rehabilitation.

Belmont Water/Sewer Main Replacement, Mid-Peninsula Water District, 2017, Contract Value: $87,610. As Project Manager, Ben Shick
prepared engineering design for this joint CIP project for the water and sewer mains. The project consists of replacing the water mains, service
lines and meters per the District's identified capital improvement projects and rehabilitating and replacing the sewer mains to address condition
issues with the sewer mains. The project also includes additional street improvements. This project required close coordination and approval
with multiple agencies including the City of Belmont, the Mid-Peninsula Water District, the Fire Marshal, Caltrans, and private developers. A
Caltrans Encroachment Permit for the work along El Camino Real was prepared, submitted, and obtained.

North Road Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Design - City of Belmont (2017 - 2018), Contract Value: $284,815. The project involves the
engineering design, bid and construction support services for the rehabilitation of the pump station. As Project Manager, Ben Shick led the design
for installation of a new wetwell, pumps, and associated equipment. He explored the option of obtaining a new easement to provide adequate
space to operate and maintain the pump station. Schaaf & Wheeler design meets all local, state, and federal requirements for this pump station
and the force main.

San Mateo Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Projects, City of San Mateo, 2014 - 2017, Contract Value: 2015 - $191,000; 2017 — 2018 - $500,000.
As Project Manager, Ben Shick led and completed site investigations, inspections, researched existing data, and developed recommended
alternatives for various sewer rehabilitation projects within the City of San Mateo. Provided detailed design of the recommended alternatives
which consisted of: replacement of sewer lines across drainage channels (both above ground on piers, and below ground); replacement of sewer
lines in back yard easements with tight access; replacement of sewer lines through large drainage box culverts; sewer line rehabilitation with
cured-in-place pipe (CIPP); sewer main replacement and realignment; manhole rehabilitation and replacement; the work included geotechnical
investigations, easement research, topographical surveying, environmental permitting, and Caltrans Encroachment Permit,

Kingridge Sanitary Sewer Improvements (6" and 8”; 3,100 LF), City of San Mateo, 2010 - 2015; Contract Value: $927,673. As Project
Manager, Ben Shick led and directed the team for system evaluation, hydraulic analysis of the existing Kingridge canyon sewer and storm drain
system, development of improvement alternatives for the sewer main, and development and production of construction documents for the selected
alternative of the project to replace and rehabilitate the 6-inch sanitary sewer main. Some of the key features were: Alternative evaluation for
alignment and construction methods; Emergency repairs to mitigate active land movement; Capacity evaluation; Open cut pipe replacement, CIPP
rehabilitation, pipe on piers, retaining walls, efc.; Securing right-of-access to project location including permanent sewer easements; Environmental
permitting, mitigation, and monitoring; Construction support, special inspection, and material testing services.

El Camino Real Sanitary Sewer Improvement Project and the Calabazas Creek Sewer Siphon Design Projects, City of Santa Clara, 2006
- 2009; Contract Value: $480,520. As Project Manager, Ben Shick led the design of 2,600 feet of parallel sewer line in El Camino Real from Flora
Vista Avenue to Calabazas Boulevard. The project also included a separate design plan set for a replacement sewer siphon with dual pipes under
Calabazas Creek as part of a Santa Clara Valley Water District channel improvement project. Existing lateral connections were improved through
cured-in-place pipe (CIPP) lining of 2,600 fest of parallel collector sewer and reconstruction. Tasks included the design of relocation of existing
water mains, storm drains, sewer laterals, and traffic signals.

Cabrillo Avenue Sewer Replacement Project, City of Santa Clara, 2013 - 2014; Contract Value: $104,793. As Project Manager, Ben Shick
led the installation of a new 12-inch sewer line in Cabrillo Ave to replace the existing sewer line that ran in a utility easement through residential
parcels. Design included plan and profile of a new 12-inch PVC sewer main, associated manholes, and lateral connections. This project also
included the design for replacement of several smaller sewer and storm drain lines necessary to facilitate the installation of the new sewer mainline.

June 19, 2020 31 Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



‘ Engineering Design Services for

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project
N/

Charles D. Anderson, P.E., President — Schaaf & Wheeler

Education Charles D. Anderson, P.E. has 30+ years of experience in the areas
BCE, Georgia Institute of of wastewater and stormwater collection and pumping, water supply
Technology and distribution, flood control and drainage, surface water hydrology
MSCE (Water Resources and groundwater, As a project manager he is involved in all phases of

project management and implementation from project feasibility to
construction document preparation and construction support for a
wide range of public and private clients. He has completed numerous
flood insurance studies (FIS) and letters of map revision (LOMRs) for
FEMA. Chuck's projects generally have multidisciplinary teams that
help policy makers to arrive at reliable decisions that protect
communities from flood risk and the threat of climate change, most particularly sea level rise.

Engineering), Stanford
University, California

Licenses

Registered Civil Engineer
California C43776 Hawaii
15647

\TVZ";?]?'? 1{1?13%71 5 His San Mateo Bayfront Levee Improvement project has won several state and regional

g awards. Chuck has demonstrated expertise in watershed and stochastic hydrology, open
Affiliations channel hydraulics, closed conduit hydraulics, pump station design, and storm drainage as
FMA, ASCE well. His background also includes pipeline design, storage tank design, pump station design,

hydraulic network modeling, wastewater collection includes septic systems, sanitary sewer
design, pump station design, sanitary sewer modeling, and master planning.

Relevant Projects

Wastewater System Planning and Design

Rehabilitation of So. San Francisco Industrial Sewage Pump Stations 1, 2, 3, 4, 6, 7 and 8 (2010-19)
Sierra Point Sewage Pump Station — City of Brisbane/Wilsey Ham (2019)

Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Assessements - Cities of Alameda and San Mateo (2010)

South Trunk Relief Line - City of San Mateo (2010)

Sanitary Sewer Disposal System and Leachfields for Coyote Creek Golf Club — Castle & Cooke (1998)
Purissima Sanitary Pumping Station - Los Altos Hills (2000)

0'Keefe Road Sanitary Pump Station Relocation, Los Altos Hills - Biggs Cardosa Inc. (2003)
Mariner's Island No. 2 Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation - City of San Mateo (2004)
Stormwater System Planning and Design

Diridon Station Area Infrastructure Analysis — HMH Engineers (2016)

Warren Avenue Storm Drain Assessment — City of San Mateo (2016)

Storm Drain Master Plans - Half Moon Bay (2017), Santa Clara (2015), Milpitas (2012), Alameda (2008), Livermore (2006), and San Mateo
(2004)

Laguna Area Storm Drain Analysis - City of Burlingame (2012)

Esplanade Storm Drain Qutfall Replacement - Cotton Shires/City of Pacifica (2010)

Storm Drain Infrastructure PM and E. Laurel Creek Culvert Repair and Erosion Control - City of Belmont (2006)
Greenwood Avenue and Barroihlet Avenue Storm Drain Improvements - City of San Mateo (2006)
Soscol Area Residual Drainage Master Plan - City of Napa (2005)

Interior Drainage Analysis/LOMR for Lower Guadalupe River Prolect CH2M-Hill and SCYWD (2005}
Stormwater Pump Stations

Chrysler Drive Pump Station Rehabilitation (230 cfs) — City of Menlo Park (2017)

Coyote Point and Poplar Avenue Pump Station Rehabilitation (250 cfs each) - City of San Mateo (2017)
Matadero Creek Storm Water Pump Station (390 cfs) - City of Palo Alto (2017)

PLC Programming Upgrades to 11 Stormwater Handling Sites — Cily of Palo Alfo (2015 - 2017)

Design of Gippetti Pump Stations, Stormwater and Sewer Pump Stations — RJA & Assac. (2015-2016)
City of Sunnyvale WPCP Master Plan and Primary Treatment Design — HDR, Inc. (2015)

Northside Pump Station Upgrades (180 cfs) - City of Alameda (2010)

San Francisquito Creek Storm Water Pump Station (300 cfs) - City of Palo Alto (2009)

Baylands Storm Water Pump Station No. 1 - City of Sunnyvale (2006)

Railroad Avenue OC Pumping Plant for Route 4 in Pittsburg - Mark Thomas & Company/Caltrans (2003)
Freedom Circle Stormwater Pump Station (70 cfs) - City of Santa Clara (2003)

Nelo-Victor Stormwater Pump Station Rehabilitation (200 cfs) - City of Santa Clara (2003)

Rambo Pump Station (150 cfs) - City of Santa Clara (2000)

Water Supply, Storage, and Distribution

Anderson Dam Seismic Refrofit Project - Santa Clara Valley Water District (ongoing)

San Jose General Plan Update, Water Supply Summary — David J. Powers & Assoc. (2015)
Kahakuloa Acres Private Water System Evaluation and Two Storage Tanks - Maui, Hawaii (2014)

June 19, 2020 32 _ Schaaf & Wheeler
; CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project
"

Charles D. Anderson, P.E., President — Schaaf & Wheeler

Upper Miocene Canal, Paradise - Cotton Shires and Associates (2012)

Vista Pump Station and Water Tank Improvement - Town of Hillsborough/CSG Consultants (2010)

Kern River Raw Water Pumping Plant Forensic Investigation- Noriega and Bradshaw, LLP (2008)
Konocti Harbor Water Treatment, Storage, and Distribution Evaluation - Page Mill Properties (2007)
Potable wells, storage tanks, and water mains for Coyote Valley Specific Plan - City of San Jose (2006)
Waimanalo Reservoir Assessment, Martin v. State of Hawaii - State of Hawaii (2003)

Carmel Development Company Water System Mediation, Monterey - Harry & Linker, LLP (2000)
Highlands Booster Pump Station and Water Storage Tanks - Great Oaks Water Company (1998)

Well Nos. C-20, C-21, C-22, and C-23 - City of San Jose (2002)

Potable and Irrigation Water Supply, Storage & Distribution Systems for Coyote Creek Golf Club (1998)
Water System Network Modeling, Flow Testing, & Fire Flow Calculations - City of San Jose (2006)
Floodplain Management and Infrastructure

West Channel Enhancement — Google, Inc. (2018-2019)

San Francisquito-Adobe Creek Flood Study - Wood Rogers/ SCYWD (2016 - 2017)

Deer Island Flood Detention Basin — Marin County (2016-2017)

Drainage Review of Emergency Stabilization for Bear Gulch Road — Foundation Technologies, Inc. (2017)
Foster City Levee Improvments - City of Foster City (2016 — 2020)

Climate Change Impact Analyses - Alameda, Foster City, Menlo Park, Newark, San Jose, San Mateo (ongoing)
BerryessalPenitencia Watershed Flood Study - Wood Rogers/SCYWD (2016)

Palo Alto Flood Basin Sea Level Rise Impact Study - SCVWD (2016)

Lower Penitencia Creek Improvements - Wood Rogers/SCYWD (2016)

Annual Levee Inspection - City of San Mateo (2016)

Colma Creek Floodplain Analaysis — City of South San Francisco (2016)

Guadalupe River Bridge Hydraulics at Railyard Place - Biggs Cardosa Associates (2016)

Upper Llagas Creek Flood Protection Project - RMC Water & Environment/SCYWD (2016)
Permanente Creek Flood Protection Project - Hatch Mott MacDonald/SCVWD (2016}

Storm Water Detention Basins at Truckee River Floodwall - Reno-Sparks Indian Colony (2016)

San Francisquito Creek Hydrology Study Peer Review — SCYWD (2015)

Christopher Ranch Flood Study (2015)

Bayfront Canal Redwood City Flooding Issues — Stanford Real Estate (2015)

Old Mountain View Alviso Rd. Bridge Replacment Hydraulic Study - Biggs Cardosa Associates (2015)
Highway 101 Pedestrial/Bicycle Overcrossing at Adobe Creek — Biggs Cardosa Associates (2015)
Wrigley-Ford Creek Long Term Monitoring — HT Harvey & Associates (2015)

North Gilroy Neighborhood District Urban Services Area Amendment — EMC Planning Group (2014-2015)
Silicon Valley BART Extension Floodplain Analysis - Santa Clara Valley Transportation Authority (2013)
Bayfront Levee Improvement Project - City of San Mateo (2012)

San Tomas Aquino Creek Flood Study - Santa Clara Valley Water District (2012)

Recertification of Uvas, Stevens and Lower Penitencia Creek Levees — SCYWD (2009)

Truckee River Levee and Floodwall System - CFA Engineers (Sparks, NV) (2008)

O'Neill Slough Tide Gate Structure - ity of San Mateo (2007)

Julian Street and William Street Bridge Retrofits at Coyote Creek - Biggs Cardosa Associates (2007)

S. Sutter County Flood Control Alternatives - Sacramento Area Flood Control Agency (2004)

SW Lemmon Valley Flood Control Master Plan/Channel Improvements - CFA, Inc. (Reno, NV) (2003)
Wooster Avenue Bridge Replacemenit - Advanced Engineering Design (San Jose) (2001)

June 19, 2020 33 Schaaf &> Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



‘ Engineering Design Services for

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project
\__

Curran L. Price, P.E. — Associate Engineer - Schaaf & Wheeler

Education

Bachelors of Science in Civil
Engineering, California State Polytechnic
University, Pomona

Curran Price, P.E., has over 12 years of experience in
infrastructure design including wastewater facilities, water
pipelines, shoring  systems, bridges, buildings,
transportation, and slope stabilization projects. Curran has

Licenses been involved with all phases from project conception to
Registered Professional Engineer, document preparation and construction support. Curran is
California C74913 adept at preparing plans and specifications, performing
NASSCO PACP, MACP and LACP calculations, cost estimates, and site inspections. He has
Certified 7000537 completed the design of over 100 constructed projects.
Affiliations Curran has provided engineering services for the
Redwood Empire ASCE replacement of sewer mains and water pipelines using

trenchless construction methods in Caltrans right of way.

Relevant Projects

Wastewater Systems

Woodland Sewer Improvement Project - San Rafael Sanitation District (2019 - 2020)

Harbor Drive Sewer Rehabilitation - Town of Corte Madera Sanitary District No. 2 (2019 — 2020)

Mill Valley Sewer Repair Project - City of Mill Valley (2019 - 2020)

Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Projects - City of Belmont (2015 - 2019)

Shoreway Road Sanitary Sewer Replacement - City of Belmont (2017 - 2018)

North Road Pump Station Rehabilitation - City of Belmont (2017 - 2018)

Sanitary Sewer and Manhole Rehabilitation Project - City of San Mateo (2015 - 2018)

Sewer Pump Station Improvements Project - Town of Hillsborough (2016 - 2018)

Ocean Colony Sanitary Sewer and Force Main Rehabilitation Project - City of Half Moon Bay (2016 - 2018)
Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation Project - City of Oakland (2016 - 2018)

Sanitary Sewer Main Emergency Repair - City of Half Moon Bay (2017)

Pump Station Rehabilitation - City of Alameda (2016 - 2017)

Mechanical Engineering Services - Bayfair Hall Pumps, Paru Pump Station - City of Alameda (2015 - 2016)
Force Main Appurtenance Project - Ross Valley Sanitary District (2015 - 2016)

Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Evaluation - City of Half Moon Bay (2015)

Trunk Main Replacement Phase 4 - Sonoma (2014)

Agua Caliente Creek Trenchless Replacement of Sewer Trunk Main with Double Barrel Siphon - Sonoma (2014)
Sanitation Local Hazard Mitigation Plan - Sonoma & Guerneville (2014)

Lateral Sewer Replacement Program - Occidental (2014)

Gloria Meekland Sewer and Water Replacement - Santa Rosa (2013)

Water Delivery Systems '
Sanitary Sewer and Water Rehabilitation Project - City of Belmont & Mid-Peninsula Water District (2017 - 2018)
McGill Road Recycled Water Pipeline - Sonoma (2014)

Fifth Street East Recycled Water Pipeline - Sonoma (2014)

Sesimic Hazards Mitigation for 48-inch Pipeline at Russian River Crossing - Forestville (2014)

Alternative Pipe Material for Corrosion Resistance, Collector 8 Chlorine Lines - Forestville (2013)

Storm Water, Hydrology and Hydraulics, and Floodplain Management

Storm Drain Master Plan - City of Alameda (2016 - 2017)

Storm Drain Rehabilitations for Defriorated Culverts - Town of Woodside (2015 - 2017)

Cove Stormwater Pump Station Evaluation - Marin County (2016)

Flood Study Green Valley Creek Crossing - Graton (2014)

Other Projects

Shoring Systems Design for Water Pipelines at 405 Freeway - Los Angeles (2011)

Soil Nail Wall Design for Hyrum Water Tanks - Provo, Utah (2011)

Excavation Design for Transbay Transit Center - San Francisco (2012)

Project Management of Soil Nail, MSE, and Soldier Pile Walls Rambla Vista Dr. - Malibu (2011)

Perimeter Wall Deisgn for Protection from Liguifiable Soils - Kaiser Hospital, Redwood City (2011)

June 19, 2020 34 Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



‘ Engineering Design Services for

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project
N

Fidel T. Salamanca, P.E. — Senior Engineer - Schaaf & Wheeler

Education Fidel T. Salamanca, PE, has more than six years of experience in planning
BSCE, Civil Engineering, and design of urban water and stormwater systems, open channels and pump
California Polytechnic State stations. Fidel is proficient at hydraulic modeling for water system planning,
University, San Luis Obispo pumps, reservoirs, and large watersheds. He has been involved in water
License quality related projects and has assisted trash capture feasibility studies for
Reaisiored Civil Brighieer several cities. He has significant design experience in water, sanitary and
CalforniaCdsl stormwater pump stations, pipelines, and frash capture devices throughout
Professional Membership the Bay Area. He has conducted several third-party reviews to ensure NPDES

E;’Cigt{ of %‘l"" E“Q*"ee{s' compliance. He is also proficient in ArcGIS, AutoCAD, EPA SWMMS, HY8, MIKE URBAN, MIKE
Aisions Gl 21, MIKE ZERO, MIKE 11, BAHM, HAMMER, Microstation, HEC-RAS, geo-RAS, HEC-HMS, geo-

ASCE Young Member Forum HMS, and HEC-1, InfoSWMM, and InfoWater.

Relevant Projects

On-Call Engineering Services - Port of Oakland, 2016 — Present, Contract Value: $113,697. Schaaf & Wheeler prepared rehabilitation/replacement
plans for the two lift stations. The two pumps convey flow through a common force main through the airport terminal. Fidel Salamanca is the
design engineer. These plans will be used to rehabilitate the pump stations and eliminate failures associated with the existing ejector pumps. The
design includes replacing the ejector pumps with rail mounted submersible pumps, integrating the pump controls to the existing SCADA system,
installing a new valve vault, and adding check valves on the discharge piping to prevent backflows. Tasks included identification of necessary and
desired improvements to each of the pump stations, pump station capacities, available power sources, station limitations, and other constraints or
requirements influencing pump station design.

Pump Stations Improvements, City of Oakland, 2014 - 2015, Contract Value: $411,000. Schaaf & Wheeler designed a new pump station as well
as pump station improvements for 5 sanitary sewer pump stations operated by the City of Oakland. Fidel Salamanca was the project associate.
Designs included upsizing pumps to meet sanitary sewer flow requirements, rehabilitating pump stations based on existing conditions and
applicable code requirements, including O&M staff input during the design process, and adhering to permit requirements from following agencies:
East Bay Regional Parks, Port of Oakland, Bay Area Rapid Transit System, and the Oakland International Airport.

Design for Relocation of Industrial Sewage Pump Station No. 1 - South San Francisco, 2017 — 2018, Contract Value: $431,902. This pump station
receives sewage from the Oyster Point commercial area and discharges sewage through a force main to a gravity sanitary sewer manhole. Schaaf
& Wheeler developed a Basis of Design report including alternative pump station configurations (e.g. wet well / dry pit; variable speed and constant
speed). Fidel Salamanca is the project associate. Our engineers have prepared the 90% level drawing submittal along with detailed structural
design. The pump station design includes the force main design up to the discharge manhole, the valve vault configuration, and an on-site standby
backup generator. ' ;

Water Main Design (Design Build) with ConQuest - Conira Costa Water District (2018-2019), Contract Value: $234,040. As Project Manager, Fidel
Salamanca provided engineering design and construction support services for phase 1 of the project It includes five projects (5) with varying
replacement lengths, multiple agency involvement, and permitting at each site. The water main sizes vary in diameter from 4 to 8 inches. Two of
the five projects have been constructed, two of the five are under construction, and one of the five is being finalized in design.

Sandia National Lab Water System Master Plan and Design - Sandia National Lab (2018), Contract Value: $149,925. Schaaf & Wheeler assisted
Sandia National Lab (SNL) conduct a study of the potable and underground fire water system to improve the reliability and redundancy of the water
distribution infrastructure. As Project Engineer, Fidel assisted the in developing a hydraulic model of the system and determining the performance
of the existing system. The model is utilized to determine necessary improvements to meet use demands and fire flow requirements and thereby
develop Water System Master Plan. Additionally, Schaaf & Wheeler assisted SNL with the preparation of 30% design drawings for seven (7) water
main replacement projects. Fidel is reviewing pipe alignments fo identify locations for additional fire hydrants, isolation valves, water meters,
potential utility conflicts, and California Plumbing Code compliance.

Utility Impact Study Confirmation for Gateway Master Plan, Mountain View — Raimi and Associates (2019), Contract Value: $80,000. This project
includes the utility planning and modeling for the Master plan for North Bayshore Gateway area (Shoreline). Utility studies include water, sewer,
recycled water and stormdrain. As Project Engineer, Fidel is building a model for all the four utilities to provide technical engineering support to the
CEQA consultant for the City of Mountain View's CEQA documentation process. Project tasks entail confirmation of previous technical studies
include the proposed development in Project Area; identification of available capacity and determination of needed revisions to previous study
findings; and determine impacts of the development on planned capital improvement projects to assist City staff in planning future infrastructure
improvement implementation.

June 19, 2020 35 Schaaf & Wheeler
' CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



‘ Engineering Design Services for

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project
N’

Jonathan F. Ondracek — Assistant Engineer - Schaaf & Wheeler

Education . Jonathan Ondracek has experience in modeling and design for
BS, Civil Engineering, Purdue stormwater and wastewater infrastructure projects. He is proficient in
University, Indiana running hydraulic models to solve drainage issues and conduct level

License surveys for small design projects. As the Engineering Associate with
Registered EIT Indiana the City of Fort Wayne, Indiana, Jonathan designed and managed over
Certifications 20 stormwater projects from conception to completion. The projects
Dale Camegie Management varied from the design of bioretention systems, to the design of new
Training storm sewer to alleviate drainage concerns. He has experience

managing consultants for large-scale multidisciplinary projects during
the design and construction phases. Jonathan managed and designed
15 Long Term Control Plan projects as well. His modeling and design software skills include
AutoCAD Civil3d, AutoCAD LT, EPASWMM 5, Mike Urban, and ArcGIS.

Relevant Projects

Wastewater System Planning and Design

Woodland Sewer Improvement Project - San Rafael Sanitation District (2019 — 2020)

Harbor Drive Sewer Rehabilitation - Town of Corte Madera Sanitary District No. 2 (2019 — 2020)
Mill Valley Sewer Repair Project - City of Mill Valley (2019 — 2020)

North Road Pump Station Rehabilitation Project — City of Belmont (2018 — 2019)

Shoreway Sewer Replacement Project — City of Belmont (2017 - 2019)

El Camino Real Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project — City of San Mateo (2017 — 2019)
East San Mateo Sanitary Sewer Lift Station Rehabilitation Project — City of San Mateo (2017 — on-going)
Building M101 Sanitary Sewer Lateral Repair — Port of Oakland (2018)

Tamarind Sanitary Sewer Pump Station Qdor Control Improvements — City of Fontana (2018)
Industry and Tamarind Pump Station Improvement - City of Fontana (2017 - on-going)
Bypass Pumping Connections at Northside and Rabello Pump Stations — City of Santa Clara (2017)
2017 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project — City of Belmont (2017)

Delta Diablo Pump Station Improvements — County of Contra Costa (2017 - on-going)
Glasgow Regulator Modifications — City of Fort Wayne (2016)

Gathings Lift Station Rehabilitation — City of Fort Wayne (2016)

St. Joe Combined Sewer Overflow Relief Connections — City of Fort Wayne (2014 - 2015)
Stormwater Systems Planning and Design

2018 Storm Drain Improvement Project — City of Belmont (2018 — on-going)

Athlone Pump Station Upgrade — City of Atherton (2018 — on-going)

Little Wolf Creek Sinkhole Stabilization Project — City of Grass Valley (2017)

Huffman Putnam Sewer Separation — City of Fort Wayne (2015 - 2018)

Lakeside Sewer Separation — City of Fort Wayne (2015 - 2017)

200 E. Berry Pervious Pavement Improvements — City of Fort Wayne (2015 - 2016)

Reed Road Storm Drainage Improvement — City of Fort Wayne (2015 - 2016)

Engle Road Sewer Separation — City of Fort Wayne (2014 - 2016)

Taylor Hale Sewer Separation Phase | - City of Fort Wayne (2013 - 2015)

Ewing Street East/West Phase Il Sewer Separation — City of Fort Wayne (2013 - 2014)
Maplecrest Road Storm Drainage Improvement — City of Fort Wayne (2013)

Becky Lane Storm Drainage Improvement — City of Fort Wayne (2012)

Karpeles Museum Rain Garden — City of Fort Wayne (2012)

Imagine Schools/Science Central Rain Gardens — City of Fort Wayne (2012)

Hazelett Road Storm Drainage Improvement — City of Fort Wayne (2011)

Balmoral and Hadley Storm Drainage Improvement — City of Fort Wayne (2010)

Hydrology & Hydraulics

Los Gamos and Oleander Drainage Study — City of San Rafael (2018)

Schick Storm Sewer Capacity Analysis — City of Fort Wayne (2012)

June 19, 2020 36 Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

Novato, CA 94947

Miller Pacific
Engineering Group

CURRICULUM VITAE

SCEOIRISSTEREEINS fREAGE

415/382-3444

Registration
Geotechnical Engineer
No. 2398, CA, 1998
Civil Engineer

No. 50482, CA, 1993

Education

MSCE, Geotechnical
Engineering

U.C. Berkeley
Berkeley, CA, 1991

BSCE, Civil
Engineering

U.C. Berkeley
Berkeley, CA, 1988

Memberships
ASCE, American
Society of Civil
Engineers

GBA, Professional
Firms Practicing in the
Geosciences

ACEC of California,
American Council of
Engineering
Companies.

(Past Chapter
President)

June 19, 2020

|
|
|
|
504 Redwood Blod., Suite 220
!
|

Experience Summary

Scott Stephens is President of Miller Pacific Engineering Group and is
responsible for the overall business management of the firm. He is also the
Senior Project Manager and Reviewer for Geotechnical and Geo-Civil projects.
He has prepared numerous geotechnical investigations, geotechnical planning
reports, geo-civil designs, environmental impact studies, and serves as a Peer
Reviewer for several local governmental agencies. He has conducted many
forensic geotechnical investigations and has provided expert testimony on
geotechnical issues including slope instability, retaining wall failure, foundation
distress and groundwater seepage. '

Scott has worked on hundreds of water district and sanitary district projects
throughout Marin County. These geologic and geotechnical projects have been
performed for; Central Marin Sanitary District, North Marin Water District, Novato
Sanitary District, Marin Municipal Water District, Sewer Agency of Southern
Marin, Sanitary Districts No. 2 & 5, San Rafael Sanitary District, and Sausalito
Marin City Sanitary District. Our services have included geologic and
geotechnical investigations for new underground utilities, treatment plant
improvements and retaining structure in a varied of geologic conditions varying
from soft compressible marsh deposits (bay mud) to hard Franciscan bedrock.

The geologic and geotechnical investigations typically include exploration of
subsurface conditions, evaluation of geologic hazards, geotechnical design
criteria for the recommended foundation system. During construction, Scott
provides geotechnical consultation, and directs geotechnical observation and
testing for site grading, foundation and keyway excavations, subsurface
drainage, soil nails / tiebacks, pavement construction and other geotechnical
construction items. He has provided complete Geo-Civil services including plans,
details, specifications and contract document for retaining walls, landslide repairs
and pedestrian bridges constructed for water and sanitary district projects. A few
examples of his water or sanitary district projects include:

Novato Sanitary District (NSD) Treatment Plant Improvements, Novato CA
- Mr. Stephens conducted a geotechnical investigation, prepared the
geotechnical report and provided geo-civil design for treatment plant
improvements that included heavy structures supported on auger cast piles, site
grading, wick drainage and surcharge fill to consoclidate underlying bay mud,
conveyance pipe line that connect two treatment plants and included directional
drilling under Novato Creek and Highway 37 and a soil nail and shotcrete
retaining wall to stabilize and old cut slope. Mr. Stephens reviewed plans and
submittals and provided consultation. During construction he supervised the field
and laboratory QA/QC soil and concrete testing for the retaining wall soil nails
and shotcrete, settlement monitoring of surcharge fill, auger cast piles and
tradition shallow foundations, subsurface drainage, and compacted structural
fills.

37 - Schaaf & Wheeler

CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

SCOTT STEPHENS

Marin Munlmpal Water District (MMWD) Inkwells Bridge, Lagunitas CA — Mr. Stephens provided the
geologic and geotechnical investigation for the Inkwells Bridge. The
environmentally sensitive location required small footprint foundations to
avoid environmentally sensitive areas and “holes” in the creek bed.
Geotechnical recommendation and criteria were provided for shallow
foundations that bear on hard bedrock areas with rock anchors to provide
supplemental uplift resistances against over-turning moments. The
foundations provided both vertical and lateral support for twin 36-inch
water transmission lines as well as a 170 foot long pedestrian/equestrian
bridge. Geotechnical observation and testing services were provided

during construction.

North Marin Water District (NMWD) Palmer Tank, Novato CA - a new 3,500,000 gallon water tank,
pipeline and access road was construction in undeveloped hillside terrain. Mr. Stephens performed geologic
and geotechnical studies with a focus to limit grading and minimize environmental impacts. He designed a
cost-effective, reinforced shotcrete retaining wall with soil nails that supports a vertical cut behind the tank
and creates the tank pad and surrounding service road. His Geo-Civil design of the shotcrete wall included
plans and technical specifications that were incorporated into the contract documents. During the
construction, we provided consultation, inspection and testing that included submittal review, proof and
performance load testing on the soil nails, shotcrete and concrete compression tests, inspection of
subsurface drainage, foundation subgrade conditions, field density testing of compacted fill for new fill
slopes, and trench backfill and pavement sections. We summarized our inspection and testing in a letter
report with as-built plans

June 19, 2020 . 38 Schaaf & Wheeler
' CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

RYAN AMAYA, PLS
PRINCIPAL, SURVEY PROJECT MANAGER

Registration: Professional ,Land Surveying License (PLS) State of
California L. 8134

Professional Affiliations: California Land Surveyors Association (CLSA)

Role & Responsibilities: Mr. Amaya will manage all schedules, manage all
office surveying personnel, coordinate with field crews, meet all deadlines and
ensure quality control for all surveying services provided throughout the duration
of this project. He will serve as the project manager and primary point of contact
for all project surveying services.

Background: Mr. Amaya has 20 years of experience in the surveying field. His experience includes
construction surveying, boundary surveying, mapping, and subdivision work related to land development.
Specific survey experience includes construction staking, topographic surveys, benchmark-level circuits,
elevation monitoring surveys, tentative maps, parcel maps, final maps, condominium plans, plats and
legal descriptions, lot line adjustments, lot combinations, reversion to acreage maps and ALTA/ACSM
Land Title Surveys.

Representative Project Experience:

CITY OF SAN MATEO, SOUTH TRUNK SANITARY SEWER RELIEF LINE

This project included 8,000 linear feet of sewer improvements in the City's sanitary sewer improvement scope. Kier &
Wright managed and coordinated the entire survey scope including aerial photogrammetry, field survey, traffic control
and coordination with State, County and local agencies for permits. Kier & Wright was contracted under Schaaf &
Wheeler to provide complete topographic survey and right-of-way mapping to Schaaf & Wheeler for sanitary sewer
design.

CITY OF SUNNYVALE, WATER LINE REPLACEMENT

This project included 5,360 linear feet of water line replacement. Kier & Wright managed and coordinated the entire
survey scope, including aerial photogrammetry, field survey, drafting and traffic control. Kier & Wright was contracted
under Carollo Engineers to provide complete topographic survey and right-of-way mapping to Carollo Engineers for
water line design over Bartlett Avenue, California Avenue, Acacia Avenue, Birch Avenue, Cedar Avenue and Dwight
Avenue.

CITY OF HALF MOON BAY, KEHOE DITCH IMPROVEMENTS

This project included surveying of a 3,000-linear-foot ditch for a feasibility study to improve the flow of water into
Pilarcitos Creek. Kier & Wright managed and coordinated the entire survey scope, including field survey and drafting.
Kier & Wright was contracted by Schaaf & Wheeler to provide the topographic survey for their hydrologic/hydraulic
analysis.

CITY OF SANTA CLARA, EL CAMINO SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS,

This project included 2,600 linear feet of sewer improvements in the City’s sanitary sewer improvement scope. Kier &
Wright managed and coordinated the entire survey scope including aerial photogrammetry, field survey, traffic control
and coordination with State, County and local agencies for permits. Kier & Wright was contracted under Schaaf &
Wheeler to provide complete topographic survey and right-of-way mapping to Schaaf & Wheeler for sanitary sewer
design.

KIER & WRIGHT CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS, INC.

3350 Scott Boulevard, Bldg. 22 e Santa Clara, California 95054 » 408-727-6665 * 408-727-5641  kierwright.com

June 19, 2020 39 Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

N/
Joseph Bohorquez BES S
General Manager TESTLAB, INC.

loseph has managed numerous utility locating projects over the past 14 years for
various DOT’s, municipalities, public and private sector clients. He will be responsible
faor the management and coordination of utility services. He will develop multiple
department services schedules and maintain those schedules throughout the duration
of the project. He will prepare staff hours and fee estimates for the combined project
teams. He will review the progress of services to ensure that the standards, time goals
and budget requirements are met.

Professional Experience

I W ‘-‘f{Lﬂ

2010 —Present Bess Testlab, Inc. - General Manager
Education Responsible for project planning and progress, budgets, large capital expenditure
recommendations, department coordination and integration, strategic planning,
Saint Marys College, customer relationships, safety, quality control, and senior management functions.
Masters of Business
Administration 2008 -2011 Bess Testlab, Inc. - Project Manager

Responsible for customer request and preparing proposals. Facilitated securing
subcontracts for work requested. Managed labor efficiencies and project budgets for
several projects simultaneously. Developed and implemented training, and operations

California State A : : -
materials and procedures. Prepared deliverables to clients. Approved final billing

University San Jose, BA

Business Administration Skatements.
2003- 2010 Geovac, a division of Bess Testlah Inc.
. Laboratory Assistant/ Field Technician
S_m Field operations including: Utility Locating, Potholing, and Ground Penetrating Radar.
; Collected samples for metallographic analysis.
Operations
Management Project Related Experience
Management Service
Operations PG&E Gas Transmission and Distribution, California
Management Locating Master Service Agreements — Managed day to day operations of a $3.9M
utility locating project and a staff of 13 utility locators in multiple locations. Project
Applied Organizational tracked the centerline of multiple transmission lines from Antioch — Gilroy
Behavior California. Responsible for production, field trouble shooting, and cost controls.
Strategic Management. AECOM (URS) - Northern & Central, California

Supervised department operations and budgeting for Locating & Potholing Services
—Sonoma US 101 Central A HOV Lanes, Cotati and Rohnert Park CA— US 101
Augxiliary Lanes, Santa Clara County — Sonoma US 101 Central B HOV Lanes,
Petaluma CA — Sonoma US 101 Petaluma River Bridge & HOV Lanes, Petaluma CA —
I-80 San Pablo Dam Road Interchange, San Pablo CA — US 101 Broadway Interchange
Replacement Project, Burlingame CA, SR 25 Safety Project, Santa Clara and San
Benito Counties, Caltrans On-Call 03A1103, 06A1146 & 04A4320 .

Utility Locating GPR

ARB Inc., - Northern & Southern, California

Perform utility investigation services using industry acceptable methods (i.e.,
electronic pipe and cable locating equipment, Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR),
Pipeline Current Mapper (PCM), etc.) to determine the approximate horizontal
position and count of existing utilities within the areas designated by ARB throughout
Northern and Central California.

Hayward (Corporate) | Fresno | Los Angeles | T. (408) 988-0101 | F. (408) 988-0103 - www.besstestlab.com

June 19, 2020 40 | Schaaf & Wheeler
CONSULTING CIVIL ENGINEER



Fee Proposal - August 4, 2020

Schaaf & Wheeler
San Rafael Sanitation District
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and
Replacement Project

Hourly Rate
ject Mandgemen oordinatic

Project Management & QA/QC Reviews

8,400

Utlity Investigation, Topographic Surveying &

7.460

. $ $ $
1.2 Kickoff Meeting 2 4 $ 1,180 $ - $ 1,180
13 Design Review Meelings (4 Meelings) 8 16 $ 4720 $ - $ 4,720
2.1 |Review Inspection Videos 4 10| 80 | $ 16740 $ - |$ 16740
22 Develop Capital Improvement Project List 4 8 16 |$ 5160 $ - $ 5,160
23 |Draff and Final Report 8 12| 20 | $ - [%

7,460

Review Bids
T Bid P

Bid Phase Support

31 lsasemapping 4 16 | 40 |3 10880 $ 52,402 $ s5240|$ 68522
a2 Geotechnical Investigalions, Evaluations, and
: Report 2 6 $  1,560| % 28500 $ 2850|% 32910
33 Utility Locating 4 8 $ 2,240 $ 22,620 $ 2262|% 27122
3.4  |35% Design Submittal 15 40 | 120 | $ 31750 $ 400 | $ 40]% 32,190
3.5 65% Design Submittal 32 60 [ 160 | $ 46120 % 1,680 $ 400 | $ 208 | $ 48,408
3.6 95% Design Submittal 24 40 100 | $ 30.140 3 400 % 401 % 30,580
3.7 |FinalBid Documents 8 20 | 32 |$ 11,080 $ 400 | $ 401% 11,520
4.1.1 |Bid Phase Support 4 2 $ 1,220 $ - 3 1,220
4.12 |Post Bid Package 2 ) 6 |$ 1470 $ - $ 1,470
4.1.3 2 4 $ 1180 $

1,180

$ $ $
422 |Post Bid Package 2 6 |$ 1470 $ - $ 1,470
423 |Review Bids 2 4 $ 1,180 1% - |$ 1180
5.1.1 |Preconstruction conference 2 4 $ 1,180 3 - 13 1,180
5.12 [Site Visits During Construction (3) 6 6 $ 2,400 $ - $ 2,400
513 |Respond to RFls 4 8 $ 2360 $ - $ 2.360
51.4 |Submittal Review 6 16 | 24 | $ 8500 3 - $ 8,500
5.1.5 |Assist with Contract Change Orders 2 4 $ 1,180 $ - 3 1,180
5.1.6 |Weekly Meeting Attendance (20) 8 40 $  9.280 $ - $ 9,280
5.1.7 |Final Walk Through and Punch List 3 8 $ 2,780 $ - $ 2,780
5.1.8 [|Record Drawings 4 12 | $  2%40 $ 400] % 40| % 3,380
5.2.1 [Preconstruciion conference 2 4 $ 1,180 $ - $ 1,180
592 |[Site Visits During Construction (3) é 3 $ 2,400 $ - $ 2,400
523 |Respond fo RFis 4 8 $ 2360 $ - [$ 2360
594 |Submittal Review 6 16 | 24 | $ 8500 $ - $ 8,500
595 |Assistwith Contract Change Orders 2 4 $ 1,180 $ - |$ 180
524 |Weekly Meeting Attendance (20] 8 40 $ 9280 $ - $ 9,280
5.2.7 |Final Walk Through and Punch List 3 8 $ 2780 $ - $ 2,780
528 |Record Drawings 4 12 | § 2940 $ 400(% 401% 3380




San Rafael
Sanitation
District

Proposal for:

ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR
2020 SEWER PIPE REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT PROJECT

P 8PP IR RR AT AR, 2 222, P AR B, PILDBPDFP AP DG DT IP ISP PPN AR DRFFPPFIIFPIDDERIFDDFP PPIIRIPPPBTIIIS AIDPIIIIDIIDPAPBIL IR ESIER riG
R B e A o o S 0 2 s

PREPARED BY:

SVBKFI00
o YEARS . June 19, 2020
ENGINEERS . SURVEYORS . PLANNERS




PROPOSAL FOR:

4

‘ ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR
2020 SEWER PIPE REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT
PROJECT

N

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1 | Cover Letter
Project Understanding
Project Approach and Level of Effort

Project Schedule

o B W N

Statement of Qualifications
Experience & History
References
Organization Chart
Team Member Resumes

Fee Proposal
(Separate Sealed Envelope)




COVER LETTER

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

‘| v BKF

|0 | ENGoEeRs
SURVETORS
YEARS  PLANNERS

Doris Toy June 19, 2020
District Manager BKF Project No. 20200978
San Rafael Sanitation District

111 Morphew Street

San Rafael, CA 94901

SUBJECT: 2020 SEWER PIPE REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT PROJECT

Dear Ms. Toy:

It is with great pleasure and enthusiasm that BKF Engineers (BKF) is submitting our proposal to assist the San Rafael
Sanitation District (District) with engineering design services for 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project.
Inside this proposal, we have demonstrated why our extensive experience, professional team members, and use of
cutting edge technologies make us the most qualified firm to help support the District's efforts. The following pages
describe our understanding of the project, critical project issues, challenges, and milestone tasks, as well as our
proposed project team and relevant project experience. The separately-sealed envelope submitted with this proposal
contains our fee proposal with estimated hours and costs for services. :

Our proposed project team includes seasoned professionals who have successfully completed similar sewer
infrastructure repair and replacement projects. This team will stay intimately involved with this project from beginning
to end, providing hands-on communication and coordination. Assigned personnel include BKF Vice President Jason
Kirchmann, who has worked extensively with the City of San Rafael and coordinated projects with the District on
several projects, will serve as the project lead. Jason will be supported by an experienced technical staff including
Becky Dower, who will serve as our Engineering Manager and Erik Bjornstrom who will function as the Lead
Technical Engineer. Supporting team members include Yousra Tilden, who will serve in a QA/QC Manager role, and
Jonathan Shattuck, who will manage BKF's in-house land survey and underground locating field crews. Having these
key services in-house allow us to coordinate effectively across multiple disciplines and exercise flexibility within the
scope of work to successfully deliver the project. In addition to our proposed staff for this project, BKF has over 470
employees, including 146 licensed professional engineers, on which we can call upon for assistance, should it be
determined that additional resources are necessary.

BKF is local. The project will be run out of our San Rafael office with support from our other 15 offices strategically
located across California, if needed. With our San Rafael office less than 10 miles from the project site and the District's
offices, BKF will be able to mobilize quickly to perform site visits and attend meetings on short notice. Our local office
also allows field surveys and investigations to be performed more efficiently by combining local knowledge and
minimal travel time.

We reviewed and accept the terms and conditions of the Sample-Professional Services Agreement included in the RFP
and agree to sign the agreement upon award. If you need any additional information, please feel free to contact me
during the selection process at (415) 930-7960 or jkirchmann@bkf.com. We would welcome the opportunity to discuss
our approach and qualifications with you.

Sincerely,
BKF ENGINEERS

e

.Jason Kirchmann, PE, PLS, QSD/P
Vice President/Project Lead

BKF ENGINEERS | 4040 Civic Center Drive, Suite 530, San Rafael, CA 94903 | . 415.930.7960 | f415.930.7979 | www.bkf.com

RL |
i |



PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

ENGNEERS
0' SUAYETORY
WEARS  PLANNERS

2 %‘?BI\F

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

The San Rafael Sanitation District televised approximately 8 miles of sanitary sewers throughout central and southern
San Rafael during the winter of 2019. A large majority of the sewer facilities are at or have surpassed their service life.
Maintenance of these facilities is cost prohibitive, making replacement and rehabilitation a necessity. The proposed
project will utilize the data collected by the District in 2019 to develop a sanitary sewer repair and replacement plan,
which will identify a minimum of 1.5 miles of sewer to be improved in 2021. The District is considering separating the
2021 project into two projects with a budget of $2M to $2.5M each. A detailed review of the District’s collected data
will be needed to prioritize the improvements for the 2021 year in order to achieve the goals of improving a minimum
of 1.5 miles of sewer while staying within the allocated budget. ‘

The project will include topographic surveyi'ng, utility investigations, geotechnical studies, assessment of collected
reports/CCTV logs by the district, prioritized list of improvements, and preparation of construction documents,
recommendations for future projects and support to the District during the bid and construction phases of the 2021
project. :

BKF has identified the following project goals and objectives for the project:
1. Define appropriate rehabilitation/replacement method for each pipe segments based on the defects (location,
length, number and severity), ease of access, and cost.

2. Identify reasons for pipe/structure failures and prepare a design that mitigates the issues for maximum lifespan of
new facilities.

3. Package pipe segments with similar repair methods in a number of contracts that match with available budgets.

Identify, at a minimum, 1.5 miles of improvements to the approximate 8 miles of sewer televised by the District in
2019.

5. Prepare the contract documents on budget and in a timely manner to meet the deadlines for bidding the
contracts in time for construction in 2021

6. Develop large scale base mapping in efficient manner. The multi-faceted approach will include a combination of
GIS data, as-built plans, sewer investigations performed by the District and field surveys.

12:28:27 PM  1/22/2019 31.45




PROJECT APPROACH & LEVEL OF EFFORT

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

3 B BKE

100 555

YEARS  PLANNERS

PROJECT APPROACH

BKF will be using the District's Scope of Work provided in the Request for Proposals (RF) and our experience on
similar projects as a baseline for our project approach. Once the Preliminary Design is done, separate packages will
be prepared for each bid package. The content and proposed improvement packages will be decided by using the
following criteria:

1
2.
3
4

5.

Method of rehabilitation or replacement

Location of repair

Permit acquirement duration (if necessary)

Impact on other projects happening at the same location (for example the sanitary sewer project should be before
any road paving work in the area)

Available budgets

The following presents some of the challenges based on our review of the District’s surveys and our prior experience
on similar projects, such as the San Mateo Basin D Rehabilitation project (refer to page 18 in Section 5) and our
approach to address them.

1.

CCTV/GIS/As-Built Data Accuracy - The pipeline and manhole evaluation will be done in three steps:

« CCTV/GIS Integration — BKF will integrate the CCTV information performed by the District into the City’s GIS
information.

« Clean Information — BKF will “clean” up the data. This includes checking GIS information, CCTV reports, as-
built plans, field notes and perform site visits to gain detailed information of deficient manholes identified
in the District's logs. BKF will coordinate with the District's Maintenance and Design Staff to fill the missing
information and to correct any mislabels, etc.

« Manhole and Repairs Field Investigations — These will be done to all the upstream and downstream
manholes of the identified pipe segments. The CCTV information does not provide manhole evaluation
and the manhole inspections provide general condition notes. Therefore, BKF is proposing to conduct a
field investigation of the manholes to gain additional data to inform design decisions. Also, the location
of the repair to other utilities and the access to the repair will be recorded. The field investigation involves
taking photos, checking manhole depths and conditions, checking accessibility and nearby utilities, and
documenting everything on the GIS system directly from the field using electronic tablets to minimize data
entry errors.

Constructability Assessment — Some methods of rehabilitation may not be feasible once they are verified in the
field. Once the draft rehabilitation methods are established, BKF will check constructability and identify constraints,
such pipes running close to structures, existing utilities nearby and overhead utilities. The proposed method of
repair is then adjusted based on that field investigation and the desktop review.

Rehabilitation /Replacement Validation — A systematic criteria is needed to validate the method of rehabilitation

or replacement. The key to a good design is conducting an alternatives evaluation by validating rehabilitation
requirements, which includes identifying deficiencies, defining site constraints/challenges, evaluating
environmental impacts and estimating rough order of magnitude cost for available rehabilitation methods.

BKF will use a streamlined approach that we have used on several similar past projects. Our approach is based

on determination of the best construction method, and getting the District's agreement and approval before
proceeding with the preparation of the contract documents. This will help minimize surprises, changes and rework,
thus saving the District time and budget.

BKF will work with the District to establish a set of criteria for picking the deficiencies that need to be fixed, such as
the severity of the sags or the type and number of defects. BKF will augment the CCTV video inspections and GIS
review with field investigations and surveys.

For each pipe segment identified, BKF will evaluate whether it needs to be replaced or rehabilitated/ repaired and
method of rehabilitation. BKF will rank the identified projects based on hydraulic or structural deficiencies, method
of construction, required permits, required easements (if any), ease of construction, required environmental
clearance and timing of other projects in the area, such as road paving, available and budgets and the most
efficient schedule.



PROJECT APPROACH & LEVEL OF EFFORT

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

3 = BKF

100- &

YEARS  PUNNERS

BKF will establish a matrix of the different rehabilitation/replacement methods and the criteria of each method that
takes into consideration, pipe size and material, pipe slope and depth, system configuration, type of defect, etc.
Using the matrix shown on the following page, BKF identifies the rehabilitation or replacement method required for
each pipe segment (refer to Table on page 5 for a sample).

It is important to select the most cost-effective alternative that provides the longest service life. BKF will
prepare a Basis of Design Memorandum that summarizes the result of the condition assessment and the design
recommendations. We will have discussions with the District staff and make recommendations to the District on
method of construction.

Public Outreach, Community and Board Communication — Construction will occur in City streets and may impact
traffic patterns or utility service. BKF will assist the District in communicating with the property owners who may
be impacted by the project. The public outreach approach will include coordination with the District, preparation
of informational mailers such as flyers, postcards or website posting, and one community meeting. BKF will be
available to participate and present the project at one District Board Meeting.

Minimizing Changes During Construction — The most common type of change orders emerges from differing

site conditions. As part of our services early in the project, we endeavor to provide as complete a picture of the
existing conditions as possible. We also understand that available record information often will not represent
exact as-built conditions. We will perform a thorough investigation of existing above and below ground utilities
through field survey, site visits, record data reviews and potholing (if needed) and incorporate them into design to
minimize surprises during construction. When a contractor does find field conditions which differ from the design
plans, the team’s response is critical in minimizing the impact to the project. BKF recognizes the importance of
immediately addressing unforeseen field conditions encountered by a contractor during construction.

Underground Utility Locating, GPR and Pothole Combination — Some areas may have many restrictions related

to existing utilities. In order to reduce construction change orders, if requested, BKF will perform underground
utility locating with our in-house utility locating crews, including the use of Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR). In
some cases, additional investigations may be required in the form of utility potholes. To minimize the number

of potholes and the associated time for the work, BKF has used Ground Penetrating Radar (GPR) services to
successfully identify the utilities’ locations and approximate depths quickly. This will be followed by potholing, but
only of the critical locations. This method has proven time and again to save our clients time and money.

Control of Large Data — Having large data that needs synthesis and analysis could be overwhelming and can have
a lot of human error. The large data from the CCTV inspection is right away integrated into the GIS database. Also,
using the tablets during filed investigations reduces the number of error of data entering. BKF also will also utilize
at least two staff members to review CCTV information and the defect identification and the proposed repairs. The
QA/QC manager does another QA/QC review for all the work. The proposed repairs constructability are verified in
the field and by a desktop review.



Table 1: Sample Rehabilitation/Replacement Methods Design Criteria

Rehabilitation
Method

Spot Repair

Pipe Bursting/Reaming

Cured-in-Place Pipe (CIPP)

Modified Cross Section Lining
(deformed & reformed, swage
lining, and rolldown)

Pipe Replacement

Open Trench

Trenchless (bore and jack,
microtunneling, horizontal
directional drilling)

Design Criteria

PROJECT APPROACH & LEVEL OF EFFORT

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

3

FaBKF

100+ Seon
YEARS  PULANNERS

Diversion Excavation | ' : Utility :
Maximum of the of Entry Sepat:ate | Cleaning  Traffic Gegtechilical Conflict ips
Diameter Range Pipe Material I : Pipe Defects ; Connection of | ; Investigation : Diameter
nstallation Flow and Exit A | Required  Impact Radiesey Inspection Ch
Required Pits i hod Required L
1. Isolated broken,
fracture & offset Service connections
; : problems are reinstated by . .
Any Size All Types 5-50 ft 2. Enlarge small YES NO e YES Minor Not required NO NO $
diameter pipes reconnection
3. Minor sags
VCP 1. Broken and fracture : ;
PVC problems Serwcelconneéutc:ns
4-24in DIP (Difficult) 750 ft 2. Enlarge small YES YES ptileciady NO | Moderate | Required YES Increase $$
No asbestos diameter pipes econnaction
pipe allowed 3. Minor sags
CMp 1. Small offset joints A remesemnalley
VCP 5 Bl cutting device is
6-180 in P;/EC 1500 ft 3. Cracks YES NO used ?""{:@a closed YES Minor | Not Required NO Decrease $$
4. Multiple bends GEQUIETN wemeta
DIP 5. Minor sads to reopen service
Steel ' 9 connections
Re%if’?\;rge(gf 15 CMP Deformed/Reformed A remote-controlled
it VCP (2,500 ft) 1. Minor fracture and cutting device is
Rolld k i . .
Drawdown/ PF\,’EC DraWd(‘i“é% fc;) pa - - YES YES ”:iffu;’t‘”f\“l i::;’;ff YES Minor | Not Required NO Decrease $
RO]!?h?nw_rw;_lgg i) DIP Thin-Walled Lining 3. No water sags to reopen service
Lining (20-46 in) Steel (3,000 ft) connections
1 Major water sage Service connections
Any Size All Types No limit 2. Several severe YES YES i rems.tated zy NO Major Required YES _ $$$9
defeis excavation an
reconnection




PROJECT APPROACH & LEVEL OF EFFORT

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

3 S BKF

[ | EiGnens
SURVETORY
YEARS  PLANNEAY

SCOPE OF WORK
TASK 1: PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Of first and foremost importance when starting a project, is having a clear understanding of the Scope of Services and
limits of the work. It is the initial submittal of the preliminary plans that establishes the foundation and framework

for a successful design, which is why having a clear understanding is so important. BKF will lead an initial "kick-off"
meeting with the District's assigned project manager. During the kick-off meeting, we will discuss the project in detail,
confirm the project's goals and objectives, and establish the appropriate communication protocol.

BKF will meet with the District at each of the proposed milestones to submit documents and receive comments. BKF
will develop an agenda for each meeting, where we have specific items we would like to discuss with the District.
Similarly, BKF will develop meeting minutes and an open action item matrix for each meeting we hold with the District
where decisions are made, so that they can be documented.

BKF will monitor the project scope, schedule and budget throughout the entire project. BKF will provide on-going
correspondence with the District and periodic review meetings as necessary.

Deliverables:

+  Meeting Agenda

+  Meeting Minutes

«  Project Schedule and Updates
»  Action Item Matrix

TASK 2: BACKGROUND RESEARCH AND ANALYSIS OF DISTRICT'S CCTV FILES OF EXISTING
SEWERS

BKF will perform a detailed review of the 2019 CCTV survey and manhole inspection logs. Additionally, we will gather
existing drawings, specifications, studies, and supporting documents from the District and other local sources to better
define the project’s opportunities and constraints. The research and data will be compiled into a report format for
delivery to the District. The report will provide a high quality analysis of the video inspection results and will identify a
list of recommendations for future Capital Improvement Projects (CIP).

Deliverables:
»  Report of analysis, data collection and recommendation of future CIP alternatives

TASK 3: EXISTING CONDITIONS MAPPING AND STUDIES

Base Mapping

BKF will prepare a base map of existing conditions for use in the construction plans. In an effort to be efficient with our
services, the base map will be a composite of available public resources, such as the City of San Rafael and the County
of Marin GIS systems. The available data from the GIS systems is anticipated to include contours, aerial photography,
schematic utility locations, assessor parcel lines and other relevant map data. BKF's in-house surveyors will supplement
the collected data by performing select topographic mapping in critical areas. The topographic field survey will include
"dips” of sewer structures, spot elevations, curbs, sidewalks, fences, trees and surface evidence of utilities within the
contemplated project area. The datasets will be combined to establish the existing conditions for the project. This
composite approach will save the consultant team time and the District money by focusing field survey efforts only in
areas where high detail topography is needed.

BKF will gather existing drawings, specifications, studies and supporting documents from the District, the City of San
Rafael, and franchise utility providers. This information will be compiled and inserted into the base map to further
refine the underground utility mapping.

Geotechnical Investigation
BKF's subconsultant RGH will assess subsurface conditions and to provide recommendations for trenching, support,
and backfilling for the project as follows:

DR |
Y] i

6



PROJECT APPROACH & LEVEL OF EFFORT

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

3 B BKF

100 s

YEARS  PLANNERS

Review of Existing Information ("Desktop Review")

RGH will review the following information for the pipeline areas:

«  Existing published geologic maps

+  Bay Mud thickness maps

+  Existing geotechnical studies in the City of San Rafael database
«  Existing geotechnical studies in the Marin County database

+  Existing geotechnical reports prepared by RGH

Based on the above review, RGH will develop anticipated subsurface conditions for the pipeline segments being
considered for repair and replacement. In doing so, we will identify areas where subsurface exploration with borings
would be beneficial to the project.

Health and Safety Plan

RGH will prepare a project-specific Health and Safety Plan that will cover proposed subsurface exploration locations.
The plan will cover job site safety, COVID-19 safety requirements, personal protective equipment, project personnel
contact information, and directions to nearest Emergency Room.

Utility Clearance

RGH’s engineer or geologist will conduct a surficial reconnaissance of the areas where subsurface exploration is
recommended and mark planned exploration locations in white paint. RGH will contact Underground Service Alert
(USA or 811) so that their members can mark their facilities within the area of our planned exploration.

Permits ,

RGH will obtain drilling permits for the borings from County of Marin Environmental Health Services. The permits are
required for drilling within the County of Marin. In addition, RGH will obtain an Encroachment Permit from the City
of San Rafael (City) for drilling within their Right-of-Way. It is assumed that there will be no fee for the Encroachment
Permit.

Traffic Control

Traffic control will be required for the boring locations. RGH will develop a Traffic Control Plan (TCP) for the planned
boring locations. The TCP will include recommended signage, cone set up, and flagman. The TCP will be submitted
to the City for review and approval. During the exploration program, traffic control will be provided per the approved
plan.

Field Exploration Program

Once cleared for utilities and permits approved, RGH will explore the subsurface conditions in the previously identified
areas by drilling eight to ten borings on the order of 10 to 20 feet deep using a truck-mounted auger rig. Our
engineer or geologist will log the borings and obtain bulk and relatively undisturbed samples for visual examination,
classification, and laboratory testing. As required by the County, the borings will be backfilled with cement-bentonite
grout. Soil cuttings generated during drilling will be placed in drums and tested for off-site disposal. Disposal assumes
that the cuttings can be taken to a non-hazardous disposal facility.

Laboratory Testing Program

Selected samples representative of the material types encountered will be laboratory tested to determine certain
characteristics pertinent to our analysis. These may include moisture content, dry density, shear strength, classification
(Atterberg Limits and percent of silt and clay), and corrosion.

Engineering Analysis and Report
Based on the review of existing information and analysis of the field and laboratory work, we will develop the
following geotechnical information:

1. A brief description of soil, bedrock, and groundwater conditions;
2 A discussion of seismic hazards that may affect the areas of repair and replacement; and
3. Specific conclusions and recommendations concerning:



PROJECT APPROACH & LEVEL OF EFFORT

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

3 tBKF

100+ weon

YEARS  PLANNERS

Primary geotechnical engineering concerns and mitigating measures, as applicable;
Trench excavation characteristics;

Directional drilling characteristics, if required;

Bore and jack characteristics, if required;

Lateral forces for shoring and sending/receiving wall design, as applicable;

Trench backfill requirements; and

Supplemental geotechnical engineering services.

@~p oo Ty

RGH will be available to consult with the District during the course of our work to transmit preliminary design data as
needed. Upon completion, the results of the study will be presented in a written report including summaries of the
field and laboratory work.

TASK 4: DESIGN PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND COST ESTIMATE (PS&E)

35% Design Submittal: BKF will prepare 35% construction drawings. The drawings will reflect the project limits,
preliminary details, the horizontal and vertical alignment of the new sewer (where applicable), profiles of critical utility
crossings, locations of sewer laterals and cleanouts, and limits of the pavement reconstruction.

BKF will review boilerplate technical specifications provided by the District and update them to accommodate
this project.

BKF will prepare a basis of design memorandum which will include an analysis of the CCTV and manhole inspection
logs, recommended improvements to satisfy the District's goal of a minimum of 1.5 miles of sewer improvements and
a description of future projects along the length of the approximate 8 miles of sewer televised by the District in 2019.
BKF will also prepare a Preliminary Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (Estimate).

Deliverables: :

+  35% Construction Drawings

»  35% Specifications

«  35% Engineers Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

65% Design Submittal: BKF will meet with the District to discuss the 35% review comments prior to commencing with
documents for the 65% submittal. BKF will address the District’s comments and increase the level of detail in the
construction documents. ’

The 65% Special Provisions and Technical specifications will be updated to incorporate the District's comments and
additional items shown on the 65% drawings. A bid sheet with material quantities and units of measure will be added.
BKF will update the Preliminary Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (Estimate).

Potential utility conflicts will be identified during the 35% Design phase. After review by the District, BKF will discuss
specific locations which may benefit from further investigation such as electromagnetic underground utility detection,
ground penetrating radar and potholing. Underground locating and potholing services can be performed as described
in the optional tasks below as part of the 65% design phase.

Additionally, BKF will submit plans to utility companies and other agencies for review and comment. BKF will work with
the District and other agencies in an effort to resolve conflicts brought to our attention.

At this stage, if requested by the District, the bid and construction packages will be separated into two sets to match
the allocated funding and to encourage medium-sized contractors to participate in the bid process.

Deliverables:

«  65% Construction Drawings

«  65% Technical Specifications

«  65% Engineers Opinion of Probable Construction Cost



PROJECT APPROACH & LEVEL OF EFFORT

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

3 2 BKF

100+ e

YEARS  PLANNERS

95% Design Submittal: BKF will meet with the District to discuss the 65% review comments prior to commencing with
documents for the 95% submittal. BKF will address the District’s comments, incorporate the results of the underground
utility locating/potholing (if any) and increase the level of detail in the construction documents.

Technical specifications will be refined to reflect project specific items and comments from the District. Front end
specifications are anticipated to be prepared by the District, however BKF will review and make recommendations to
the District regarding edits to the front end specifications for coordination with the technical specifications and project
plans. '

Deliverables:

«  95% Construction Drawings

»  95% Technical Specifications

«  Front End Specification Comments

«  95% Engineers Opinion of Probable Construction Cost (Estimate)

Final Bid Documents; After District review of the 95% design submittal, BKF will meet with the District to discuss
their final comments. BKF will incorporate and address the District’s comments in the final documents. BKF will make
adjustment to the Basis of Design Memorandum to discuss any changes in project assumptions throughout the
process. '

Deliverables:

»  Signed and Sealed Final Construction Drawings (22"x 34" bond prints)
+  Signed and Sealed Final Technical Specifications

«  Final Engineers Opinion of Probable Construction Cost

»  Final Basis of Design Memorandum

TASK 5: PUBLIC OUTREACH

BKF will prepare a letter describing the project design schedule and process allowing property owners to comment.
The intent of the public outreach process is to provide a way for property owners to provide input that may be
valuable to the design, construction, or maintenance of the new sewer system. Additional public outreach materials
such as letters, flyers, informative post cards and website postings will be prepared as requested by the District.

BKF will be available to present the design process and final design elements to the District's Board for approval.

Deliverables:

«  Public outreach documents (flyers, letters, postcards, etc.) in hard copy format

+  Attendance and presentation at District Board meeting, including supporting information for inclusion in the
agenda packet

TASK &: BIDDING ASSISTANCE

Upon completion of the Final Bid Documents and prior to the District sending the project out to bid, BKF will

be available to consult with the District regarding any final questions on/or interpretations of the construction
documents. During the Bid Phase, BKF will facilitate a pre-bid meeting, set the meeting agenda, provide responses to
bidders' questions, participate in the bid opening process, review the validity and completeness of the bids, prepare a
bid tabulation, provide recommendations to award the project to the most responsive bidder(s) and if needed, prepare
bid addenda to each bid package.

Deliverables:

+  Bid document addendums

+ Meeting agenda and minutes
+  Pre-bid meeting sign-in sheet



PROJECT APPROACH & LEVEL OF EFFORT

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

3 v BKF

100 sween
Veans riamaen

TASK 7: DESIGN SUPPORT DURING CONSTRUCTION

For each construction project, BKF will participate in the pre-construction conference and respond to questions
concerning the plans specifications and estimates for each bid package.

+  BKF will be available to conduct site visits requested by the district to observe construction, provide consultation
to the District and respond to contractor’s questions. ‘

«  BKF will respond to Requests for Information (RFI) from the contractor when requested by the District. Contract
document addenda will be issued and plan revisions will be made when required.

«  BKF will assist and consult with District staff in reviewing contractor submittals and shop drawings.

«  BKF will support the district with contract change orders, if they occur.

«  BKF will participate in weekly Owner, Engineer and Contractor (OEC) weekly construction meetings. BKF will be
responsible for setting the meeting agendas and issuing minutes of the meetings.

+  As the project nears substantial completion, BKF will perform a site walk and prepare a “punch list” of outstanding
items for the contractor to complete in order for the District to accept and finalize the project. If requested, BKF
will perform a final site walk to review items noted in the “punch list” once completed by the contractor.

«  BKF will prepare record drawings for delivery to the District. Record drawings will be compiled based on contractor
markups, inspection field notes and observed construction activities. Record drawings will be provided in PDF
format, as well as 11"x 17" and 22"x 34" bond prints.

Deliverables:

+ Response to RFIs and submittals

«  Plan and Specification revisions, if necessary
+ Meeting agenda and minutes

+ Change order correspondence and issuance

DELIVERABLES

Except as specifically noted above, all deliverables will be provided in PDF format and the electronic files utilized to
develop the deliverables (AutoCAD, ArcView, Microsoft Word, Microsoft Excel, etc). While some non-CAD software may
be utilized to develop some of the project documents, all plans generated will be prepared in CAD compatible format
and will be converted prior to final printing and delivery to the District. All deliverables are proposed to be provided in
electronic format only, however, any number of hard copy deliverables can be provided upon request.

OPTIONAL SERVICES

Optional Task A: Pump Around Plan

It is anticipated that the project will require some pump around of sewer flows during construction. Over spills are

a major concern during pump and operation. The pump around plans may be generated by the District, or made a
requirement of the contractor subject to District approval in the form of a submittal. However, if requested, BKF will
prepare specific Pump Around Plans. The Pump Around Plan will be developed during the 65% design phase and will
include discussion with District office and maintenance staff to determine preferred rerouting to minimize pumping.
around and potential for spills. Pump around concepts may include tactics such as use of dry storm water pipes to
avoid traffic disruption and risk to the pump routing pipes.

Optional Task B: Utility Locating and Potholing

If requested, BKF will provide field detection and marking of existing underground utilities in critical areas. The
underground locating will use a combination of electromagnetic underground detection and ground penetrating
radar (GPR) to detect the horizontal.and vertical location of underground utilities. This scope assumes up to 10 project
locations with markout not exceeding 100-feet outside the construction limits. Utility locating will be performed by
BKF's in-house utility locating field crews.

If requested, BKF's subconsultant, Ghilotti Bros, Inc,, will conduct utility investigations by potholing and exposing
existing utilities in critical locations. This scope assumes up to 10 utility potholes.

The results of the utility locating and potholing will be added to the existing conditions base mapping and the design
will be adjusted as necessary to accommodate the existing conditions.

10



PROJECT APPROACH & LEVEL OF EFFORT

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

3 S BKF
100-

YEARS  FLANYERS

Assumptions:
This scope of work assumes the following will be the responsibility of, and provided by the District:
» All construction inspection work and contract administration

+  Any utility underground maps, CCTV videos of existing sewers, and any existing information in the possession of
the District necessary to complete the design

Design and coordination of significant utility relocations, except as explicitly described above, will not be required.

Traffic control for construction activities will be the responsibility of the contractor, subject to District approval of
contractor submitted traffic control plans.

BKF's services are limited to those expressly set forth in the described Scope of Work. BKF will provide the scope of
services consistent with, and limited to, the standard of care applicable to such services.

gy

11



PROJECT APPROACH & LEVEL OF EFFORT

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

LEVEL OF EFFORT

San Rafael Sanitation District
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

CONSULTING SERVICES H = RGH cBl
& 5 £ s g
o 1= o 3 o
glele |G|z
S|Els|s|a|E|8
PN B k r o3|z |E8[5|s|z)|2
] Y g |z | g £lg |z | Geotech Pothole
[ @ _|ul =| v a [7] W
Assoc| VP | SPM | EM | E3 E1 |2Man| §
Task Description Q
1 Project Management & QA/QC
11 Project Management & QA/QC 12 | 24 2 38
1.2 Meelings 8 16 24
Project Manag t & QA/QC |12 | 32| 2 [16 ) O 0 [ 62 0 0
2 Background Research and Analysis of CCTV files
241 Review CCTV files and logs 1 2 12 15
2.2 Analysis and Report 2 24 | 48 | 12 86
Background Research and Analysis of CCTV files Subtotal:} 0 3 0 | 26 | 60 | 12 o | 101 0 L]
3 Existing Conditions Mapping and Studles
3.1 Base Mapping (2021 construclion project limits) 4 6 2 72 32 | 116
3.2 Geolechnical I tigalion (desktop review) 2 1 1 85
3.3 Geolechnical Investigation (field investigation) 2 1 1 4 72
isting Conditlons Mapping and Studi, btotal:| 0 8 6 4 2 | 72 | 32 | 120 158 0
4 Design Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimate (PS&E)
4.1 35% Design
4.1.1 35% Conslruction Drawings 8 12 | 12 | 28 60
4.1.2 35% Specil 2 2 6 10
4.1.3 35% Estimate 2 2 4 12 20
4.2 65% Design
4.21 65% Conslruction Drawings B 10 16 32 64
4.21 65% Specificalions 2 4 12 18
4.2.3 65% Estimate 1 2 2 8 13
4.3 95% Design
4.3.1 95% Construction Drawings 4 4 6 16 30
4.3.2 95% Specifications 2 2 4 8
433 95% Esti 1 1 1 8 11
4.4 Final Bld Documents
44.1 Final Plans 2 4 2 10 18
4.4.2 Final (incl front end review) 2 1 2 5
4.4.3 Final Eslimate and bid items list 1 2 4 6 13
Design Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimate (PS&E) Subtotal:| 0 33 0 |46 | 71 |120| 0 | 270 L] [}
5 Public Outreach
5.1 Public Quireach 2 2 8 12
5.2 Board Presentation 4 4 8
Public Outreach Subtotal:( 0 6 0 6 0 8 0 20 0 0
6 Bid Phae
4.24 Bid Addendums 2 2 2 6 12
4,21 Pre-Bid Meeting 2 2 1 5
4.2.3 Bid opening and review 2 6 8
Bid Phae Subtofal:} 0 6 0 4 8 T 0 25 0 0
7 Construction Support
7.4 Pre-Conslruction Meeting 2 2 1 5
7.2 Site Visits (3) 2 8 10
7.3 RFl's 2 2 2 2 8 13
7.4 Submitlals and Shop Drawings 2 6 10 20 38
7.5 Change Order Support 2 4 6
7.6 Weekly OEC Meetings (16) 10 48 58
77 Final punch list site visit(s) 4 2 6
7.8 Record drawings 1 2 6 16 _ 25
Construction Support Subtotal:}l 0 | 21 | 0 | 76 | 18 | 41 0 | 156 13 L]
Consultant Labor Totals| 12| 109 8| 178| 159| 260| 32| 754 171
San Rafael Sanitation District
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project z RGH GBI
OPTIONAL SERVICES e | e el .| B
slel| 8|8 |o
a © £l & £ o
55| 2l Blz]e
= | = L I I I
213 ? o T|E 5|8 | = Geotech Pothole
- g |8%| & r £ I
glE&|a|d8|s|& |88
Assoc| VP | SPM | EM | E3 | E1 |2-Man| T
Task Description 2
Optional Services
A Pump Around Plans 2 2 2 12 | 20 38
B.1 Utility Locating 2 4 40 32
B.2 U!illl! Patholing 2 1 8 11 96
Optional Services Total:| 2 6 4 3 | 12 ] 68 | 32 | 49 0 96

™

100+

VEARS

BKF

ENGIREERS
SURVETOAS
FLARNERS



PROJECT SCHEDULE 4 I BKF

Proposal - San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project 100" bou

YEARS  PLASNERS

PROJECT SCHEDULE

D [rask  [Task Name Duration Start Finish -
Mode | 13rd Quarter ath Quarter 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter
Jun |l | Aug Sep Oct | Nov E Dec Jan | Feb l Mar Apr | May | Jun Jul Aug |
" Notice to Proceed/Kickoff Meeting 1day Mon 6/29/20 Mon 6/29/20 6/29
Task 1:'Proj'ect Management 15 mons Tue 6/30/20 Mon 8/23/21 ’ I
Task 2: Background Research and Analysis of District's CCTV Files 15 days Mon 6/29/20 Fri 7/17]20
Review Files and Prepare Report 3 wks Mon 6/29/20 Fri 7/17/20
Task 3: Existing Conditions Mapping and Studies 20 days Tue 6/30/20 Mon 7/27/20
GlS and Topographic Base Mapping 3 wks Tue 6/36/20 Mon 7/20/20
Utility Base Mapping and Data Requests ' 4 wks Tue 6/30/20 ‘Mon 7/27/20
Geotechnical Investigation Desktop Review 1mon Tue 6/30/20 "Mon 7/27/20
' Task 4: Design Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimate (PS&E) 178 days Tue7/21/20 Thu 3/25/21 I i
35 % Design : 51 days Tue 7/21/20 Tue 9/29/20 I 1
35% Design 6 wks Tue7/21/20 Mon 8/31/20 _1
35% Design Package to District 1day Tue 9/8/20  Tue 9/8/20 ol 9/8
District Review ' 3 wks Wed 9/9/20  Tue9/29/20 h]
65% Design ' 76 days Wed 9/30/20 Wed 1/13/21 I 1
#iSJ Review Meeting and address comments on 35% Package 2 wks Wed 9/30/20 Tue 10/13/20 —
16 B 65% PS&E Design 6 wks Wed 11/11/20 Tue 12/22/20 H
17 B 65% Design Package to District 1day Wed 12/23/20 Wed 12/23/20 12/23
1 B District Review 3 wks Thu 12/24/20 Wed 1/13/21 :
19 B Geotechnical Field Investigation 1 mon Wed 10/14/20 Tue 11/10/20
20 @ 95% Design 51 days Thu 1/14/21 Thu3/25/21 I |
21 3@ Review Meeting and address comments on 65% Package 2 wks Thu 1/14/21 Wed 1/27/21
2 B 95% PS&E Design Package 4 wks Thu1/14/21 Wed 2/10/21 _
23 [ 95% Design Package to District 1day Thu 2/11/21 Thu2/11/21 2/11
% B District Review 3 wks Thu2/11/21 Wed 3/3/21 '
s B “Final Design 16 days Thu3/4/21 Thu3/25/21
26 A Review Meeting and address comments on 95% Package 2 wks Thu3/4/21  Wed 3/17/21 = ‘
27 B Issue PS&E's for Bid 1day Thu 3/25/21 Thu 3/25/21 l?. 3/25
28 Il Task 5: Public Outreach 65 days Thu 12/24/20 Wed 3/24/21 r ]
R Prepare Draft Materials to District 1wk Thu 12/24/20 Wed 12/30/20 ' 3 i
0 @ District Review 2wks Thu 12/31/20 Wed 1/13/21 ‘ .
ﬁ‘ Issue Public Outreach Materials ' 3 wks Fri2/12/21  Thu 3/4/21
32 %ﬂ Presentation to District Board 1wk Thu3/18/21 Wed 3/24/21 H4
—ajl Task 6: Bid Support o 5 wks CFri3/26/21  Thu4/29/21
ijll Task 7: Construction Support (2 projects) 4 mons Fri4/30/21 Thu 8/19/21 L
35 B dpfidnal Task A: Pump Around Plans 3wks  Wed 10/14/20Tue 11/3/20
’3_’6_1 Optional Task B1: Utility Locating 2 wks Wed 10/14/20Tue 10/27/20
37 i' Optional Task B2: Utility Pothole 2 wks Wed 10/28/20Tue 11/10/20 :
Task I Project Summary === Manual Task Start-only C Deadline ¥
Project: Schedule Split ivienenno e Inactive Task Duration-only =T Finish-only | Progress
Date: Wed 6/17/20 Milestone @ Inactive Milestone Manual Summary RoIUp sessemsemssm—m  External Tasks £ Manual Progress s 2t
Summary =1 Inactive Summary 1 Manual Summary f=—=="1  Extemnal Milestone @




STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Proposal - San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

5 =V BKF

100+ &xvon

YEARS  PLASNERS

EXPERIENCE AND HISTORY

CIVIL ENGINEERING . SURVEYING . PLANNING | SINCE 1915

For 105 years, BKF has been Delivering Inspired Infrastructure for our clients.
Through this, we have earned our clients’ trust and thereby won their repeat
business. We work hard to help our clients achieve their goals and get their
projects to the finish line. Because of our network of 15 offices in California,
we have developed extensive local knowledge that provides us with a deep
understanding of issues relating to feasibility, permitting, and entitlement
approvals.

BKF provides civil engineering, land surveying, and land planning services for
government agencies, institutions, developers, architects, contractors, school
districts, and corporations. Our markets include public works, healthcare,
education, residential, commercial, industrial, corporate, and transportation.
We provide a number of specialty services including sustainable design, site
accessibility consulting, hydrology/hydraulics, traffic signal design, and 3D laser
scanning.

BKF's 105+ years of engineering, surveying and planning have produced some of
the most recognized projects in California. By combining our years of experience
in diverse markets with new, innovative approaches to problem solving, we have
grown to our current 15 offices with 470 experienced staff. This success compelled

ENR California to name BKF as the 2017 Design Firm of the Year!

FOUNDED ::

1915

STAFF ! nearly

470 24
EMPLOYEES

1 46 Professional Engineers
Logged over

119,000
surveying field

hours in 2019 making us one of the
largest surveying firms in California

Professional Surveyors 20

EXPERIEMCE ::

ﬂ @5‘-Years

of Engineering History

Regional offices
strategically located
throughout California

BKF By the Numbers

500+

Public works projects in
last 10 years

WATER RESOURCES

Storm, Sewer and Water Systems
Storm Water Quality Compliance
Erosion Control & SWPPP

Pump Station

Detention Systems

Hydraulic & Hydrology Studies
Utility Master Planning & Design

CIVIL ENGINEERING

Site Development

Streetscape Design

Parking Lot Planning & Design
Grade Separations

Joint Trench Coordination

Site Grading

SURVEY

GPS Surveys
Right-of-Way Mapping
ALTA/ASCM Surveys
Topographic Mapping
High Resolution Scanning
GIS Mapping

Subdivision Mapping
Boundary Surveys
Construction Surveying

TRANSPORTATION

Geometric Roadway Design
Traffic Signal Design

Traffic Impact Studies

Highway and Interchange Design
Traffic Circulation

Light and Heavy Rail

LAND PLANNING
Master Planning
Zoning Modification
Permit Application

Contract Planning to Public Agencies

ENTITLEMENT SUPPORT
Review Permit Requirements
Hard/Soft Cost Estimates
Environmental Review Support
Tentative Map Preparation
Scheduling

Feasibility Studies

Due Diligence Reports

SPECIALTY SERVICES

Landfill Reclamation

Wetlands Permits

Project Management

Differential Settlement Site Design
LEED Documentation Support
Construction Management

Expert Witness



STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

5 s BF

Excivrens
0’ SUAVEYORS
VEARS  PLANNELS

In any given year, as a firm, BKF delivers more than $100 million in public works construction, providing us a strong
understanding of the current market trends and conditions. Below is a list of our firm's project experience relevant
to the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project. A detailed description for each of the first three highlighted

projects are included on the following pages.

SANITARY SEWER PROJECTS

- Cleveland Avenue Sewer and Water
Replacement, Santa Rosa

- Sewer Main Rehabilitation and Replacement,
South San Francisco

- Basin D Sewer Rehabilitation, San Mateo

- Forbes Avenue Sewer Improvements, San Rafael

- Woodland Avenue Sewer Improvements, San Rafael

- Talbot-Macklyn-Alderbrook Sewer & Water, Santa
Rosa

- Biwana Drive Collection System Replacement, Santa
Rosa

- Diamond Court & Belmont Court Sewer & Water,
Santa Rosa

- College Street Sewer Replacement, Healdsburg

- Keiser Park Trunk Sewer Replacement, Windsor

- Hinebaugh Creek Sewer, Rohnert Park

- Wilmington Sanitary Sewer Pump Station, Petaluma

- Bay Road/Selby Lane Sanitary Sewer Rehab,
Atherton

- Bayport Sanitary Sewer System, Alameda

- Citywide Sewer Improvement-Rehab Phases I &I,
Burlingame

PIPELINE PROJECTS

- ACWD Alvarado Niles Pipeline, Fremont

- Chevron Pipeline Relocation, Antioch

- Exbourne Pipeline, Belmont

- Kinder Morgan Pipeline Replacement, Antioch
- Oswald Pipeline Replacement, Los Gatos

BKF'S SAN RAFAEL PROJECTS

- SMART/Francisco Boulevard Flip - SRSD Force Main
Relocation

- 21 San Pablo Avenue Slipout Repair

- Third Street at Hetherton Street Improvements

- Fire Station 54

- Downtown Station Area Plan

- On-Call Land Surveying Services

Commercial Street Sanitary Sewer Project, San
Carlos

Crystal Springs Sanitary Sewer Replacement,
Hillsborough

Easton Creek Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation,
Burlingame

Industrial Road Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation, San
Carlos

Millbrae Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation, Millbrae
Pinehill Road Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation,

Hillsborough

Polhemus Road Sanitary Sewer Main, San Mateo
Redwood Shores Sewer System; Redwood City
Redwood Road Sewer Replacement, Castro Valley
San Lucas Sanitary Sewer Project, San Lucas

Sewer Rehabilitation, E. Palo Alto Sanitary District
Sanitary Sewer Infiltration/Inflow Study, San Carlos
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation, Millbrae

Sanitary Sewer System Improvements Ph I & 1I, Los
Altos

University Sanitary Sewer Replacement, Stanford
Sanitary Sewer CIP, West Bay Sanitary District

Pipe Bursting Project, San Carlos

Portola Valley Pipeline, Woodside

South Bay Water Recycling Infill Pipeline, Milpitas
Surface Water Pipelines, Davis

Throckmorton Area Pipeline, Mill Valley

Jessup Street Improvements

Third Street at San Rafael High
Francisco Boulevard East Sidewalk
Pt. San Pedro Median Improvements
Fire Station 55

Albert Park Baseball Field

15



STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Proposal - San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

5 = BKF

100" Wi
VEARS  PLANNERS

CLEVELAND AVENUE SEWER & WATER REPLACEMENT

Sanfa Rosa

Cleveland Avenue water and sewer project is located on the west
side of Santa Rosa, running parallel to Hwy 101 just south of the
Coddingtown shopping center. The existing sewer and water system
was installed before 1960 and had utilized its service life. In 2002,
an additional trunk main was installed along Cleveland Avenue
alleviating sewer flow from the regions to the north. This project
involved the replacement of the existing water main, and connected
two already improved regions, as well as connecting sanitary sewer
lateral connections from the existing main to the larger trunk main.

There were three particular challenges which were faced in the
design of the new system. The first was to create a system which fit
into the existing streetscape and utility alignment, while maintaining
City utility separation requirements and avoiding excessive road

and traffic disruption. The second was design coordination with City
representatives for a section of the alignment which goes through
potentially contaminated base material. The final challenge involved
modifying existing intersection curb ramps to accept modern ADA
requirements without excessive reconstruction.

After the replacement of the water main and the sewer lateral
connections, all lanes of the existing road that were disturbed by
trenching got a full depth AC repair section for the full width of the
lane to replenish the street surface’s integrity and rejuvenate the
neighborhood's overall quality.

BKF provided plans, specifications, and engineer's estimate of cost
and provided construction assistance to support the City of Santa
Rosa Bid Phase and Construction Management efforts.



STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 5 e BKF

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project !9"0' e

FLANVERS

REHABILITATION & REPLACEMENT OF VARIOUS SEWER MAINS

South San Francisco

BKF prepared contract documents for 26,700 LF of 6-inch to 12-inch
sanitary sewer rehabilitation by CIPP, as well as contract documents
for sewer replacement/pipe bursting of 6,156 LF of 6-inch to 10-inch
sanitary sewer and 14 manholes (rehabilitation/replacement). The
project included reconciling potholing and CCTV information with the
City's GIS information to prepare the plans, specifications and the cost
estimates for the two contracts. BKF also provided design services
during construction and assisted in obtaining an encroachment permit
from the City of San Francisco for crossing their pipelines and Caltrans
for work on El Camino Real.

The BKF team worked closely with city staff and the geotechnical
engineer to understand the defects, categorize thern, and come up
with solutions that were both cost efficient and constructible.



STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

5 I BKF

SAN MATEO BASIN D SEWER REHABILITATION

San Maieo

BKF used the CCTV data provided along with field investigations
to determine the extent of repairs, rehabilitation, or replacement
required. In addition to the reports from the video inspection
projects, several sanitary sewer lines or manholes have been
identified that require engineering design services for a variety

of reasons such as difficult to access locations or unusual surface
conditions. Manhole lining, repair, and replacement was required.
BKF was hired to prepare plans, specifications and estimates for a
single or multiple repair, rehabilitation and replacement projects as
directed by the City. The first task was the preparation of a Condition
Assessment Report. Work included review of the CCTV data of 760
pipe segments, evaluation of the conditions of the sanitary sewer
system, and identification and prioritization of the locations of

sewer systemn in the Basin D area to be rehabilitated. BKF prepared
the contract documents for the high rated pipe segments from

the Condition Assessment which includes 315 spot and segment
repairs, replacement of 2,900 LF of 6-inch to 12-inch sewer lines/pipe
bursting and rehabilitation/replacement of 21 manholes. The existing
utilities were verified in the field by contacting utility companies,
field survey, and potholing. Work included the preparation of a desk
top geotechnical report. BKF assisted during bid period preparing
addenda and conformed set of contract documents. BKF is providing
design services during the project construction.



STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 5 i BKF

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project 100 e

YEAAZ  FLANHERS

REFERENCES

The BKF team encourages you to contact our client references listed below. We are confident that each will attest to
the quality of our services.

Reference:

Hunter Young

Senjor Civil Engimeef

City of San Rafael

4115.485.3454
hunteryoung@cityofsanrafaelorg

Reference:

Carl Euphrat

Senior Civil Engineer

Town of Windsor

707.838.1212
ceuphrat@townofwindsor.com




STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

5 BVBKF

100+ S
YEARS  PLAVNERS

ORGANIZATION CHART

BKF has selected a team of experienced staff for the 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project. With 470 highly
qualified staff members, we are organized for a quick response to meet your needs and pride ourselves on meeting

demanding schedules. BKF's in-house capabilities in land surveying complement our strong civil engineering expertise.

Our ability to facilitate project coordination among local, state, and federal agencies, utility owners, property owners,
and other stakeholders has resulted in successful completion of many similar projects.

The key elements to a successful project design are coordination of resources, adherence to a schedule, cost control
and quality control for the finished product. These elements are carefully integrated into our methodology. Assigning
experienced staff as project managers and project engineers helps ensure that we deliver quality work products. The
continuity and long tenure of our staff is evidence that our assigned personnel who we commit to the project will see
the project through from start to finish.

The team proposed has been chosen based on relevant project history, years of professional experience, and current
workload. The entire team is available for the duration of the project. If needed, BKF has the resources to provide
additional experienced personnel, office support, and/or field staff. With more than 140 professional licensed civil
engineers and 20 professional licensed land surveyors from which to draw resources, we are able to schedule multiple
tasks simultaneously to respond to project needs quickly. Resumes for our team members are included on the
following pages.

San Rafael
Sanitation
District

PROJECT MANAGEMENT TEAM
QUALITY CONTROL Jason Kirchmann, PE, PLS, QSD/P
P e Vice President/Project Lead
. BKF ENGINEERS
Yousra Tilden, PE

QA/QC Manager ! Becky Dower, PE
BKE ENGINEERS _ Engineering Manager
) i i BKF ENGINEERS

Erik Bjornsirom, PE, QSD/P
Lead Technical Engineer
BKF ENGINEERS

SURVEYING ﬁj EOTECHNICAL SERVICES J OPTIONAL SERVICES

Jonathan Shaftuck, PLS, PE

Eric Chase, GE, CE

Survey Manager ‘ Geotechnical Engineering gﬁ:ﬁgﬁ%;g;v KI:r\]eé

BKF ENGINEERS o RGH CONSULTANTS

[ 4

GICE W ) L) Y ”m TS A “i-}:\*m_fﬁ 2
BKF ENGINEERS, SURVEYORS, PEANNERS

470 SUPPORT STAFR
RSO TG NS Y

= gt

.(i

20



STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

TEAM MEMBER RESUMES

5 IBKF

EXGHLIRS
0" SURVETORS
VEARS  FLRNEAS

JASON KIRCHMANN, PE, PLS, QSD/P
VICE PRESIDENT/PROJECT LEAD

Jason has a wide variety of experience in civil engineering design and the
construction of projects for local municipalities and private sector clients. He

has provided design support and project management for commercial and civic,
healthcare, residential, and education related projects, providing civil engineering
and land surveying services. He assists in converting clients’ ideas and desires
into final construction documents.

Jason understands the importance of seamless coordination with clients, as well
as the project team. He brings a keen sense of urgency to projects, consistently

EDUCATION
Santa Rosa Junior College
CEST Program

REGISTRATION
Professional Land
Surveyor, CA No. 8806

Professional Civil
Engineer, CA No. 78079

Qualified SWPPP
Developer and
Practitioner, No. 20085

AFFILIATIONS

Deputy County Surveyor
(County of Marin)
Acting Deputy City
Surveyor (City of San
Rafael)

California Land Surveyors
Association (CLSA)

Member American
Society of Civil Engineers
(ASCE)

TOTAL YEARS
EXPERIENCE

17 years, 17 years with
firm

AWARDS

North Bay Business
Journal's 2018 "Forty
under 40" Award Winner

demonstrating the ability to stay on schedule and within budget.

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

2019 Sewer Rehabilitation
Corte Madera

255 Margarita Drive Sanitary Sewer
San Rafael

Healdsburg College Street Sewer &
Water Main Replacement
Healdsburg

Eastside Trunk Sewer
Rohnert Park

Central Subway Sewer - Phase 2
San Francisco

Diamond Court & Belmont Court
Sewer & Water Replacement
Santa Rosa

Talbot/Macklyn/Alderbrook Sewer &
Water Replacement
Santa Rosa

Kaiser San Rafael Sewer Replacement
San Rafael

Los Gamos Drive Sewer Relocation
San Rafael

SMART/Francisco Boulevard Flip -
SRSD Force Main Relocation
San Rafael

MADF Sewer Grinder Improvements
Santa Rosa

Mill Valley 2017 Street/Sewer
Rehabilitation
Mill Valley

Petaluma Boulevard North Water &
Sewer
Petaluma

Chevron Sewer Line
Rohnert Park

524 Mission Avenue Utilities
San Rafael

Terra Linda/Duckett/Mulligan/Smith
Ranch Force Main
San Rafael

Keiser Park Trunk Sewer Main
Replacement
Windsor

G Street Improvements - Phase 1
San Rafael

Marin Sanitation Agency Maintenance
Building
San Rafael

Corte Madera SSD No. 2 Old Landing
Pump Station
Tiburon

Water Service Expansion - Lake County
Lucerne

North Marin Water District Recycled
Water Expansion
Novato

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitation District
Reclamation Parking Lot and Site
Improvements

San Rafael

21



EDUCATION
B.S., Civil Engineering,
University of Nevada, Reno

REGISTRATION
Professional Civil Engineer
CA No. 80868

TOTAL YEARS
EXPERIENCE
11 years, 1 with firm

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

BECKY DOWER, rt

ENGINEERING MANAGER

5 = BKF

ENGINEERS
100~ e

Ms. Dower has 11 years of experience in civil engineering design of commercial,
institutional, multi-family residential, and mixed-use developments. Her
responsibilities have included site grading, utility design, specification

preparation, and cost estimating.
SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Sir Francis Drake Boulevard
San Rafael

Senior Living Grease Interceptor
San Rafael

MUP Phase 2 Redesign
San Rafael

Kaiser Foundation Health Plan

Kaiser SRF Los Gamos Medical Office
Building

San Rafael

Kaiser Foundatidn Health Plan
KP Los Gamos Parking Structure
San Rafael

Trash Rack Relocation and Mitigation
Planning
San Rafael

SMART/Francisco Boulevard Flip -
SRSD Force Main Relocation
San Rafael

Schoen Park
San Rafael

Pepperwood Preserve
Santa Rosa

Signorello Winery
Napa

Toma!es Fire Station
Tomales

East Bay Regional Parks District
SF Bay Trail - Lone Tree Point
Rodeo

Brannan-Lincoln Street Crosswalk
Improvements
Petaluma

Sonoma County Junior College District
SRJC Student Housing
Santa Rosa

Calistoga Hills - Phase 1 Construction
Staking
Calistoga

Eden Housing/Del Nido Apartments
Santa Rosa

Mid-Peninsula Housing
MidPen Fairfield
Fairfield

HAWK Signal at Silver Rose
Calistoga

BEE |

22



EDUCATION

B.S., Civil Engineering,
California Polytechnic
State University

REGISTRATION
Professional Civil
Engineer, CA No. 84875

CERTIFICATION
Qualified SWPPP
Practitioner (QSP) &
Developer (QSD)

TOTAL YEARS
EXPERIENCE
7 years, 7 with BKF

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

BRVBKF
=

ENGINEERS
‘o ¥ sunicvons,
WEARS  PLANVERS

ERIK BJORNSTROM, PE, Qsb/pP

LEAD TECHNICAL ENGINEER

As a Civil Engineer, Erik provides design support to projects he is assigned.

In coordination with project managers, he has worked on a variety of public
works, residential, educational and commercial/industrial development projects
providing civil engineering services. He provides support to the project team

by completing a broad range of engineering tasks including the preparation of
civil engineering reports, calculations, plans, specifications and estimates. Erik
manages the schedules of technical staff and is responsible for assisting the team
with the production of final construction documents.

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Marin City Large Trash Capture Device
Design
San Rafael

Kaiser San Rafael Sewer Replacement
San Rafael

255 Margarita Drive Sanitary Sewer
San Rafael

SMART/Francisco Boulevard Flip -
SRSD Force Main Relocation
San Rafael

Cleveland Avenue Sewer & Water Main
Replacement
Santa Rosa

Diamond Court & Belmont Court
Sewer & Water Replacement
Santa Rosa

Talbot-Macklyn-Alderbrook Sewer &
Water Replacement
Santa Rosa

Mohawk Lift Station & Forcemain
Realignment Phase [ & II
Santa Rosa

SWPPP for Effluent Storage Pond
Calistoga

Breuner Marsh Restoration
Richmond

Francisco Boulevard East Sidewalk
Improvements
San Rafael

Lincoln Avenue Curb Ramps Design
San Rafael

Multi-Use Path Phase 2
San Rafael

SMART Larkspur Extention
San Rafael

Trash Rack Relocation and Mitigation
Planning
San Rafael

5th and D Street Bulb-Out Ramp
San Rafael

Schoen Park
San Rafael

Victor Jones Park
San Rafael

Merrydale Development
San Rafael

Kaiser Los Gamos Parking Structure
San Rafael

23



EDUCATION

M.S., Civil/Water
Resources Engineering,
Stanford University

B.S., Civil Engineering &
Engineering Mechanics,
California State University,
Fullerton

REGISTRATION
Professional Civil
Engineer, CA No. 48742

AFFILIATIONS
Member of the ASCE and
APWA

TOTAL YEARS
EXPERIENCE
34 years, 7 with firm

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

YOUSRA TILDEN, re

QA/QC MANAGER

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

SSF Sewer Rehabilitation
South San Francisco

City of San Mateo Basin D Sewer
Rehabilitation
San Mateo

SMART/Francisco Boulevard Flip -
SRSD Force Main Relocation
San Rafael

Central Subway Sewer Design Build
Work - Phase 2
San Francisco

Hunters Point Sewer Condition
Assessment
San Francisco

Branciforte Creek Sewer Siphon
Replacement
Santa Cruz

Alvarado Niles Pipeline
Fremont

Large Trash Capture Device
San Jose

Delta Coves Pipeline
Oakley

Gordon Main Repair at Ledgewood
Creek
Vallejo

MSN C2 Utility Relocation
Petaluma

5 = BKF

100 S5
via

RS PLINYERS

Ms. Tilden has 34 years of project management experience including water and
recycled water, and sewer pipeline projects, rate studies, and water and sewer
system master plans. She has been responsible for design and construction
administration, and the preparation of plans, specifications and cost estimates.
She has an in-depth background in permitting and grant process, preparation of
contract documents, and the ability to coordinate many agencies and consultants.

Northrop Grumman Utilities
Replacement
Sunnyvale

Lookout Road Drainage Improvements
Hillsborough

Littlefield Avenue Sanitary Sewer Trunk
Repair
South San Francisco

Storm Drain Outfall Rehabilitation
Sunnyvale

Sanitary Sewer CCTV Inspection
San Mateo

Stormwater Treatment Facilities
Dublin

Gilead Sciences Hydrology & Hydraulic
Evaluation
Foster City

Interceptor Force Trunk Rehabilitation
Mountain View

Rehabilitation of Storm Drain Qutfall
Sunnyvale

SMART Larkspur Extension
San Rafael

Merrydale Development
San Rafael

24



EDUCATION

B.S., Civil Engineering
and Geomatics
Engineering, California
State University, Fresno

REGISTRATION
Professional Land

Surveyor, CA No. 8940

Professional Civil
Engineer, CA No. 83904

TOTAL YEARS

EXPERIENCE
15 years, 8 with firm

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

N BKF

-
xGaEeRs
00* SurTEToRs
YEARS  PLANNEAY

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

JONATHAN SHATTUCK, pLs, PE

SURVEY MANAGER

As Survey Project Manager, Mr. Shattuck is responsible for all phases of land
surveying including construction, aerial and conventional topographic and
planimetric surveys, boundary analysis and resolutions, right-of-way engineering,
as-built surveys, digital terrain modeling, directing field and office survey efforts,
contract document preparation, cost estimation, and contract administration. He
provides coordination with clients, other professional consultants and reviewing
agencies. In a supervisory role, he's been responsible for surveying tasks related
to the design and construction of transportation, residential, commercial and

public works projects throughout the North Bay and Central Valley.

SEILECT PROGECT EXPERIENCE

Kaiser Sewer Replacement
San Rafael

Heron Court Pump Station
San Rafael

2019 Sewer Rehabilitation
Corte Madera

9th and Broadway
Sacramento

Actelion Ramp Survey
South San Francisco

Browns Valley Creek Bank Repair
Napa

Intersection of Rawhide and PFE Road
Roseville

Kaiser PV Carports - Manteca
Manteca

Mission Nurseries
Patterson

NE Antioch Annexation Area 1 & 2b -
Engineering
Antioch

PG&E Livermore Substation Training
Facility
Livermore

Silverado Trail Storm Damage Repair
Retaining Wall
Napa

Well Location Survey
Sacramento

5th Avenue and D Street
San Rafael

Schoen Park
San Rafael

Buck's Landing
San Rafael

Easement at Southern Heights and
Courtwright
San Rafael

Kaiser MRI Trailer
San Rafael

nwn
LIiNg

25



EDUCATION

B.S., Civil Engineering
California Polytechnic
State University, San Luis
Obispo

REGISTRATION
California Geotechnical
Engineer, No. 2628

California Civil Engineer,
No. 53150

AFFILIATIONS
American Society of Civil
Engineers

Chi Epsilon Honor
Society

TOTAL YEARS

EXPERIENCE
30 years, 20 with firm

RGH

CONSULTANTS

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair 8 Replacement Projact

5 e BKF

100+ sives
YEARS  PLARAERY

ERIC CHASE, Gk, CE

GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER

Eric Chase is responsible for geotechnical studies, design, consultation, and
construction observation. His experience includes roadways and bridges, water
and wastewater pipelines and treatment plants, pump stations, power plants,
port facilities, schools, hospitals, multi-story buildings, deep foundations, levees,
hillside development, and residential construction. He has also performed
seismic/geologic hazard evaluations for various Army installations and Navy
facilities throughout the western United States. He has over 25 years of
experience in geotechnical and earthquake engineering in the greater Bay area
including Sonoma, Napa, Mendocino and Lake Counties, Humboldt County, Los
Angeles, San Diego and the States of Alaska, Arizona, Washington, Nevada, Utah,
and Kansas.

SELECT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

2000 - Present
Principal Engineer
RGH Consultants
Santa Rosa, CA

1992 - 2000

Senior Engineer

Geomatrix Consultants, Inc.
San Francisco and Qakland, CA

1990 - 1992

Staff Engineer
Herzog Associates, Inc.



STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

SUBCONSULTANTS

RGH CONSULTANTS (RGH)
Service: Geotechnical Engineering

RGH Consultants was founded in 1991 as a full service firm with expertise in
geotechnical engineering, engineering geology, and construction observation
and testing. RGH has grown to become one of the largest locally-owned
geotechnical engineering firms in the North Bay. Headquartered in Santa
Rosa, RGH has a satellite office in Napa. RGH’s staff of professional engineers
and geologists, field engineers and engineering technicians collectively have
decades of experience in geotechnical engineering, engineering geology,
construction observation, and materials testing in northern California with an
emphasis on work in Sonoma and Napa Counties. These services have been
provided on public works projects including design and construction of bike
paths, roadways, bridges, and retaining walls.

GHILOTTI BROTHERS (GBI)

Service: Potholing Services (Optional) |

Ghilotti Bros., Inc. is a Marin County based general contractor. Since 1914,

the firm has successfully completed numerous award-winning infrastructures,
heavy highway, site development, aviation, rail, and marine-related projects for
public and private owners. Ghilotti has state-of-the-art Vacmaster System 4000
trucks. GBI's experienced team can quickly and efficiently dig down deep with
air locating underground utilities in the hardest of soils, without causing harm.
This firm’s combination of workmanship and quality equipment has led them to
complete potholing for the County of Marin on Sir Francis Drake, East Boulevard
for the City of San Rafael, as well as numerous companies around the Bay Area,
including Facebook and Google.

5 B BKF

100" sveen

VEARS  PLANSERS

RGH

CONSULTANTS

|

JGeotechnicol testing
laboratory certified by
AMRL, DSA, Army Corps &

Cadltrans

SNNOTTI BRgg

ONER 100 YEARS
o AN RAFAE,




FEE PROPOSAL

Proposal — San Rafael Sanitation District 2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project

F | :.?BI(F

0 L
parriion
Yerns

Hawtg

Doris Toy June 19, 2020
District Manager

San Rafael Sanitation District

111 Morphew Street

San Rafael, CA 94901

SUBJECT: 2020 SEWER PIPE REPAIR & REPLACEMENT PROJECT - FEE PROPOSAL

Dear Ms. Toy:

In this separately sealed envelope, we have included BKF Engineer's (BKF) Fee Proposal for the subject
project. The Fee Proposal includes a breakdown of how the fee was developed, including the number of
man-hours by tasks, classifications of staff, billing rates, and all incidental charges. We submit this to you
on a time and materials basis with a maximum "not to exceed” numbet, which includes both direct and
overhead costs.

Should you have any questions, or would like clarification on any aspect of our fee or the proposed services,
please feel free to contact me at jkirchmann@bkf.com or (415) 930-7960. We look forward to hearing from
you soon.

Sincerely,
BKF ENGINEERS

Jason Kirchmann, PE, PLS, QSD/P
Vice President/Project Lead

BKF ENGINEERS | 4040 Civic Center Drive, Suite 530, San Rafael, CA 94903 | t.415.930.7960 | £ 415.930.7979 | www.bkf.com BICF | 1




San Rafael Sanitation District
2020 Sewer Pipe Repalr and Replacement Project i
CONSULTING SERVICES s |y E i RGH @Bl 3 g
B¢
. ild £ § AN i £
!ﬁ B r § E E % § g ‘El g = 'E Geolach Palhole g § g
-L | "
g3 (8353 Bl % ]
Assoc| VP | BPM | EM | E3 | EI |2:Man § F § g
Task Descrplion Full Rate| $219 | $225 | $204 | $193 | $170 [$137 [ $205 | @2 2 e
? 1 Projocl Managemoent & QA/QC
14 Project Management & QN/QC 12 | 24 | 2 30 $6.438 $0 $8,436
1.2 Meellngs 8 16 24 $4,008 $0 $4,888
Project Management & QA/QC Sublotal:| 12 | 32 | 2 16| o (1] (] 62 |[$ 13324 |8 A . $ 3 $13,324
2 Background Resoarch and Analysls of CCTV files
24 Raview CCTV filos and logs 1 2 12 15 $2,759 $0 $2,759
2.2 Analysls and Report 2 24 | 48 [ 12 86 $15318 $0 $15,318
Baokground Research and Analysls of CCTV files Subtolal:| 0 0 | 26|60 )| 12| 0 |[101]|$ 18,077 |$ . - s - $18,077
3 Exlsting Gonditions Mapplng and Studles
3.4 Base Mapping (2021 construction project limits) 4 8 2 72 | 32 | 116 $21,814 S0 $21,814
32 Gi Investigation p review) 2 1 1 $622 $16,665 $18.332 $19,154
33 Geolachnical Investigation (fleld In\mstlgalfonl 2 1 1 4 SL?Z $38,352 §42,187 S43IDCIQ
Existing Mapping and Studles Subtotal:| 0 8 6 4 2 72 | 32 | 120 | § 23,458 | % 65017 - $ 60,619 $03,977
4 Deslgn Plans, Specificallons and Cost Eslimale (PS&E)
Al 35% Deslgn
4441 35% Conslruclion Diawings 8 12 | 12 | 28 60 | $10,100 $0 $10,100
4.1.2 35% Specifications 2 2 6 10 $1.910 §0 $1,910
4,13 35% Eslimate 2 2 | 4|12 20 $3,196 $0 $3,196
4.2 65% Deslgn
4.24 65% Conslruclion Drawh 6 10 | 16 | 32 64 $10,528 $0 $10,520
4.2.4 65% Specifications 2 4 12 18 $3,370 $0 $3.370
4.2.3 65Y% Estimate 1 2] 218 13 $2,065 50 $2,065
4.3 05% Design
4.3.1 95% Construclion Dravings 4 4 6 16 30 $4,938 $0 §4,038
43.2 05% Specificalions 2 4 8 $1,652 $0 $1,652
433 05% 1 1 1 8 11 $1.693 $0 $1,693
4.4 Flnal Bld Documents
441 Final Plans 2 a1 2|10 18 $2,950 $0 $2,950
44.2 Final Specificallons (Incl front end roviow) 2 1 2 | 5 $1,001 $0 $1,001
443 Final Eslimale and bid Ilems list 1 2 4 [ 13 $2,149 S_O szlm
Deslgn Plans, Specifications and Cost Estimate (PS&E) Subtolal:l 0 | 33 | 0 | 46 | 71 | 120 0 | 270 | $45452 $0 $0 $0 $45,452
5 Publle Oulreach
[X] Publlc Qulreach 2 2 8 12 $1,032 $0 $1,932
52 Board Prasenlation 4 4 8 $1,672 ﬁ $1,672
Publlc Outreach Subtotal:| 0 o| 6] o] 8 0 | 20 $3,604 $0 $0 $0 $3,804
[ Bid Phae
4.2.4 Bld Addend 2 2 2 6 12 $2,016 50 $2,016
4.24 Pre-Bld Meeting 2 2 1 [ $973 $0 $973
423 Bld opening and review 2 [ 8 $1,624 $0 $1.624
Bld Fhu-e Subtotal:] 0 6 0 4 8 7 0 25 $4,513 $0 $0 $0 $4,513
7 Consluotion Support
74 Pre-Conslruction Meating 2 2 1 6 5073 50 $973
7.2 Slla Visits (3) 2 8 10 $1,004 $0 $1,994
7.3 RFl's 2 2 1212 [] $i468  |$ 2540 $2,784 $4,262
74 Submillals and Shop Drawings 2 L] 10 | 20 38 $86,138 $0 §6,138
7.5 Change Order Support 2 4 6 $1,222 $0 $1,222
76 Waokly OEC Meolings (16) 10 18 50 $11,514 $0 $11,614
7.7 Flnal punch list sito visil(s) 4 2 6 $1.046 $0 $1,046
7.8 Racord dravings 2 | 6|18 26 §3,877 $0 3,877
Construction Support Subtolall] 0 | 21 0 | 76|18 | 41 0 | 158 $26,232 $2,640 $0 $2,794 $31,026
Relmbursable and Consultant Expenses
0
General BKF Printing, Plolting, and Travel (1% of Total) 1300 $e00 3 31800
consultant Labor Totals| 12| 100| o 178] 156] 200] 32| 784] 5 136600 |5 67,857 - |s e3s1270 $199,973
Total Fees (Total faas Inolute consultant and relmbursable markups pursuant to rate sheets) ‘ $201,773
San Rafael Sanitation District .E
2020 Sewer Plpe Repair and Replacement Project RGH ] % £
OPTIONAL SERVICES N § E ,§ 3 g
g g1 £ 8 E = 8
| a|ly|d)8)|8 ]
g |3 g Bl 5| & ? 2 .E Geotech Pothole & é 2
Slelsl3e|c|85e] ¢ g
2| 3 G @ | @ 2] ]
T I R L L A i 3 3 E .
Task Descrption Full Rato] 3210 | [SZ0T | STOT [ ST70 3737 [ S5 2 Q2 ] ki
Optional Services
A Pump Around Plans 2 2 2 | 12 | 20 38 $6,162 $0 §0,162
B.1 Ulllily Locating 2 4 40 | 32 $16,106 $0 $16,186
B.2 Uillity Potholing {1 1 8 1 $1,739 $16,800 $17,640 $19,379
Optlonal Sorvices Tolal:| 2 6 4 3 12 | 68 | 32 | 40 | § 24_@!11 $ - 16,800 | § 17,640 $41,727




Board of Directors
San Rafael Gary O. Phillps, Chairman

Sanitation Maribeth Bushey, Secretary/Director
. . Katie Rice, Director

District

111 Morphew Street District Manager/District Engineer

San Rafael, CA 94915-1560 Doris Toy, P.E.

Telephone 415 454-4001
Facsimile 415 454-2270

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS
for
Engineering Design Services for
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project

The San Rafael Sanitation District (District) hereby requests proposals from qualified consultants for the
design and preparation of construction contract documents and design support during construction for the
2020 Sewer Pipe Repair and Replacement Project. It is the intent of the District to hire a qualified
consultant who can provide project management, preliminary design, permitting assistance, final design
services and construction design support services. The final product sought is construction contract
documents including plans, specifications and cost estimates ready for bid.

Proposals shall be submitted by firms that have a capable and demonstrable background in the type of
work described in the section entitled “Scope of Work” of this notice. In addition, all interested firms
shall have sufficient, readily available resources, in the form of trained personnel, support services,
specialized consultants and financial resources, to carry out the work without delay or shortcomings.

Interested consultants are invited to submit qualifications in accordance with the requirements of this
Request for Proposals (RFP).

The proposals shall be submitted to the San Rafael Sanitation District, 111 Morphew Street, San
Rafael, California 94901, no later than June 19, 2020 at 2:00 PM. Each proposer shall submit five (5)
bound sets of the proposal in accordance with the section entitled "Proposal" of this notice.

Background

As part of the 80-year gravity main lifecycle replacement program, it is the District’s goal to televise 10
miles of sewers each year and develop future capital projects from the results of these televised surveys.
As part of this program, the District televised approximately 8 miles of sanitary sewers throughout
central and southern San Rafael during the winter of 2019.

The inspected pipelines include two trunk sewers located in Second Street between East Street and A
Street; D Street between Antonette Avenue and Second Street; Du Bois Street between Irwin Street and
Bret Avenue; and other nearby sewers connected to these mainlines along the intersecting and adjacent
side streets. Please see the attachments for a detailed map of all televised sewers that shall be analyzed
as part of this proposal. Along with the results of the video surveys is a 437-page report compiled per
NASSCO PACP inspection standards, included as an attachment to this proposal. The District will
provide all associated video files for each sewer inspection to facilitate the analysis.

The sewer sizes vary between 6 inches and 21 inches; however, the majority are less than 15 inches. The
sewers primarily consist of vitrified clay pipe (VCP), however, some pipes may be polyvinyl chloride
(PVC) or high-density polyethylene (HDPE).

111 Morphew St., San Rafael, CA 94901



A majority of the televised sewers are located in the northern portion of San Rafael’s Gerstle Park
neighborhood. This neighborhood, bordered to the north by Second Street and Downtown San Rafael,
and to the East by B Street and Albert Park, is predominantly residential with commercial businesses
along Second Street and D Street. Root infiltration and offset joints are a common maintenance issue
encountered in these sewers.

Additionally, the District would like to include the analysis of the Locust Avenue sewers from Grand
Avenue to Deer Park Avenue. The gravity sewers at Locust Avenue are approximately 2,600 linear feet
of VCP, ranging in size from 6 inches to 8 inches. These sewers will be televised by the District during
Summer 2020.

Project Description

The work described in this RFP includes the analysis of the existing sewers previously televised by the
District in 2019 shown in attached map, compilation of a list of sewers recommended for replacement,
and the design and preparation of consiruction contract documents and design support during
construction of the new sewers identified in the aforementioned analysis.

Scope of Work

The District is seeking consulting services to provide construction contract documents including plans,
specifications and cost estimates for the repair and replacement of sewer main, lower laterals and
manholes in undetermined various locations, potentially including the following areas: First Street, D
Street, Locust Street, and other locations identified during the consultant’s review of the District’s CCTV
files. District’s goal is to repair and replace a minimum of 1.5 miles of sewer main in Year 2021. Since
District wishes to include medium-sized contractors in the bidding process, District is considering to
separate the construction project into two projects at approximately $2M to $2.5M each.

Consultant Responsibility

The consultant(s) chosen for this project shall be responsible for the following tasks:

Task 1: Analysis of District’s CCTV files for existing sewers

1. The consultant shall be responsible for review of the 2019 Sanitary Sewer Televising
Project’s video files and PACP reports. The consultant shall deliver a high-quality analysis
of the video inspection results and list of recommendations for future capital improvement
projects (CIP).

Deliverables:
»  Detailed report of analysis and recommendation of future CIP alternatives based upon
results of the CCTV surveys.

Task 2: Design

1. The consultant shall conduct all field, topographic and confrol surveys, prepare ali
preliminary geotechnical studies and reports, and complete all preliminary design
calculations as necessary

2. The consultant shall produce 35%, 65% and 95% submittal packages for review

3. The consultant shall prepare final bid documents incorporating all comments from previous
reviews, Final plans shall be printed on 22”x34” paper and shall be complete with final
signatures ready for reproduction.

4, The plans shall be drawn using AutoCAD

111 Morphew 5t., San Rafael, CA 94901




5.

The schedule of items shall address all items of work as specifically as possible and shall
indicate as precisely as possible the quantities.

6. The consultant shall provide a cost estimate in the format of the schedule of bid items.

Deliverables:

= 35%, 65%, 95% and 100% PS&E submittals in both paper and electronic (Word, Excel,
and pdf) format, and engineer’s cost estimate for two contract bid documents.

» A letter report summarizing review comments and the resolution of the review comments

*  Final bid documents for two contract bid documents in both paper and electronic format
{AutoCAD, Word, Excel, and pdf) format

Task 3: Final Bid Phase and Bid Phase Support (for two contract bid documents).

1. The consultant shall facilitate the pre-bid meeting, set the agenda and respond to questions
concerning the plans, specifications, and estimates prior to bid opening and prepare contract
addenda, if required.

2. Assist the District in coordinating and posting the bid package and addenda in an online
advertising service.

3. The consultant shall review construction bids received, check references and make a
recommendation to the District for award of construction contract.

Deliverables:

»  Prepare contract addenda, if required, including answers to bidder’s questions, for
distribution by an online service.

»  Prepare bid summary sheet and letter of recommendation to the District for the award of
the construction contract,

Task 4: Design Support during Construction {for two contract bid documents)

1.

e A

The consultant shall attend the pre-construction conference to respond to questions
concerning the plans, specifications and estimates

The consultant shall be available to be called to the site in response to questions arising from
the progress of the work

The consultant shall respond to Request for Informations (RFls) from the contractor when
called for by the District and prepare modifications or revisions that are related to the
project’s original scope and character. The District shall not be billed for nor shall they pay
for any revisions to the plans and specifications that are required due to errors or omissions
in the original contract documents '

The consultant shall assist District staff in reviewing submittals from the contractor
The consuliant shall assist the District in preparation of contract change orders, if necessary
The consultant shall attend weekly construction meetings and record the minutes.

The consultant shall participate in the final walk though of the constructed project and assist
in the preparation of “punch list” items in need of work

The consultant shall prepare record drawings following construction from mark ups by the
contractor and the resident engineer. Submittal of record drawings shall be on 117x17” and
227%34” bond paper and electronic format.

Deliverables:

111 Morphew St., San Rafael, CA 94901




»  Response to RFIs and Submittais from the contractor
»  Modification or revisions that are related to the project original scope and character
*  Contract change orders if necessary

District Responsibility

The District shall provide the following:
1. All construction inspection work and contract administration.

2. Any uiility underground maps, CCTV videos of existing sewers, and any existing
information in the possession of the District necessary to complete the design.

Payment and Cost Estimate

The method of payment to the successful proposer shall be on a time and materials basis with a
maximum “not to exceed” fee, as set by the proposer in his/her propoesal, as being the maximum cost
to perform all work., This figure shall include direct costs and overhead such as, but not limited to,
transportation, communications, subsistence and materials, and any subcontracted items of work to
prepare preliminary and final design and deliver 100% Plans, Specifications and Estimate (PS&E).
Progress payments will be based on actual hours, hourly costs and support service costs charged to the
project on a monthly basis.

The Fee Proposal shall be submitted with the Proposal in a separate, sealed envelope. Inclusion of the
Fee Proposal inside the Proposal is grounds for rejection of the Proposal. The District reserves the right
to negotiate profit with the Consultant. The Fee Proposal shall include a breakdown of how the Fee was
developed, including the number of man-hours by tasks, classifications of staff, billing rates, and all
incidental charges, including subconsultants fees,

Please note that the Fee Proposal for Task 4, Design Support during Construction, may be
submitted when Task 2, Design portion of the project is nearly complete.
Proposal

The proposal shall consist of five (5) bound sets containing 814”x11” sheet sizes for the text and 117x[7”
sheet sizes for any fold-out drawings. At minimum, it shall include:

1. Cover letter signed by the person authorized to negotiate a contract for proposed services with
the District on behalf of the proposal team.

2. Project understanding outlining the consultant’s basic understanding of the project and
identifying key issues to be addressed during the project and any insights.

3. A detailed project approach and level of effort, in accordance with the section entitled “Scope of
Work” of this notice.

4. A project schedule including at minimum, those tasks outlined in the section entitled “Scope of
Work™ of this notice.

5. A Statement of Qualification (SOQ) that includes:

a. The proposer’s experience and history in performing this type of work, particularly those
projects that have been successfully carried through construction

b. References of persons, firms, or agencies that the District may contact to verify the
experience of the proposer

An organization chart setting forth the project manager and the staff

d. Experience for each individual expected to perform responsible portions of the work
111 Morphew St., San Rafael, CA 94901




e. Experience for each sub consultant

Proposal Submittal

All proposals shall be received by the District no later than June 19, 2020 at 2:00 PM at the following
address:

San Rafael Sanitation District
111 Morphew Street
San Rafael, CA 94901

Evaluation Criteria

A review and selection committee will evaluate the consultants based on the proposals and, if necessary,
an oral interview to determine which consultant is best qualified to perform the work for this project.
The committee will then determine a ranking of the consultants at which time the- consultant fee
envelopes will be opened and tabulated. The consultant fees will be evaluated to determine if the amount
of the fee is considered a reasonable cost for the work outlined in the proposal. If the top ranked
consultant has submitted a reasonable fee, the commitiee will make a recommendation to the District
Manager that negotiations be opened to ensure that the top-ranked consultant has a full understanding of
the expectations of the District, that the scope reflects all tasks anticipated and that the fee reflects
completion of the project to the satisfaction of the District. In the event that the District and the top-
ranked consultant are unable to come to an agreement as to scope and fee, the District reserves the right
to close negotiations with the top-ranked consultant and open negotiations with the sccond-ranked
consultant. Once an agreement is reached involving the scope and fee, the District Manager will make a
recommendation to the San Rafael Sanitation District Board to award the project to the selected
consultant and to authorize the District Manager to enter into an agreement with that consultant. If the
Board is in agreement with the recommendation, District staff will proceed with the completion of the
agreement and prepare the contract for execution.

Ranking of the proposals will be based on the following:

Inclusion of all required items and completeness of the proposal
Understanding of the work to be done

Clear description of the tasks

Commitment to adhering to the schedule of each task and overall project
Qualified and experienced personnel in the project tean

Previous expetience of similar projects completed on time and within budget

AR e

The District will notify each consultant regarding the outcome of the proposal selection process.

Tentative Schedule

Request for Proposals sent t0 consultants.......iiinme s May 13, 2020
Responses from interested firms due at the District office.....coiiimiiiniinnne, 2:00 PM, June 19, 2020
Consultant Interviews (if NECESSAIY) .vvvvrirreerarier it i s June 24, 2020
Award Consultant at Board MEeTINg ... ernin st s smssssenses June 26, 2020

District Contact
Inquiries and/or responses may be directed to:

Doris Toy, District Manager
San Rafael Sanitation District
111 Morphew Street '
San Rafael, CA 94901

111 Morphew St., San Rafael, CA 94901




Doris. Toy@cityofsanrafael.org
Phone: 415-485-3484

Clarification offered by the District to one consultant shall be distributed to all known participants at the
District’s discretion.

Standard Consultant Agreement

The consultant selected to provide the scope of services shall use the San Rafael Sanitation District’s
standard professional services agreement. A copy of the template of this agreement is attached to this
RFP. By submitting a proposal for the work, the consultant agrees to utilize the District standard

agreement form for the contract. Contractually required insurance coverage and endorsement
information is shown in the body of the document.

Attachments

San Rafael Sanitation District’s Professional Services Agreement Template
Map of Sewers Televised by Distric-t in 2019

PACP Report of CCTV Surveys in 2019

Report of Manhole Inspections in 2019

District’s Summary Spreadsheet of CCTV 2019 Results

111 Morphew St., San Rafael, CA 94901



San Rafael Sanitation District

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project
Consultant Evaluation Sheet

CONSULTANT/FIRM NAME: Schaaf & Wheeler

Inclusion of all required items and completeness of

Consultant provided all materials cited in the RFP; Proposal

the proposal 15 15 is well organized and clearly written,
Consultant has presented a clear and comprehensive
understanding of the work to be done. Presentation and
Understanding of the work to be done 20 20 language directly conveys considerable experience in
relevant scope of work. Smaller engineering firm that
primarily designs storm, potable and wastewater.
Proposal included a project approach that detailed each task
Clear description of the tasks 20 19.25 |required and a scope of work necessary to complete the
project.
Commitment to adhering to the schedule of each Proposed schedule meets the District's request for final bid
. 15 14.75 i R
task and overall project documents for construction in early-mid 2021,
Project personne! to be assigned to the project for both the
Qualified and experience personnel n the project {5 15 Prime and Sub have a demonsirated wealth of direct project
team relevant experience spanning up to 30 years. Same team has
worked on similar projects, PACP/MACP/LACP certified.
Has expetience completing similar projects, ie, City of
Previ sience of similar projects completed Belmont Sewer Rehab Proj for 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017.
ref‘_’“’“ "zpe,thin b" oot prol piete 15 15 |EiCamino Real Sanitary Sewer Rehab, 2017-2020; City of
on time and wi s Mill Valley 2019-2020 under construction; Harbor Dr Sewer
Rehab for Corte Madera 2019-2020 just complete design.
POINT TOTAL:| 100 99




San Rafael Sanitation District

2020 Sewer Pipe Repair & Replacement Project
Consultant Evaluation Sheet

CONSULTANT/FIRM NAME: BkF Engineers

Inclusion of all required items and completeness of

Consultant provided all materials cited in the RFP; Proposal

the proposal 13 15 is well organized and clearly written,
Consultant has presented a clear and comprehensive
Understanding of the work fo be done 20 18.75 understandfng of the work to bff done, Prcsen‘tatsoni and
fanguage directly conveys considerable experience in
relevant scope of work, Large civil engineering firm,
: Proposal included a project approach that detailed each task
Clear description of the tasks 20 20 required and a scope of work necessary to complete the
project,
Commitment to adhering to the schedule of each ' Proposed schedule meets the District's request for final bid
. : 15 14.75 . .
task and overall project documents for construction in early-mid 2021.
Qualified and experience personnel n the project 15 1 Team assigned to work on project has little sewer design
team : experience; did not work on the similar projects listed,
Previous experience of similar projects completed 5 10.25 Consultant listed several sewer projects that it did not have
on time and within budget ) any involvement.
POINT TOTAL: 100 89.75




SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Agenda Item No. 5.a.

DATE: August 6, 2020

TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District

FROM: Doris Toy, District Manager/District Engineer 97

SUBJECT: Adopt Resolution Rescinding Resolution No. 14-1084 and Authorizing

Approved Signatories on District Checks

Summary

On December 31, 2008, the San Rafael Sanitation District terminated the accounting services
with the County of Marin, which included the issuing of checks. However, the District has
continued to use the County for collecting, safeguarding, and investing District funds. The
County currently has an agreement with Bank of America for its banking services. Since the
termination of accounting services with the County, we have obtained Maher Accountancy to
perform this service for the District, including the issuing of checks. These checks require two
authorized signatures.

Analysis

Per Resolution No. 14-1084, the Board authorized Doris Toy, the District Manager/District
Engineer, and Karen Chew, the Senior Civil Engineer, to be the approved signatories on District
checks. In the event that one of the signatories is not available, Gary Phillips, Board Chairman,
and Katie Rice, Board Director, are the alternate approved signatories. However, since Karen
Chew has retired and David Nicholson is now the Senior Civil Engineer, Resolution No. 14-1084
needs to be updated and amended. Staff would also like to add Maribeth Bushey, Board
Secretary/Board Director as an alternate signatory.

Options:

1. Keep the same signatories listed on Resolution No. 14-1084, but replace Karen Chew
with David Nicholson as one of the signatories and add Maribeth Bushey as an alternate
signatory.

2. Appoint other signatories.

Action Required

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors of the San Rafael Sanitation District choose
Option 1 and adopt the resolution rescinding Resolution No. 14-1084 and authorizing approved
signatories on District checks.

Attachment: Resolution



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
RESOLUTION NO. 20-1211
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
RESCINDING RESOLUTION NO. 14-1084 AND AUTHORIZING
APPROVED SIGNATORIES ON DISTRICT CHECKS

WHEREAS, San Rafael Sanitation District .(District) terminated the
accounting services with County of Marin, which included the issuing of checks, on
December 31, 2008; and |

WHEREAS, District wili continue to use the County’s treasurer services,
such as the collecting, safeguarding, and inveé.ting District funds; and

WHEREAS, County currently has an agreement with Bank of America for
its banking services; and

WHEREAS, the County Treasurer will continue to be the authority on the
District account; and

WHEREAS, District began issuing checks after December'31, 2008; and

WHEREAS, District checks require two (2) authorized signatures.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED that the Board of
Directors of the San Rafael Sanitation District, County of Marin, State of California,
authorizes the following as the approved signatories: Doris W. Toy, District
Manager/District Engineer; and David M. Nicholson, Senior Civil Engineer. In the event
that one signatory is not available, Gary O. Phillips, Board Chairman; Katie Rice, Board
Director; and Maribeth Bushey, Board Secretary/Director are the alternate approved

_signatories.




PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the San Rafael Sanitation
District Board of Directors held on the 6th day of August, 2020, by the following vote, to

wit:

AYES:
NOES:

ABSENT/ABSTAIN:

Gary 0. Phillips, Chairman

ATTEST:

Maribeth Bushey, Secretary



SAN RAFAEL SANITATION DISTRICT
Agenda Item No. 5.b.

DATE: August 6, 2020

TO: Board of Directors, San Rafael Sanitation District
FROM: ~ Doris Toy, District Managet/District Engineer D?
SUBJECT: Discussion on Electronic Signatures

SUMMARY

District and City staff have been exploring electronic signatures for executing various
documents, i.e. permits and agreements, Since we have been sheltering-in-place due to COVID-
19 for the past five months, staff consulted with the City on whether it had found a product for -
electronic signatures and was advised that the City had just begun using Adobe Sign for this
purpose.

After researching this matter, the City found that electronic signatures using Adobe PDF
“stamps” or other internal product are legally binding per the Uniform Electronic Transaction
Act (UETA), which California adopted in 1999.

The UETA was adopted by the Legislature in 1999 and became effective on January 1, 2000,
(Civ. Code 1633.1 et seq.). The UETA defines an electronic signature as “an electronic sound,
symbol, or process attached to or logically associated with an electronic record that is executed
or adopted by a person with the intent to sign the electronic record. For purposes of this title, a
“digital signature” as defined in subdivision (d) of Section 16.5 of the Government Code is a
type of electronic signature.” A digital signature is defined as "an electronic identifier, created
by computer, intended by the party using it to have the same force and effect as the use of a
manual signature" (Gov. Code 16.5.). These definitions include signatures stored in Adobe
Acrobat, PDF signatures, or copies of handwritten signatures that are “cut and pasted” onto
documents as long as they are used by a person with the intent to sign the document (See Espejo
v. Southern California Permanent Medical Group, 246 Cal.App.4™ 1047 (2016).)

The UETA further provides:

(a) A record or signature may not be denied legal effect or enforceability solely because it is in
electronic form.

(b) A contract may not be denied legal effect or enforceability solely because an electronic
record was used in its formation.

(c) If a law requires a record to be in writing, an electronic record satisfies the law.

(d) If a law requires a signature, an electronic signature satisfies the law.

Note that the UETA does not apply to wills, codicils, or testamentary trusts, documents
governing adoptions, divorce, or other family law matters or the Uniform Commercial Code.
Additionally, the Cal. Court of Appeal held that a typed name at the end of an email is not an



enforceable electronic signature to execute a settlement agreement (JBB Inv. Partners Lid v.
Fair, 232 Cal.App.4™ 974 (2014).)

In summary, as long as an electronic signature (1) is used by a person with the intent to sign the
document, (2) the parties agree to conduct the transaction by electronic means (which only need
be shown from context and surroundings and need not be expressly agreed), then these
signatures are legally binding.

Staff has consulted with the District’s legal counsel, and her comment was that all parties will
need to agree to execute the document using electronic signatures, and the signatories will need
to be authenticated. Adobe Sign has four methods of authentication: 1) by email; 2) by
password; 3) by social; and 4) by knowledge base authentication.

In addition, the parties will need to return the entire document with their signature and not just
the signature page.

The Adobe Sign subscription is $360/year.

ACTION REQUIRED

Board to discuss electronic signatures and to consider using electronic signatures for Board
documents, i.e. meeting minutes, resolutions, and agreements.




